102. XVII 11/9/11 pp. 3459-3658

Friday Nov. 9- 1917 Anded. August Schlofly George W. allisan

Friday, November 9, 1917.

The Committee met at 10 °'clock a.m., Hon. Pen Johnson (Chairman), presiding.

STATEFRED OF AUGUST SCHLAFLY,

4442 Lindell Avenue, St. Louis, Missouri.

(The witness was sworn by Mr. Johnson.)

Mr. Johnson: Give the stenograph-r your full name.

Mr. Schlafly: August Schlafly.

Mr. Johnson: There do you reside?

Fr. Schlafly: St. Louis, Misseuri; 4442 Lindell.

Mr. Johnson: That is your business?

Mr. Sollafly: Fanking business and farring, you might say, but landing largely.

Mr. Johnson: where is the bank with shiph you are associated?

Mr. Schlafly: Well, the one that I am in charge and the one that I am president of is the Union wrust & cavings Fank of Bast St. Louis.

Mr. Johnson: You desire to make a statement?

Er. Schlafly: I do.

Mr. Johnson: Proceed in your own way.

Tr. Schlafly: Well, in regard to belying East St.
Louis, in 1915-- that is, when Mr. Chamberlain was elected,
after the Lambert administration--

Tr. Johnson (Int-rposing:) That office was Charberlain elected to?

Mr. Schlafly: Mayor or Rast et. Louis. He called the barkers of Wast et. Louis and the Matichal Stockyarls.

and citizens of Rast St. Louis to a meeting at his office, to devise some means and ways of making the payrolls.

They hadn't had any pay for two months or three months, the firemen and police and the day laborers, and so forth.

The treasury was empty: Well, I attended that meeting

and rather took a back seat, because I was not for the Chamberlain administration.

There was a discussion as to what to do, and there were so many orders standing out, bills unpaid. I said it would be a small matter for the five banks to help the city out. Fell, they didn't buck about that. They said it was not a small matter, and so on. So the Matienal Stockyards Fank, Mr. Wright -- that is outside of the city limits -- he said he would have to take it up with his people in Chicago. So after alianse or a few days-- may be a week-- the Mayor called arother seating, and the Tational Stockyarus people had dropped out. They said they couldn't help. Then at that meeting, I think the Drovers' National, Mr. Toolefort, who was then president of the bank, said well, it couldn't be done; it couldn't be legally done. I insisted that it ocula; that schetning must be done, and should be done, and I was willing to join in with the four or with the three. The business men didn,t propose to put up any money, so the meeting adjourned again without anything being done.

A third meeting was called. That lets us down to three tanks. We said that we would join in and help the city out. It was then at that point that we began to take

467

3

the advice of the attorneys to protect the banks, and we had the rourth meeting.

Mr. Johnson: Fell, without so much detail, could you hasten a long with your story? That is all of no consequence whatever, that I can see.

Mr. Schlafly: Tell, but I want to show that my part -- that we didn't ask for this; we didn't ask to finance the city, but were willing to join in.

But aryway, finally nothing care of it, and we said that we would finance the city during Mr. Charberlain's administration—— I mean keep the city on a cash basis; pay for the running expenses, and they would issue us the anticipating varrants, such as I have a sample of them here, if you will permit me to show them to you. (Producing papers) And have are the assignments, and I will explain to you about the assignments.

You know the city could only issue 75 per cent of the assessed value, and then they work the first year \$67,000 to take up claims.

Mr. Johnson: Mr. Schlafly, we are of the original that this has nothing on earth to do with the investigation which we are making.

Mr. Schlafly: well, I saw screening in the paper that we did wrong. If we did anything arong, I want to know it.

Mr. Johnson: I haven t heard or anything that you have done wrong. Tay be you have, but I haven t heard of

it. But what, for instance, could this Committee do with this big bunch of old warrants? I am asking your orinion now. what could we do with them?

Mr. Schlafly: rell, the only point I asked was here, gentleren, I thought we helped the city very much.

Mr. Johnson: Well, shouldn't you have done that?

Put ir you did or if you didn't, there is nothing oriminal
in it, and I donet see that it has anything on earth to
do with this investigation.

Mr. Schlafly: I felt very such hurt and asked to some here. I thought we did a great thing.

Mr. Johnson: This is what was in the paper. Read it. State the dates and name of the paper (handing paper to witness.)

Yr. Schlafly: This is the St. Louis Republic, I think November 6, this year, when the Treasurer gave his estatement, Mr. Casshel.

Mr. Schlafly: Yes, sir.

Mr. Raker: That was Monday.

"ir. Johnson: If he stay here to hear a lot of unimrorter t things we mon't get away at all.

Vr. Scalafly: Very rell. I will assure you I won to trouble you, but I went out of ry way to borrow [70,000 to help the city out. The system of lanking the city funds was scored by Corgressman Raker, who inticated that such a plan would subject the City Treasurer and the lanks to terms in State's prison; it could make the Lanks likely

interested in the election of the Treasurer, who would seposit the money in a certain bank.

Mr. Johnson: what have you got to say about that now?

Mr. Schlafly: I borrowed [70,000 to put the city—

to keep the pity on a cash basis, and have done it for five

years, and I thought I was doing the city of East St. Louis

a kindly turn.

Mr. Cooper: Don't you think the city ought to raise enough money by taxation so as to pay its own debts at maturity?

468

Yr. Schlafly: Alsolutely.

Mr. Cooper: And not jay interest to banks year after year?

Mr. Schlafly: Absolutely.

Mr. Cooper: That settles the shole thing, then, I think. I don't think this other testimony is nat-rial.

In. Raker: I still feel of the opinion that a bank that takes the city or county funds and makes a profit on it must be under the State of Illinois gill y or a public offense. There isn't any question about it in my mind.

Mr. Schlafly: The point of it is that if you gentlemen would understand just what was done, you wouldn't find eny fault.

Yr. Raker: Now this question is true, isnet it?
You accepted the money from the ofty treasury in the may
or tenesits, and that was general deposits? That was put
in the general funds of the bank?

"r. Comdafly: Yes, sir.

Mr. Raker: This money, together with other money, wastraned and used by the bank as other moneys of the tank?

Vr. Schlafly: Why, we advanced the coney.

Mr. Raker: Tow let's get right down to this particular money. That you advanced I don't careabout, but I ar getting this: Thatever money was deposited by the city treasury was used as other deposits were used?

Mr. Schlafly: Yes, sir.

Mr. Raker: And interest was made our of that money the same as off or other money in the rank?

Mr. Foster: You, Mr. Schlafly, as I understand from his statement, doesn't deny that; and as Mr. Cooper and Mr. Johnson say, it is a question or law. He don't deny it, and he don't appropriate that he performed a priminal set when he did it.

Mr. Raker: Tell, there are the facts, and like enviother ract, it is my opinion—and I don't hesitate to say that the use by a lark of public funds and a promit made on that must or necessity be against the law, and therefore not only a civil violation but criminal.

In. Foster: Tell, we can settle that later, but I don't want it to go into the record that "r: Schlafly, because he says that he has done that in the State, as every other lank in the state or Inlineis has done-- I don't want it to go in the record, as is stated in that paper there, that he is a criminal. I have known "r. Schlafly for many years. I know all the family, and I

don't wantit to go into the recor. that this wan is a criminal because he has done what has been done here throughout the state of Illinois.

Mr. gohlafly: Thy, the city or East et. Louis, we loaned them -- I mean we advanced large surs or roney. They had no renew to deposit, only a little from different funds. we loaned them the morey. To advanced the money. That is may there meetings serecalled for the bankers to come up and nelp the city. They were in great distress. The riremen sere going to resign. They couldn't buy even a bale of may. They same simply out of coney, and I had had some experience in financing Cinton County out here cany years ago, and I thought it was easy, and I went out or my way. Ind, gentlemen, here are the notes that I borrowed \$60,000 on, and the city used one of that roney -- I advanced them on assignments. You get the en inor what assignments are, of course, where a man had chain against the city for labor, he simply assigns his claim to re, or to the bank. I rut up the money, or the band does, and the amount was \$67,000, I think, not (70,000 at that time. And here is the opinion of two prominent attorneys that it sould be legally done (showing paper). The city had little or no noney.

Mr. Cooper: Juage Eaker, read that into the record.
Mr. Raker (Reading:)

*Trion Trust & Savings Fank,

Hast St. Louis, Illinois, November 21,1913:

I so hereby cortify that the foregoing assignments when properly executed and admostedged will, in my opin-

4**6**9

ion, transfer the equitable little to the claims against the city of East St. Louis, as therein described, to the assignees named.

DAT. FOGLYET,

Attorney.

The next one reads:

"Rast St. Louis, November 18, 1918.

Union Trust & Savings Fank,

East St. Louis, Ill.

Gentlemen: -

Te, the undersigned, have examined the forms of assignment attached hereto for the assignment of claims of employes of the City of East St. Louis, Illinois, and in our olinion said assignments, when properly filled out and signed by the Mayor and City Comptroller and payer, and also City Treasurer and City Comptroller, become legal and valid assignments and chligations against the city of East St. Louis Louis, Illinois, and that the city of East St.

Louis becomes legally liable for the payments of said assignments in accordance with the provisions and conditions set out in said certificates and assignments.

Silas Cook,

Attorney representing the bank." .

How that is the tank's own attorney. That only relates to the assignments. That icn't have anything to do with accepting public roney and raking a profit on it.

Mr. Schlafly: We advanced the city of Hast St. Louis-they had no soney- \$168,000. That is in the

year 1913. We advanced ther in 1914 \$202,000.

Mr. Johnson: Did you get any interest on that, on the money you advanced them?

Mr. Schlafly: Yes, sir; 5 per cent.

Mr. Johnson: Then it is just simply a business transaction on which you made money?

470

Mr. Schlafly: I made no money. I made five per cent on this which I borrowed, when noney those years was worth six and sever per cent or more. Even now they are getting five per cent, and the best men in the country are paying six, 5-1/2 and 6. They are owing us now. In 1915 we advanced them \$188,000. In 1916, \$254,000, and in 1917, the largest amount was \$170,000. At this time the city owes us on these warrants—— I have them here——\$120,667.48; and on the assignments—— that is the smallest amount——\$1778.80.

Fr. Johnson: Have you that loan secured? Is that indel tedness of the city now to you secured?

Yr. Schlafly: That is not secured. These are simply bills, claims.

Mr. Johnson: "hen you say "these" I don't know what they are.

Mr. Schlafly: Assignments (showing papers).

Vr. Johnson: well, they are assignments of some sort of claims.

Mr. Schlafly: Of a ran that works on the street.

Mr. Johnson: You bought it from him?

Mr. Schlafly: Mo, sir.

Mr. Jossson: How did you get it?

Mr. Echiafly: The city approved of it.

Mr. Johnson: The city approved of it. What is

Mr. Raker: It is nothing on earth except an ordinary claim signed by the Vayor and Comptroller; a marrant against the city for work done.

Mr. Follafly: Yes, and they had no money.

Mr. Faker: I don't care whether they had any money or not. This is an ordinary warrant that the city owes this much money. He goes to work and endorses it. He could endorse it to your lank or anybody else.

Mr. Romlafly: Yes, but nobody ease aculd take it.

Mr. Foster: They wouldn't take them before without discounting them 20 per cent.

lir: Sollafly: 20 per cent and 30 per cent, alsolutely.

Mr. Johnson: Are you claiming that you lost any money by the transaction?

Mr. Schlafly: No, sir; I don't.

"r. Johnson: Then what is your object in being here?

Mr. Schlafly: I have no object more than attempting to show I was not a criminal. I thought we did the city a kind turn. I know we did, and the citizens of East St. Louis told me so.

Yr. Foss: You took these at their face value?
Yr. Schlafly: Yes, sir. we did it for the city

because the administration asked to be kept on a cash basis.

Mr. Raker: Jos let's be fair about this. In the year 1913 you claim you had warrants to the arount of [111,000. How much money did you have deposited in your tank during that time of the city?

Mr. Schlafly: Fell, that would be off and on, you know.

Mr. Raker: The City Treasurer testified that you had as high as \$300.000.

Yr. Schlafly: That might have been for a seek or ten days.

Yr. Reker: Tex in 1914 your marrants here were \$160,000 during that year. How much on an average did you have deposited in your bank?

Mr. Schlafly: I couldn't tell you.

Mr. Johnson: That is very important.

Mr. Raker: In 1915 you had warrants to the amount of \$143,000 plus. Her much did you have on deposit of the City's money?

"r. Schlafly: I don't know.

"r. Raker: "Cx in 1918 you had warrants to the amount of [178,000. How much money did you have deposited in your bank of the city?

Mr. Schlefly: I couldn't tell you.

Mr. Raker: "c. in 1917 the warrants were "120,000 plus. How ruch or the city's money did you have on deposit in your bank?

Mr. Sollafly: I chuldn't tell you.

Mr. Raker: To offset that. Now isn't it a fact that on this \$120,000 you were getting five per cent interest?

Mr. Schlafly: Yes, sir.

Mr. Raker: And at the same time had a large amount of the City's money on deposit? Isn,t that right?

Vr. Schlafly: Yes, sir.

Mr. Raker. Give me those statements there.

(The witness handed papers to Mr. Raker.)

There are five statements presented here, and each one shows that you had on an average \$125,000 each month on deposit. That is right, isn't it?

Yr. Schlafly: Yes, sir.

Mr. Raker: Now that money was in the general fund, and being loaned with the rest of the funds of your bank, upon which you were getting from five to six per cent interest? Isn't that right?

Mr. Schlafly: Yes, sir.

Hr. Raker. And at the sime you were lending that armey, you had money of theirs in the vaults?

Mr. Schlafly: Yes, sir. Yow will you pardon me a noment? We didn't ask to do this. The city asked us to do it, and no ranks of East et. Louis would do it and haven't done it. We didn't ask to do this. They asked us to do it, and regged us to do it over and over again.

Tr. Raker: well, that is just the point I am contending for, that the city officials that have a bank tehind them, or interested in that bank, they will deposit

the money with the bank, and therefore the bank and the officials are interested in electing those officers and keeping there in roser.

Mr. Schlafly: Not at all. I was against Mr. Chamberlain and Mr. Vollman in the election. To had nothing to do with it at all; absolutely nothing to do with it.

Mr. Raker: Here is the June 1st statement, 1917, which shows \$126,811.04 in these various hanks, mostly in your bank. The recapitulation, July 1st, 1917, shows \$153,155.76.

The statement of August 1st, 1917, shows deposits in your bank, most of it, \$144,207.11. That is about right, isn't it?

472

Mr. Schlafly: I suppose that statement is correct.

"r. Baker: Another recapitulation dated September
lst, 1917, shows \$103,614.34. The recapitulation of
October 1st, 1917, shows \$82,885.96. The recapitulation

of Toverber 1st, 191, shows amount in deresits (130,970.69.

50, as ematter of fact, at the end of each month, there ranged from \$100,000 to \$150,000 or the city's money in your tank. Isn't that right?

Wr. Schlafly: Tell, I don't know-- different funds.

"r. Raker: Tell, that is a fact?

Mr. Schlafly: I suppose that is correct.

Mr. Raker: Now that particular soney was the City's money, in general deposit with your bank, and that money was being loaned by your bank at interest from 3 to 8 per cent?

Tr. Schlafly: No.

Mr. Raker: How much?

Mr. Schlaffy: Six; five to six.

Mr. Raker! And at the same time all the warrants that had been assigned to the pank were drawing five percent interest; that's right, isn't it?

ir. Schlafly: Yes, sir.

Mr. Johnson: Now if you wish to make any explanatory statement that strictly relates to the natter, the Committee would be giad to hear it, but to ramble out into things that have nothing to do with the it, we direct care to burden the record with that.

was in great distress. The didn, thank to just up this money. We didn't want to do it. We wanted to join in with the other larks. They wouldn't do it, and after a larse of two or three wonths and the warrants were selling for 70 cents on the dollar -- 80 cents on the dollar -- I thought I was doing a kind turn, and we agreed to put up the money for the time being; and I got the orinion of the attorneys if we cashed these chaims for the city, if we would be safe. You have the orinions there, and we did it, and we were commended by the business men, and reprimarized by the hankers of Mast St. Louis. I don't know what the city would have done if someholy mode't helped. It is just natural that a ran who lorrows money, he makes a dejosit. Those are the facts.

Mr. Cooper: Mr. Chairman, let me see if I can't

sum this up from Mr. Schlafly's point of view:

Your city treasury had been robbed here of about \$150,000, hear, tit?

Mr. Schlafly: We had nothing to do with the Lambert administration.

Wr. Cooper: I know you didn't have anything to do with the administration, but there was \$150,000 of the people's money in the city creasury that was gone, wasn't it?

Er. Schlafly: There was a large sum. I don't know the excunt.

Vr. Cooper: The city treasury from that time on
wes rather behind, wasn't it?

Wr. Scalafly: The city treasury has been behind for many, many years.

Mr. Cooper: The City Treasurer comes on the stand here, Mr. Casflel, and swears that he hadn't a vault down there which he would consider safe in which to leave the large amount of money that they frequently had on hand; and he takes the money up to your hank and deposits it.

Of course you are responsible for the return of that noney and he and his bondsmen are also responsible. That is in your general funds. The City can't meet its obligations at maturity, and so you advence the money on these anticipation marrants in the ordinary course of business. That is is, isn't it?

Mr. Schlafly: Yes, sir.

Mr. Dog-r: Well, I think that is all there is to

it.

Suppose that a private individual had \$500 on deposit in your hank, some store-keeper, and he came to your hank and wanten to borrow \$700. You would have \$500 of his money on deposit, and yet if you loaned him \$700 or a thousand dollars, he would have to be paying interest on that, while at the same time he had money on deposit there, wouldn't he?

Er. Schlafly: Yes, sir; that is the only way a bank can live. Farks, unless you go to the large borroxers, in large banks-- unless they leave a balance, they must carry at least 10 or 15 or 20 per cert; or you don't get the money.

Mr. Johnson: That is but another way or charging usury, isn't it?

Er. Schlafly: No, sir. The back makes little enough money anyway. You have got to been our balance and a business man that doesn't keep a cash balance doesn't succeed. He must keep scrething in his bank.

Mr. Johnson: Do you mean to say that if you loan a man a thousand dollars you require him to keep a certain per cent of it on deposit in your bank?

Mr. Schlafly: No, but I say that where a large commercial house-- if you have a large business and you want \$50,000 or "100,000, or may be a larger arount than that, and you want to open an account with a large bank, they will say, "Now, what will your balance be?"

"Fell, we will carry a balance of \$10,000." "Tell, we

would rather you would carry a talance of \$15,000 or \$20,000." And if they don't carrying talances, they don't want his account.

Mr. Johnson: If a ran doesn't carry a balance you wouldn't lend him the money?

Mr. Schlafly:: Te loan money without that in smaller amounts.

Mr. Johnson: Then shat hid you mean by what you said, that you require a man to carry balances?

Yr. Schlafly: No, I didn't say that. I say a
large bank--

Mr. Johnson' (Interposing:) That are you talking about then, when you speak of men who do carry balances, and at the same tipe borrow?

Mr. Schlafly: Sure they do.

I'r. Johnson: Fell, you say they do, and you say they do that as the result of a conversation or interview with the tanker?

Pr. Schlafly: That is, the unadistanding, that they carry certain balances.

Mr. Johnson: The understanding between the borrower and the lender?

Mr. coblafly: Sure.

Mr. Johnson: And the hash is the lender?

Yr. Schlafly: Yes, sir.

"r. Johnson: Ther sizer a man, alo is the forrower, comes to the bank, allo is the lender, he says he will keep a calance in the bank all the time?

479

"r. Schlafly: That is a business man.

Mr. Johnson: I am talking about the borrower.

. Tr. Schlafly: He may be paying a little higher rate of interest?

Mr. Johnson: But you are talking about something now that I am not talking about.

Mr. Schlafly: Fell, I am trying to explain to you, Yr. Chairman-

yr. Johnson (Interposing:) Yes, but you go off into an explanation which dresn't explain at all, and which leaves the subject matter about which I am inquiring.

Mr. Schlafly: All right; let's hear it.

Mr. Johnson: You have said that the borrower, upon going to a lark to borrow, cores to an agreement with the lender, which is the Eark, that he will carry a balance in the lank. Is that right or not?

Mr. Schlafley: No, it is not right.

Mr. Johnson: It is arong?

Mr. Schlafly: It is this --

Mr. Johnson (Interposing:) If that statement is not right, it is wrong, isn't it? It is incorrect?

Mr. Schlafly: Wo.

Mr. Johnson: It is, them, neither right nor wrong, according to your statement?

Mr. Combally: I conservate house wants to do business; it wasts to borrow money from time to time.

Mr. Johnson: Instead of saying "commercial house", just say a man wants to formor money. He does what now?

Mr. Schlafly: Well, he comesen, and we loan him a thousand dollars.

Mr. Johnson: On what terms?

Mr. Schlafly: At the rate of interest, whatever it may be, five or six per cent.

Mr. Johnson: Then tell us about the balance you have been talking about.

Mr. Schlafly: That is nothing about the balance at all.

Fr. Johnson. You have been talking about the balance.

Mr. Schlafly: I am telling about certain loans when a man mants a large sum.

ifr. Johnson: Then a man wants a lerge sum you
cant his to carry a balance?

Mr. Schlafly: Say it is a shoe business, or a packing business--

Mr. Johnson (Interposing:) No difference about his business. He is a borrower and ne wants to borrow a large sum of money. That do you say to him now?

Mr. Conlafly. We ask him what balance he expects to carry.

Fr. Johnson: Thy do you ask him that? Say, for instance, a ran comes in and tells a lanker he wants to borrow (100,000; you ask him what balance he expects to carry of the you, do you?

Tr. Schlafly: Yes, sir.

Mr. Johnson: Sup ose he says he doesn't expect

480

to carry any balance with you; he wants to borrow one hundred thousand collars at the prevailing rate of interest. That do you say to him?

Wr. Scalafly: We can't handle his account.

Mr. Johnson: Then you don't lend it to him. Then if a man does want to borrow one hundred thousand dollars or you, how such or it do you require him to keep with you on deposit?

Mr. Schlafly: At least 10 per cent.

Mr. Johnson: Ten thousand collars. Then you make him pay interest on this one numbered thousand dollars and let him have the use of \$90,000, don't you? Isn't that usury?

Mr. Schlafly: I don't think so.

Mr. Johason: Are you not charging his interest on \$100,000 and letting him have (90,000?

Yr. Schlafly: He may be getting that money at 5 per cent.

Vr. Johnson: It don't make any difference what the per cent is.

Mr. Scalafly: It Wouldn't be usury, because the legal rate is 7 per cent.

Mr. Johnson: That is but one method of charging tim greater interest then the stipulated interest on the note?

Mr. Schlafly: Tell, that is the outto.

"r. Johnson: I lnow that is the custom, yes sir; and I think it is an abhorrent one.

Mr. Schlafly: And you couldn't do business, a mar couldn't run his business unless he carries a balance.

Mr. Johnson: Oh, yes; if a men wants to borrow \$100,000 and expects to go and pay that \$100,000 for something that he has inught, he ought to get \$100,000, instead of being able to get on y \$90,000.

Mr. Schlafly: Fell, he gets \$100,000, but he gets money coming in.

Mr. Johnson: Have you transacted business with the city of Wast St. Louis along the same business lines with the men that want or corrow (100,000?

Mr. Smlafly: No.

Mr. Johnson: Rat you did lend the city of East St. Louis \$67,000 and got warrants which your attorney advised you nade you perfectly safe in the transaction?

"r. Schlafly: "o, we got the assignment or claims.

"r. Johnson: How did you get any it you afan't get assignments?

Yr. Schalfly: The bank dian't loan this money on assignments at all. I did it personally myself.

Mr. Johnson: fou as an individual lent 067,000 to the city of West Ct. Louis and took colleteral mr. to secure you for the loan?

Mr. Schlafly: Just the assignments.

Mr. Johnson: That Go y u call that? Isn't that collateral?

Hr. Schlafly: We apar't take it from the City of East ct. Louis at all. We took it from the individual.

481

Tr. Johnson: It don't make any difference whom you got it from; you got collateral to secure the loan, diun't you?

Mr. Schlafly: Te got a claim.

Mr. Johnson: The clair is not collateral? You, as a business man, do you say that this claim is not collateral when you take an assignment or it to secure your loan?

Mr. Schlafly: It is collecteral when they put it up with a note. They if an't put up any note. It is collected when they put it up beating a note.

Mr. Johnson: Then I will restate the case. You lent the city of Wast St. Louis \$67,000?

Mr. Schlafly: No, not the city or Wast St. Louis.

Mr. Johnson: The dia you lead it to?

Mr. Schlafly: Te suranced is to those truly it lals, but wast St. Louis asked as to take up there claims, because they had no money. They had no money.

Tr. Johnson: Dir you ever see the individuals from whom you got this file of warrants that you have got in your hands now?

'ir. Schlafly: Yes, sir; every one or ther came to the tank and got the soney there.

r. Johnson: Ind then you got the warrant?

Mr. Schlafly: Te go, the absignment. We got this glede of paper.

"r. Johnson: You got the assigned marrants?
"r. Cohlafiy: "o.

Mr. Johnson: what did you get? An unassigned sarrant?

Mr. Schlarly: Just a claim.

Mr. Johnson: well, is that claim a narrant? What do you call it, a chair or sarrant?

Mr. Schlafly: This is a warrant.

Mr. Johnson: Then you got the assigned claim?

Mr. Schlarly: Yes, sir.

Mr. Johnson: To secure y u in raking a lean?

Mr. Schlafly: Well, I have to present it to the city of Mast St. Louis to get a warrant for it.

Mr. Johnson: I didn't ask you whom you had to present it to at all. You loaned the money and you got an assigned claim against Wast St. Louis?

Mr. Schlafly: Yes, sir.

Mr. Johnson: And in that way you saved East St.
Louis from going or a its our breasury to pay the claim?

Tr. Scalafly: Trey had no money in the treasury.

Mr. Johnson: In that way you saved East St. Louis from going inco its own pooket to pay the somey. Now you say they had no somey with which to pay it?

Mr. Schlafly: No. sir.

Fr. Jenesen: Havenet you just stated that at the time they did have money on deposit in your tank?

Mr. Schlafly: Those Ame sacred funds.

Ur. Johnson: "hat is a "sacred rond"? That find was it that was sacred?

"r. Schlafly: The street improvements, in you please.

taat.

Mr. Johnson: That fund was a sacret fund?
Mr. Schlarly: I meen the city had no right to use

Mr. Johnson: The has the right to userit?

Mr. Schlarly: They were to be applied on the payage to bonds issued against improving that street.

Inat was not the non-you wast St. Louis. These deposits that they have belong to that rund.

Mr. Scalarly: They had no right to he so.

Tr. Cooper: To do so arcunted to xx entezzlement

If the Unity Treasurer & es it, under the statute?

Mr. Schlarly: Yes, sir, they had no right to use it, only to lay the bines that were issued for this street and that street, and whatever it right re. The city although have asked and called these restings over and over again it they had had soney to teke care of the claims the were against them; and we light want to do it, but we aid it.

Mr. Unoper: You had certain special assessments here for certain speciale purposes, which made the amount collected for assessment a special fund for a special jurgose?

Mr. Comlafly: fes, sir.

The Corp is Them just into the tressury the coney thus realized for a special jurgose can't be diverted from that jurgose by any public officer?

Mr. Schlafly: That's right.

482

Mr. Cooper: Except he becomes guilty of embezzlement under the laws of the State of Illinois?

Mr. Schlafly: Yes, sir.

Vr. Cooper: And some of these claims that you have here were for -- sell, to give an illustration, for coal, say, lumber or anything else.

Mr. Schlafly: Yes, and police and night watchmen and all that. They were all that.

Mr. Cooper: And that was a delt of the municipality, and there were no specific funds in the treasury for the surpose of paying that, and they had no money in the general fund of the city for that purpose?

Mr. Schlafly: Yo, sir; no money in the treasury for that.

Mr. Cooper: No money in the treasury with which they could meet that?

Mr: Schlafly: No, sir.

Mr. Cooper: And the special funts could not be used under the law to meet those obligations?

Mr. Schlafly: That is just right.

Mr. Johnson: If I correctly understand you, the situation is this: Then the city owed an individual and didn't have the money to pay his, you brught that claim from the individual?

Wr. Schlafly: After the city approved of it.

Mr. Johnson: It don't make any difference whether it is before or after.

Mr. Schlafly: I wouldn't buy it unless the city approved that it was a just and honest claim, and they pro-

mised to issue a warrant to pay that claim when the money was in the treasury.

Mr. Johnson: I would be very glad if I could get you to answer the question. The city issued a claim to a man to whom the city was independ, did it not?

Mr. Schlafly: Yes, sir.

Mr. Johnson: And that man brings you the claim?

Mr: Schlafly: After the city had approved of it; yes, sir.

Mr. Johnson: To: la the city issue him a claim that it does not approve of?

Mr. Schlafly: Tell, if the man would come with a claim on the city, then we wouldn't pay it.

Mr. Johnson: I am not talking about that, but I don't besteve se could get this out of you in a month.

Mr. Scalafly: Yes, sir; I will give it to you.

Mr. Johnson: Well, I'll give it up.

Mr. Raker: There is another feature that has turned up-- well, go ahead, Mr. Poss.

Mr. Poss: These are claims on the part of the individuals against the city?

Mr. Schlafly: Yes, sir.

Mr. Foss: And the city had no funds from which to pay them?

Mr. Schlafly: No, sir.

Mr. Foss: If the city hadn't made this arrangement with you such as it did, for your bank to pay these claims at their face value, then these men who had claims taken against the city would have xkxxx these and gone out and

hanked them around on the streets?

Mr. Schlafly: Sold them for 70 cents on the dollar.

Mr. Foss: And sold them at a discount.

Mr. Schlafly: They did sell them at a discount before we took it up-- 70 and 80 cents. I mean they discounted them 20 and 30 per cent.

Mr. Foss: But instead of that, you took it up and you raid 100 cents for them?

Mr. Schlafly: 100 cen's on the dollar.

Mr. Foss: Well, I think you did a good service to the city.

Mr. Schlafly: The people of Rast St. Louis think so.

Fr. Raker: Now if a can had a claim against this city, for instance, as clerk, he made his affidavit to the claim. That is right, is it?

Mr. Schlafly: How is that?

Mr. Raker: If a man had a claim against the city as a clerk or stenographer, he made affidavit that the city owed him so much?

Mr. Schlafly: Yes, sir.

Mr. Raker: Then the Mayor and the Comptroller aggreed that?

Mr. Schafly: Yes, sir.

Mr. Raker: And then the Comptroller and the City Transurer certified that the claim was all right?

Mr. Schlafly: Yes, sir.

Mr. Raker: And then you bount it of the man?

Mr. Schlafly: Ind paid nim the money, the face value. But the city arranged for that. The city asked us

483

to do that because they had no reney. The Mayor and the Council of the City asked us to do that, and asked everybody else in town. They asked the merchants and the bankers to do it, and we did it for five years.

Mr. Foss: You said none of the banks would do it except your bank?

Mr. Schlafly: Yes, sir.

Mr. Foss: You are the only hand that would do it?

Wr. cohlafly: Yes, sir.

Mr. Foss: And in doing that the city paid its obligations, and the men, the admingram, got their full amount of their claims?

Mr. Comlastly: The full around of their claim.

%r. Foss: Which they otherwise -sulan't have
gotten?

Mr. Sollafly: Which they lide't get, and men made large amounts of money out of it.

Mr. Foss: And which, as you say, were hawked around here on the streets and were taken up by men who were shaving notes?

Mr. Schlafly: Yes, sir.

"r. Foss: And shaving accounts; icing that sort of business?

Mr. Schlafly: Yes, sir.

Mr. Cooper: How migh aid that discount go semetimes before the bank took it up?

Mr. Scalafly: I can assure got they were offered to us at 20 and 30 per cent discount?

Mr. Cooper: For instance, a 30 per cent discount, to get it down to figures, would be this: A man getting \$70 a nonth-- as some policeman did at that time-- discounted at 30 per cent would be \$21. He would get \$49?

Mr. Schlafly: Yes, sir.

Mr. Cooper: Simply because the city of East St.
Louis didn't have money in the treasury to pay its honest
debts?

Mr. Schlafly: Inose were the conditions, gentlemen.

Mr. Cooper: And you think it is high time they raised money enough by taxation from the property there is in this city to put money into its own treasury and pay its delts at maturity, the minute they are due, and stop gaying interest to the banks for money advanced?

Mr. Schlafly: I have been talking that since I have been in Bast St. Louis in the Laming business. I have been talking that very thing.

Mr. Raker: Now let me ask you this question: You had the money in the waults-- you knew it was coming-- to pay these warrants after you got the assignments, didn't you?

Mr. Schlafly: How was that.

Hr. Raker: I say you felt satisfied that the city would pay?

Mr. Schlafly: Sure, I did. Many others did not. I aid.

Mr. Raker: There was no guarantee by the city officials of the payment at all, was there? No aritten guar-

484

an tes?

Mr. Schlafly: The first year--

Mr. Cooper (Interposing:) But just answer the question.

Mr. Schlafly: I will make it plain to you.

Mr. Cooper: You can make it plain: I am just asking if there was any written guarantee given to you by the city of Rest of. Louis as a city, relative to these payments?

Fr. Schlafly: No, sir.

Mr. Cooper: Then you had the assignment of the marrants?

Mr. Schlafly: Yes, sir.

"Ir. Corper: And the individual became responsible also, if you didn't get your money?

" Mr. Sollafly: (es, sir.

Mr. Coper: You fel, that you were going to get your money?

Mr. Scharly: We did.

Mr. Seeper: And you had the money in the bank?

Mr. Smlafly: Yes, sir.

Mr. Coop-r: For that furpose, now?

Mr. Schlafly: Well, I didn't --

Mr. Tooper [Interposing:) There is no other bank that keeps these large deposits, except yours, in the city.
It was understood you were to get all the deposits?

Mr. Schlafly: We were to furnish this doney to take up these assignments; raturally it would come that way

mithout saying anything about it.

Mr. Cooper: Without saying anything about it.
There must have been something said about it. It was
understood the money was to be deposited in your bank,
wasn't it?

Mr. Schlafly: Yes, sir.

Mr. Otop-r: Fy the city treasurer?

Mr. Schlafly: Yes, sir.

Mr. Cooper: And the money was to be handled by your bank?

Mr. Schlafly: Yes, sir.

Mr. Cooper: And was to be kept there?

Mr. Schlafly: Yes, sir.

Mr. Cooper: Sometimes one hundred thousand dollars, and sometimes five minared thousand dollars?

Mr: Schlafly: I couldn't tell you the ascunts.

Mr. Cooper: It would run practically as high as about [500,000?

Mr. Schafly: That would be for a week or ten days at a time.

Mr. Cooper: Now never faid a chaim in your life except after it had been approved by the proper officials to be a valid chaim against the city, did you?

Mr. Schlafly: That is right. To wouldn't do it otherwise.

Wr. Fester: You would have to do that as a business transaction?

Mr. Schlafly: Certainly.

Mr. Raker: In other words, you never paid a claim to a man who came with a duly verified claim against the city, saying that he had done his work, but the city hadn't approved it yet inquesting. You never paid such a claim?

Mr. Schlafly: No, sir.

Mr. Raker: You waited until the claim was presented to the proper city official?

Yr. Schlafly: Yes, sir.

Mr. Raker: And properly approved and properly certified them, and them, and not until them, would the claim ever be paid?

Mr. Schlafly: That is right.

Mr. Raker: And the city did business with you by keeping in touch with your lank, by certifying to you the claims allowed at each meeting of the board, as well as certifying to you the various funds in each account?

ir. Schrafly: Yes, sir.

Mr. Raker: So your bank, holding the soney, kept a full record at all times of the city business and transactions? Isn't that right?

Mr: Schlafly: Yes, sir.

yr. Raker: So you were running no risk of losing your money at all, were you?

Mr. Schlagly: Well, a great many people thought so.

Mr. Raker: Well, J am asking you.

485 Er. Schlafly: I didn't think so. I thought I was safe.

Mr. Raker: But this macred trust fund that my colleague speaks about, you took that as a credit trust fund and loaned it out at interest?

Mr. Schlafly: Like any other bank sculd do; yes, sing Mr. Raker: I didn't ask you about any other bank.
I askel you if you did it.

Mr. Schlafly: Yes, sir.

Mr. Raker: And made a profit on it. At what rate of interest did you loan out the money?

"r. Schlafly: It right he on depand loans, 4 per cent. It depends on the rate of interest, and we have loaned at 3-1/2, also on depart, or 4 or 4-1/2 or 5.

Mr. Raker: That is the usual rate of interest here?

ir. Schlafly: "bell, you know at this time the rates would be fully up to 8 per cent. Large people are paying even more than that.

Mr. Raker: That were you loaning for in 1916--

Wr. Schlafly: Tell, never over 6 per cent. There right be a scall loan less than that.

Tr. Raker: mere you loaning any at 4 per cent?

Er. Schlafly: Well, I think some demand loansyou know, a tank has got to have some morey-- some ready
money, or loaned out so you can get it on demand. We
loaned those at 4 per cent.

Mr. Baker: Ita you? I am asking you if you did

actually loan any money in 1910 at 4 per cent.

Mr. schlafly: I don't think so, in 1916.

Wr. Raker: In 1915?

Mr. Schlafly: Well, we have loaned it -- I couldn't tell you what year-- we have loaned it often at 3 per cent on demand. And that would be in large sums, say \$25,000, or \$10,000, with gilt edged collateral, so you could get it on demand, usually to large brokers that borrowed money of that kind, and you could get it when you needed it.

The bank has got to have money when they need it, and you have an account and you want your money, you want it. At the same time we loan that money at a low rate.

Mr. Raker: You felt satisfied, now didn,t you, that when you raid a claim, a warrant that was duly assigned to you and was approved by the Mayor, Comptroller and Treasurer, that it was gilt-edged?

Mr. Schlafly: Fell, I felt satisfied that it was good. I souldn't call it gilt-edged. I souldn't have done it it I hadn't felt absolutely safe.

Mr. Raker: That is what I say; you felt it was absolutely safe?

Mr. Schalfly: Yes, absolutely. I wouldn't have borrowed that \$70,000 if I hadn,t felt I was safe, and then doing something for the city of Mast St. Louis. Absolutely, that is what I did it for; not to make any money on it. I wanted to join in with the five banks. To didn't want to do it alone. That is honest, gentlemen. We wouldn't have gone into it to make any money on it. If ever I told

گار چ

the truth, J am telling it now.

Mr. Raker: Well then, to make a success of the city officials, why naturally you would be entered in what the city officials lid, and they would be interested in your business, wouldn't they? You were all working in harmony, you and the city officials?

Mr. Schlafly: They got into a jam, and I was helping them out.

486

Mr. Raker: I am not asking you about a jam. You had it arranged so there aculdn't be any jam.

Mr. Schlafly: I was helping them out.

Mr. Raker: You understand what I mean. You and the city officials worked hand and glove together?

Mr. Schlafly: No, I will say not; no, sir.

ir. Rakir: You don't think you did? You have all each other at arms' length in your dealings?

Mr. Schlafly: No. As far as these city officials that were elected are concerned, when they were candidates I was not for them, but when they got into trouble I was willing to help the city out and did help them out.

'Ir. Raker: Then you were not on good terms with the city officials?

r. Schlafly: well, as I said before, when Thatber-lain was elected--

Mr. Raker (Interposing:) On well; that's all.

The Congress I would like to ask one question, if a schlerity. If there had some into your bank one of the citizens of Mast St. Louis, and had a claim or a note, say, of one other citizen here, on which he wished to get the roney,

and didn't want to wait-- couldn't wait-- you would advance the money and he would pay you for that a coomodation, wouldn't he?

Mr. Scalafly: Yes, sir.

Vr. Cooper: Tell, do you see any reason why a bank that accommodates all the people of a city by paying their debts, to one ran, shouldn't pay a bank for doing it? There is no reason, is there, why a bank shouldn't get something for doing that?

Mr. Schlafly: That is what they are in cusiness for. And what the Soverheent do now if it didn't have banks? That is what the bank is in 'usiness for.

Hr. Raker: To make soney.

Mr. Scalafly: Ally, as any other line or business.

And what would the Government do if they weren't taking care of the liberty bonds and distributing money to customers?

Mr. Cooper: To sum it all up, as I understand your case now-- we have heard the City Treasurer--- the city couldn't pay its debts at maturity. Its warrants and other things were going around this town at a discount of 20 and 30 per cent?

Mr. Schlafly: Yes, sir.

Mr. Cooper: The bankers held a meeting?

Wr. Schafly: Yes, sir.

'r. Cooper: The subject was discussed. You urged that all the lanks turn in and help the city?

Mr. Cohlafly: I did.

Er. Cooper: And none of them would do it except your bank?

Mr. Schlafly: That's right.

ifr. Cooper: You borrowed money as an individual over in St. Louis?

Mr. Schlafly: I have three notes here that I paid, §70,000, three different times. And I never made one cent out of it, and I could have bought those claims and made large sums of money out of it. I never made one cent. I could have had a straw man to have bought them on the streets and kept away from the bank.

Mr. Cooper: At a discountall the way from 20 to 30 per cent?

Mr. Schlafly: That is the truth, and the whols truth, gentlemen; and I think that I have done schetning for mast 5t. Louis. I know I did.

Mr. Johnson: You are not, however, proceeding on the theory that virtue is its oan reward?

Mr. Raker: You had soney in your bank to loan, the bank did?

Mr. Schlafly: Not to loan on assignments.

Mr. Raker. Nos will you answer sy question?

Vr. Schlafly: Yes, sir.

Hr. Raker: You had money in the Pank to loan at this time?

Mr. Scalafly: Yes, sir.

"r. Raker: How much?

'(r. Schlafly: Oh, we take care of our customers,

¥2.

you mow.

Mr. Raker: Well, but answer me.

Wr. Schlafly: I can't remember that.

Mr. Raker: well, you have made the statement here that you went and borrowed money individually.

Mr. Schlafly: I mean to take up these assignments. The tank wouldn't tale them up.

Mr. Raker: What you mean to say now is that the bank didn't take up the assignments, and you took them up personally?

Mr. Schlafly: I did. I am back of those assignments.

Yr. Raker: Then it wasn't a bank deal in handling these assignments?

Hr. Scalafly: The warrants were. The anticipating warrants were. You know there is two different things.

Mr. Raker: I understand that. I don't care to go over them again.

Mr. Schlafly: The warrants, you know, but a claim is different.

Mr. Gooper: Mr. Schlafly, does the statute of the State or Illinois allow a lank to get 5 per cent for cashing anticipation warrants?

Mr. Schlafly: Yes, sir.

Mr. Cooper: It is limited to 5 per cent?

Tr. Schlafly: Yes, on the marrants, 5 per cent.

I'r. Cooper: Under the statute?

Mr. Schlafly: "es, sir.

Hr. Coor -r: And a claim, the assignment of a claim

for labor or material furnished is a different thing?

"Ir. Schlafly: Yes, sir; a different thing. I

don't think under the law they would have a right to pay

on those assignments.

Mr. Raker: Now let's see if I understand it rightly. All warrants the bank took?

Mr. Schlafly: Yes, sir.

Mr. Raker: Is that right?

Ir. Schlafly: Yes, sir.

Mr. Raker: And the claims you took?

Mr. Schlafly: I took and ercorsed all those assignatents.

Ir. Raker: Then you endorsed the, what did you do afth them? Then they were endorsed what was done with them?

Fr. Sombafly: I turned them over to the bank and they were energed to my account.

Mr. Haker: Merefore, the tank hamiled them?

Mr. Schlafly: Fell, the tank manufel them that way, you know. I had the money there in the tank.

Mr. Foss: Your own personal account?

Mr. Schlafly: My own personal account.

Mr. Raker: well, that's all.

Tripp
fols
Allison:
11/9/'17.

1/9/17

1 +

Mr. Johnson. Brother Allison, please take the witness stand.

STATEMENT OF REV. GEORGE M. ALLISON, OF EAST ST. LOUIS, ILL.

The witness was sworn by Lir. Johnson.

Mr. Johnson. Please give the stenographer your name.

Mr. Allison. George W. Allison.

Mr. Johnson. Your place of residence?

Mr. Allison. 923 Summit Avenue, East St. Louis, Ill.

Mr. Johnson. Your calling in life?

Mr. Allison. Minister of the Gospel.

Mr. Johnson. ... hat church?

Mr. Allison. First Baptist Church.

Mr. Johnson. How long have you resided in East St.

Louis?

Mr. Allison. Four years and a half.

Mr. Johnson. During that time you have had the pastorate of a church?

Ir. Allison. Yes, sir.

Mr. Johnson. Will you please, in your own way, tell all that you may know leading up to the evident unfortunate conditions which have existed in East St. Louis?

Mr. Allison. I have known of affairs in East St. Louis for a number of years. Formerly I was a railroad man. I roledo, worked in this torm on one of the trunk lines, the St. Louis and Jestern Railway, and through that channel I became intimately acquainted with a lot of conditions in East St. Louis. When I came here as the pastor of the First Baptist Church, I had no idea of entiring into any investigations or digging

into the corrupt side of the city life, because that life had become abhorrent to me. I found it a great deal more pleasant to sit in my study, with the best of books, away from such things as that; it was more to my taste and my liking. And for two years that I was pastor of the mmm church here. I simply satisfied myself with preaching to the folks that came to my church.

Mr. Foss. Before you came here, where were you? Mr. Allison. Mirion, Illinois, three years and a half. FI was aroused to the deplorable conditions in East St. Louis first by young men. Two of them were members of my church, both them want with families. who had lost money in gambling houses, and came to me for aid. One young man had lost upwards of 4200 in a gambling house in Madison, Ill. That is over in Madison County. He had come to me and got me to come to the bank and go on his note for 575 to have a child operated on. I did it in good faith and the note became due. and it hadn't been paid. The bank called me about it. I got in touch with this young man. He said that there had simply been some reverses. I hadknown this young man previously, and had some intimate acquaintance with him which led me to be suspicious. So when the note became due the next time and it wasn't paid. I paid the interest on it and had it renewed and assured them it would be paid before it came due again. Then I went after him and made him confess to me that he had been gambling. I had him give me the name of the place; told me all about it. I went and woke this gambler up at his home in Madison, talked the situation over with him, and finally by making a Believer out of him. I made him come

across with that young fellow's money. He paid the note at the bank. Then I may began to realize that the corrupt conditions of the City of East St. Louis were affecting the work of my church. A Then there came to me another instance of a young man who had lost considerable money and had borrowed money from all the loan sharks in East St. Louis and was hopelessly tied up. I felt my way into that situation. I made personal investigations of it. I visited the place myself. I became thoroughly satisfied that the officials of the City of East St. Louis knew all about the existence of that gainbling house, because it was just within a block or two of the very place we are now. It was across the street from a member of the Police Board; it was a notorious place; it was known as the Cahokia Athletic Club. I dealt a little more carefully with this second young man, because he was an exceptionally bright lad, and a high school graduate. There wisn't anything mean about him at all, and I knew that something had been done to rope him. The name of this place, as I say, was the Cahokia Athletic Club, and he told me about receiving a nice little embossed card, an invitation to become a member of the club. So after I had gotten on the in-I got money enough from side of the thing, I went farther. this gambler to pay off all the loan sharks that this young fellow owed. I told the gambler that I knew there was no use to go to the city officials; I knew they knew he was there; I didn't want to disturb him; didn't want to get into the limelight in the newspapers to appear that a place had been raided and nothing to be gained by it. I knew he main would be doing business at the same old stand in a few days, but

I wanted to do something practical that would help that young fellow. I also knew that if I got it this way, that would brand that young fellow as a smitch, and he wouldn't dare to go back to the gembling houses, and I have every reason to believe he never has gone back.

Then there came to me someletters from mothers--- of course, a little of this thing that I am telling you had, some of it, rotten ent into the newspapers, and the minute that my name was mentioned and got before the public, I began to receive letters from mothers about their girls. I have quite a number of them. They are heartrending appeals.

Then a newspaper reporter here in town came to me and began to suggest the emistence of certain things, and telling me about them, and I made two or three trips with his to investigate, but always when I went with the reporter , my name came out in the paper. I didn't want the notoriety of the thing. I wented to get the facts. I know if they found out I was doing it. I know what it meant, that it would simply book my plans for getting further information, so I began to work single-handeily. I took some men into my confidence. and I found out that when certain men knew about things, everybody else knew about them. So I kept eliminating and cutting off, lopping off, until I did get to a place where I had a system of finding out things in East St. Louis that I did find out. I visited most all of the houses of prostitution, checked up everything carefully, and magast when I got the information all in my hands, knew what I was talking about, then I began to go to the officials and put things up to them, but always met with a denial, telling me that such things couldn't be. ..ell, of course it became so interesting to me then that I wanted to find out just how much involved the city officials were in the thing. I knew that I---that is, I realized that I couldn't do anything. I wasn't thoroughly familiar with the laws along certain lines controlling such operations. It never occurred to me to go to an attorney to find out definitely about those things until I happened to get a close acquaintance with an attorney here in town who became a fast friend of mine, who hooked up with me solidly, and did give me a lot of valuable information.

These dance halls that I am telling you about existed here—they were—I have visited them when there were upwards to 300 young people—girls 13, 14, 15, 16 years old, in short dresses, middles, hair ribbons in their mann hair, dancing in themidst of drunken revelry—a horrible thing. I think the dance hall still exists, but it was one of the most dis reputable ones in town, the Labor Temple up here on Collinsville Avenue. I visited that thing myself; saw what was going on. However, there weren't so many young girls there. Whitentirah

Mr. Johnson. while that --- if you will permit an interruption --- while that temple has the name of Labor Temple." it is privately owned and is not owned by the labor people?

If. Allison. No; the laboring people---I know some of the laboring men here in town personally with whom I have talked, and one of the men. Mr. Johns, who is head of the Carpenters' Union here in town, I maider him a very fine gentleman. He has told me that he didn't approve of such conditions as existed there, and had gone to that place and

found the door locked so he couldn't get into his office.

Now, I took those things up with the City officials,

and they refused---

Mr. Cooper. Tell first what you saw there.

Mr. Allison. At those places?

Mr. Cooper. Yes.

Mr. Allison. Well, all sorts of indecent dancing; serving drinks after hours, brawls, things that were vulgar beyond anybody's desire to describe. There was very vulgar dancing; everything suggestive; bad language; and such as that.

Mr. Raker. Did the girls drink too?

Mr. Allison. Oh, yes. Now, those were mostly women that were there. I wouldn't classify them as girls. Some of them were 18 or 19 years old. But I hardly think---there might have been one girl there that night possibly 17 years old. But these other dance halls were out at the edge of the city here, and they were crowded with young mmm girls. some of them were with knee dresses on.

Mr. Cooper. ..ers they drinking too?

Mr. Allison. Oh, yes; drinking---now I have understood that drinks were served to them through their companions. Some one man would order a dozen bottles of beer to be put on a table, and then girls would gather around it and drink it---yes, and not only drinking beer, but dancing in very indecent positions with drunken men. The water closet there---there was just one entrance to it, with a pur partition up between, and the ladies on one side and the men on the other; the most indecent thing that you could

imagine.

These letters that I received from mothers were in reference to their girls who were going to the bad. One mother, that I have in mind now, has three daughters that have been ruined in these places.

Then the situation --- of course now all of this happened at this place before our municipal election.

Mr. Johnson. What year?

Mr. Allison. The city election we had last spring.

As I say, I talked these things all over with the city officials, and before election time I had every promise in the world that all of these conditions would be eliminated. After the election was over, the fruits were not forthcoming, and then we began to---I kept up the investigation and threshed out all manner of things. By that time I had gotten in touch with mm Attorney General Brundage, of this state, through a common interest in this one mother who had lost the three daughture girls. I want to tell you the story of one of these girls. I think it ought to be made public.

Mr. Cooper. I shall not interrupt again.

Mr. Allison. I will be gled for you to interrupt me.

Er. Cooper. I want you to tell just such instances as you are going to tell. You also said you unearthed other disreputable things. Just give the specific instances as nearly ac you can, and all about it.

Mr. Allison. I will.

Mr. Cooper. The Committee wants it.

Mr. Allison. I will; and I shall give you the conversations of prominent men, such as we got through detective in-

vestigations, and things that were contacted, things that we know were true, and things that the not themselves confessed to me were true when they were faced about it.

Mr. Foss. Before you start, were you doing this work personally yourself?

Er. Allison. Yes, sir.

Mr. Foss. You had not --- there was no committee working with you, was there?

Mr. Allison. Not in the start.

Mr. Foss. Alright.

Hr. Allison. I want to say this, though, in justice--there is a lot of good men here in town who have contributed
no little amount, and in justice to one man whose name has
been mentioned, but who is dead, that was Mr. W. C. Thrasher.
He was the treasurer of my organization in the end that we
had investigating things here, and he and one other man in
town---and I don't want to mention the other man's name because of injury that might come to him---were the largest
contributors. They financed the thing, and I think that is
the reason why Mr. Thrasher was not appointed a member of
the Police Board, because it was known that he was active
and knew all of these things.

Mr. Cooper. You started to tell the story of one of these young girls.

hr. Allison. One of these young girls had been taken--that is, she had, through the influence of her two older
sisters, she began going to one of these disreputable dance
hells. It was a dance hall owned by John Peters and his

wife, at 4200 Bond Avenue. She was barely 15 years old. That was two years ago last election, the first time that Mr. Mollman was elected. We have---all of these things could be had through the former State's Attorney of this county. Charles Webb. This girl was locked in a room by Mr. Peters.

Mr. Johnson. In what house?

Mr. Allison. At that place, 4200 Bond avenue; at that dance hall. They had rooms upstairs. She was looked in a room, and the girl's sister tells me that nine men were sent upstairs to that girl who was barely 15 years old. One saloon keeper, this town slept all night with the girl and I think he is---

Mr. Raker. The same night that the mine had been there? Mr. Allison. That was the night of the election that this saloon keeper multip slept all night with her. And the city officials know that and the man has been running a saloon here in term since. This wirl became---she got in a critical condition.

Mr. Johnson. Pregnant, you mean?

If. Allison. Yes, sir; she became pregnant and they shipped her to Sacremento, California, where she gave birth to a baby boy. But before they shipped her to California, the father of that little girl and Paul Kisselbach, a constable, took the girl and the three of them went before Charles webb, the State's Attorney of this county, and told the whole story; had the girl tell it. The girl made a sworn statement to all of those things. Nothing was ever done about it at all. Not one move was made.

Mr. Cooper. Does that saloon keeper still run a saloon here?

Mr. Allison. I think he is.

Mr. Cooper. The police authorities knew all about it?

Mr. Allison. I don't know about the police authorities knowing about it; Mayor Mollman knew it. I have told him about it personally. Now, that is one case.

Now, we have been trying to get that girl back here. The girl's folks are here in town, can corroborate every statement, and I have asked Mr. Charles Webb, through some friends---I askedhim for those things off of his files.

and I did it to let him know that I knew it,

more than anything else. I need not tell you that I didn't get it.

Mr. Foster. Mas there nothing done by the fint State's Attorney?

Mr. Allison. Not a thing done.

Mr. Foster. At that time?

Mr. Allison. Not a thing.

Mr. Foster. To prosecute the guilty parties?

Mr. Allison. Not a thing to prosecute them.

Mr. Raker. Before you leave that incident, you say there were rooms up stairs over their dance hall?

Mr. Allison. Yes, sir.

Mr. Raker. And were they used for assignation purposes?

Mr. Allison. Yes, sir.

Mr. Raker. There were not young girls there?

Mr. Allison. Yes, sir; that is where this girl was ruined. It was for general assignation purposes. That is

what it was there for.

Now that was one of the cases that I stall tell you about, and it was the mother of this girl who carried this thing to Attorney General Brundage. After they had failed to get any response from the city officials or the county officials, she wrote a hither letter to Attorney General Brundage, which he has on his files, begging that something be done; pleading if there isn't some man in the State of Illinois who would enforce the law. That is the very thing that brought Attorney General Brundage into this county?

Mr. Cooper. .hem?

Mr. Allison. He came in here last---early last spring. he began his work here in the county.

Mr. Cooper. You said there were other incidents?

this thing happened. I took the matter up of these disreputable places. I went before the Mayor. I explained to
him that the Attorney Ceneral was working here in the county
to clean the county, and I appealed to him to chip in and
cooperate with him. Mayor Mollman wrote Attorney General
Brundage a letter thanking him for what he was undertaking
to do in the county and offering him his support, anything
that he could do; thankins police department or other wise, to
help in the clean-up. Now then, I knew that these very
folks that the Attorney General was after out in the county,
that they largely lived mammin here in toum---that is, they
played back and forth. So we began at once to get some specific thing for the city officials to do to contribute to the

betterment of the situation. We went into the question of the dance halls in town and then these disreputable localities. I took that matter up with the Mayor and the at first he seemed to approve of it and said that he would get after these fellows, but he seemed to think that I was mistaken was and/exaggerating the actual conditions. We employed five datectives, reputable men. We were careful in securing our men.

ir. Johnson. Local men?

Mr. Allison. No, sir. We got men that we felt we surely could trust. We put them in touch with the situation and investigated these localities. .. le found out the awful condition that was here, and then we undertook to get speeific evidence as to whether the olmers of the property lmow what was going on there; the agents for the property, and the lessor of the property. We manted to find out whether the people who had anything to do with that property really kmew what was going on. So these detectives staged a scene-set up a proposition first to buy the property. They did that to be sure/so they could find out who owned it. Then they went farther and undertook to lease it. They knew they couldn't buy, but they found out the owner that way; found out that he lived in New York City. One of these places --they speak of it as Commercial Hotel --- at the corner of 3rd and Missouri Avenue, of whom Canavan and Tarlton are the agents for it, and it is leased to the Central Brewery---

- In. Cooper. Prominent men in political circles here?
- The Allison. All of them; yes, sir.
- Mr. Cooper. Among your prominent citizens?

Mr. Allison. Yes, sir.

Mr. Cooper. Leading citizens?

Mr. Allison. Yes, sir.

Er. Foss. Wasn't he on the stand?

Mr. Raker. Canavan was on the stand; Tarlton hasn't been yet.

If. Allison. So we took the matter up then with the people, who were in the place, to buy them out. A man by the name of Stewart was running the saloon, and a Greek whose name I don't recall was running the hotel, the rooming house. We got a complete invoice from them and the detectives' reports can verify this. In that invoice were two women as chattels, with their earning capacity per day.

Lr. Cooper. In the inventory were two women as what?

Mr. Allison. As part of the property.

Mr. Cooper. Chattels?

Mr. Allison. Yes, sir; with their earning capacity per day.

Mr. Cooper. As prostitutes?

Er. Allison. Yes, sir.

Mr. Cooper. In this Commercial Hotel?

Mr. Allison. Yes, sir.

Mr. Cooper. Of Mich Canavan and Tarlton, arm among your leading citizens, are the agents?

Mr. Allison. Yes, sir.

Then we wanted to find out if Mr. Stuernagel, who is a representative minning for the Brewery---we wanted to know if he knew what was going on in there, and we also wanted to know if Canavan and Carlton knew what was going on in there.

so in the buying of the Greek and Mr. Stewart out -- we sent these five detectives out to Mr. Stuernagel to be sure that he knew what was going on, and we so satisfied curselves. The conversation between Mr. Stuermagel and these detectives. as I recall it, from the reports, was that --- and those reports have been seen by, for instance, the Attorney General of this state has had these in his possession --- the reports read like this: That these men who were going to buy out the Greek and Mr. Stewart wanted the assurance from Mr. Stuernagel, the man from whom they would rent, who was the representative of the Brewery --- they wanted the assurance from him that they could run such a place as the Greek and Mr. Stewart were running it. He assured them that they could. He said he would like for them to buy Stewart out anyway; that he had been trying to get Stewart to go into another part of the city and establish a similar business; that he man could work up a proposition like that to a great degree, and that he hal another building in another part of the town that he would be glad to put him in. Mr. Stuernagel told these men that so far as he was concerned. he didn't give a damn what they did there so they didn't commit murder. Then they said to him, "We want some way--you have surely got some way that you are convinced through the city administration that you can operate this business, or that those fellows can". "Well," he said, "now I'll tell you, Locke Tarlton is the political boss of this town and he owns the Mayor boots and baggage. I'll call him on the 'phone and send you men down there to him, and he can tell you. You can just talk it out with him". So they went down to see Lr. Tarlton, having been sent there by telephone --- having been

given a telephone date with them. They went to Lir. Tarlton. Mr. Tarlton told them that he aidn't have anything to do with that place over there. All the interest he had in minm it was getting \$208 a month, the rent on it, and he felt sure that they could continue the business there, and he satisfied them to the fact that Stewart and the Greek were conducting the business and getting along alright. He was very crafty about it. He said this, however --- he said, "This Mayor is a dammed fine guy, and at heart he is wet. He never did want to close the saloons even on Sunday, but there came an agitation here on the subject and he told the saloon keepers that for a time, at least, they must close their front doors, but they could work their side doors and back doors. But", he said, "the dammed bastards didn't have sense enough to protings with the cooperate with the Mayor and so they left the front doors open and so he had to clamp the lid on and close them on Sunday". No: that is the inside of that thing.

Now Mr. Tariton has confessed to me that that conversation took place. We will get to that a little later on.

Now then, ---

Mr. Foss. Was anyone present at the time you had that conversation?

Mr. Allison. With Mr. Tarlton?

Mr. Foss. Yes.

Mr. Allison. Mr. Mollman. It was in the Mayor's office.

Now then, when we found out this situation and we saw

that it was very evident that these non weren't going to---

they weren't going to clean the city. The only thing they would do was what they were driven to do. They went no step at all. They thwarted on every hand. They tried to tell me that things didn't exist that I knew existed. For instance, it got so that some of the men on the police force talked with me. The man they had in here as night chief into seemed to be---

Mr. Johnson. What was his name?

Its Allison. Con Hickey. He was the man through hom it seems that all of this stuff was allowed to go on. For instance, here is one thing that the policemen have told me about, that they had apprehended a fellow with a sack of sugar. A man stole a sack of sugar; was brought up to the station with the sack of sugar. The fellow was put into the coop for over night and the sack of sugar was that into the patrol was nad sent out to Mr. Mickey's home. (Laughter).

Mr. Johnson. Order must be preserved in here, and those who are not going to maintain order must get out.

Mr. Cooper. A policeman told you that?

Mr. Allison. Yes, sir; and it was the common than talk around.

Another instance was a man apprehended that had stolen two bolts of silk. The silk was left---I think this came in under the day man's time of service---and when they got ready for trial they demanded that this silk, of course, be produced. One bolt of it was gone. And they got after one of the sergeants over there about it, and he said that he knew where into the silk was, and so it finally twisted around till they sent out to Hickey's house and

got the bolt of silk.

Mr. Johnson. What do you mean by holding him up?
Mr. Allison. That is, robbing him. They had their guns
drawn on him; had him with his hands up. They were going to
go through his cash drawer. He pushed the door open and
shot one of them.

Mr. Johnson. .ho did?

Mr. Allison. This policemen; and caught the other fellow before he could turn, of course. He made him drop his revolver. The man that he shot was an ex-convict from the penitentiary out on parole. This man was sent back to the penitentiary within a few days. The other man was a young fellow here in town, a vicious character. He brought him down to the station. Mr. Gerold went on his bond for \$500, I think.

Mr. Cooper. Mr. Gerold was formerly city treasurer during whose administration that large sum of money belonging to the city was lost?

Mr. Allison. I think it was the same man. Anyway, it was Berola that went on his bond. I don't know whether it was the young Gorold's father or which one it was, but it was Corold that went on his pond. He said in two days he met

the young fellow on the street and he smiled at him. He said, "what's the matter"? "Oh", he said, "I'm out of it". Now this policeman told me that that young fellow's trial never did come to any trial, and he said, "I know that the bond was never forfeited".

Now, those are the things that we were running into, and we knew that it was hopeless to get any kind of law enforcement from this proposition here.

Mr.Nelson A. Schsin, who is president of the police board, came to me one day and said. "I would be glad to cooperate with you on cleaning this town up". I had made no pretentions to wanting to clean the town up, but the condition was such that I knew something ought to be done. So I thought I would try him out. I wasn't going to tell him anything till I felt him out to know that he was sincere. I found Ir. Schein a very sincere man, and he minimized did not double cross me any place in any of our dealings. I use that term "double cross" because it is perfectly understood in this town.

I said to Mr. Schein, "Well, now, if you are sincere in this thing, I will tell you one thing that ought to be done. You ought to take the bar away from that Bar Tenders and Waitresses Union." It was directly across from the Illmo Hotel. I said, "I sat with five the men last night and saw many young girls go up those stairs with group men". There had been murder committed up there; nothing much had been done about it at all. It was known as the "bucket of blood". That was the name of it.

Mr. Adlison. Across from the Illmo Hotel. It was over

House's Hardware Store.

Mr. Raker. Is it there now?

Mr. Allison. No. sir; it isn't there now. It is down over Frank wyant's saloon on the corner of Broadway and Main Street.

Mr. Raker. The same "bucket of blood"?

Mr. Allison. Largely the same "bucket of blood", I guess---I don't know--but it was all that it claimed to be at that time.

So I suggested to him it would be a good thing for the city officials to take that bar out of there. I had found out that they didn't have a license; that they were just running the thing. So within a night or two they raided it, and, as I remember, the newspaper report of the account had it that something up close to 100 men and women were gotten in that raid. Then it broke the place up. They went out of business for a time, at least, and since then they have moved down to the place that I tell you about.

Mr. Foss. How long ago was it that it was broken up?

Do you remember approximately?

Mr. Allison. That was early in the spring.

Mr. Foss. This year?

Mr. Allison. Yes, sir; this year. Then I began to deal with Mr. Schein. I was impressed with him. I had never known him intimately, but I became impressed with his sincerity. Mr. Mallace Mathins, a close and warm friend of mine, was president of the police board, and I felt quite sure that Mr. Mathins didn't approve of a lot of things that were going on. We made a trip into Southern Illinois one day, and

while going down on the train I had a long conversation about the conditions that existed here, and I found out that he was fairly well informed on all of them, and that he resented it---he didn't just tell me in so many words, but I gathered it from what he said, that he found himself hampered with at all kinds of turns to enforce the law.

After this other thing that happened. It. Schein said to me--he asked me if I knew anything about other conditions, and I told him yes, that there was a great deal of prostitution here, and it was flagrant--awful. He and Mr. Lathing suggested to me that I plan a raid, and I told them I would under certain conditions. They wanted to know what the conditions were, and I told them that it would be under the condition that members of the police force would know absolutely nothing about it at all, and that there would be no publicity of the affair, that is, that my name wouldn't be published in connection with the raid.

I net them at a luncheon and we planned the raid.

I net them Saturday noon and the raw raid we planned---I was to met them at 7:30 that evening. We met. The plans that we had worked out perfectly. I got shold of some soldier uniforms and put one of them on the president of the police board; I put another on; and I got two young men out of the camp who had gotten passes, and they were both ministerial students, young fellows that we could trust, and the four of us went out on our checking-up expedition. The plan was this: We went to the places, took the address of the place; got the number of innates; found out who the keeper was; and if we bought liquor, we got the charges openific, -selling liquor

without a license, keepings keeper of an immoral house. Instantes of immoral houses and frequenters. We got those specific charges all arranged with the place it was at and the number of people that were there. We checked the thing up. I think we had somewhere--if my memory does not fail me, we had seventy five.

Mr. Johnson. Houses?

Mr. Allison. No; 75 individuals.

Mr. Johnson. Women?

Mr. Allison. Men and women.

Then I turned the thing over to them and suggested the plan was that they were going together to the police force and tell them to go to a certain address and get a certain number of people, and insist that they do it. Well, that was on Saturday might. Sunday morning it was in the morning paper, all about the whole thing, and my name was connected with it as leading the raid; and told all about the method employed and everything. I understand the Mayor was down to m that night. Mr. Schein tells me that he met the Mayor on the street. The Mayor found out about it, and he was very much angered to think that we would do such a thing as that.

Mr. Johnson. Is that the present Mayor or a former one? Mr. Allison. Yes, sir; Mr. Mollman.

Som So on Honday when I went down town, when these cases were to come up-I think they had all leaked out on the road to the station but about 35---I don't think there were over 35 of them ever brought to trial. I watched the thing closely just to see what would be done withink about it. Some of the letestives told me that they had let a certain woman

go because she had tipped them off as to how to raid another . place at some other time, and they felt like she had been a friend to them, and that is why they owed it to befriend her. One of these women, Mark Hall, whose place we checked up that night, had been running all the time, and it was current talk that the man at the police station, Mr. Tom Hurly, was giving her specific directions, and that he was --- I have heard it said that he was helping her finance the institution. Anyway, I was interested to know just how many they got to the station; how many they brought to trial and what the result would be. When these cases came up, Mr. Mollman said to the City Attorney, in my presence -- he said, "Now, Tom" -- that was Tom Fekete ----- was want to keep these cases all in the city jurisdiction. Don't make any charges that will take the cases out of the city. I think we ought to get about \$100 out of that erowd. " Well, that told me the way the thing was going, and it did go that may. They were brought in to cour' and they were all urged to plead guilty. This woman, Marie Hall, that I am telling you about --- that was the third time that she had been arrested, the third charge within less than thirty days on selling liquor without a license---the fines for selling liquor without a license were 225 and costs; and the fines were stayed. The paid 41.85 costs. That was done in Justice Eggman's court. They were going to stay the costs and Justice Desman said, "What am I soing to get out of this? I have got to get the costs out of it. You are not going to ga throw me off of this". So they decided then they would pay the cests. That is that they p id for selling liquor without a licence--- 1.85.

Mr. Cooper. Didn't they pay the \$25 fine?

Mr. Allison. No. sir. I am corrected---Eggman is Police Magistrate.

Mr. Cooper. Yes; you want to give his full title. How, just a minute; what do you mean by "staying" a fine?

Mr. Allison. Mr. just leave the thing there unpaid on the promise that they are going to do better. Then the keepers of the places---

Mr. Johnson. Does that mean sell more or less? (Laughter).

Mr. Allison. Well, I don't know. Then the keepers of them places of ill fame were fined \$10 and costs. Some of them paid their fines, and I think mm in an instance or two the fines were stayed with them. Inmates and frequenters were fined \$5.00 and costs.

Mr. Foster. Let me ask you there, who has the power to stay a fine in the City of East St. Louis?

Mr. Allison. The City Attorney is the only one that has.

Mr. Foster. That has the power---not the Mayor and City Council?

Mr. Allison. I den't know whether anybody has or not.

I have heard it said that nobody has the right to stay a fine.

Mr. Fpster. And in this case it was the City Attorney?

Mr. Allison. The City Attorney and the Police Magistrate.

Mr. Cooper. The Supreme Court of the United States decided not a great thile ago that even a United States Judge hadn't the right, after conviction in due form by jury, to suspend sentence and allow the criminal convicted to go free.

Lir. Johnson. That is in violation of the right to pardon.

Mr. Cooper. Exactly. Now then, there cannot be any statute, can there, or ordinance, which leaves it discretionary, whether a penalty like that should be paid or not?

If. Allison. I have been told when I faced certain folks with that statement, they told me that there was a statute that allowed a staying of a fine---that it was at the option of the City Attorney to stay a fine in cases of plea of guilt. Now, I don't know whether that is so or not.

Mr. Raker. It all depends on the statute.

Mr. Cooper. Yes, sir; it all depends on the statute and something depends on the City Attorney.

Mr. Allison. Yes; certainly.

Mr. Raker. Doesn't seem that anything was dependable on any of those fellows.

Mr. Johnson. Go ahead, Mr. Allison.

Mr. Allison. So there were two young men who were caught in this net that night, frequenters.

Im. Johnson. . The night that you went around on the search?

Le. Allison. The night that we made the raid---who refused to plead guilty. They stood trial. It was very interesting trial. It was such a trial as Justice Townsend described to you here. Hr. Alexander Flannigan as the attorney for the defendants, and there was no plea to it. There was no nothing. The jury was gotten, and the case was heard. Then you got up there---for instance, two detectives took the witness stand---the two men that were slain, Coppedge and Modley---they took the stand and swore that the place that these men were in was a place of ill fame; that these men were there; that they were caught there. Of course, they made

the plea---one of them did---that he roomed there, and that this other young man had called up there to visit him. The jury was out about five minutes, and I heard a lot of laughter, and they brought in a plea of not guilty.

Er. Cooper. A verdict of not guilty?

Mr. Allison. A verdict of not guilty---thank you. And then they immediately adjourned to the Court Bar, minksket where there was a lot of uproars, laughter and I suppose drinking to the health of the men who had won their case.

Mr. Foster. Was that a jury trial?

Er. Allison. That was a jury trial. I especially noticed the way in which the jury was picked. There were one or two men brought in who were respectable men. I know them. They said that they didn't know anything about the case, and they could give a fair and impartial hearing to the evidence, and I was armsed at one statement. Mr. Flannigan asked one young man---he said, "You are a truant officer, aren't you"? "Yes". "Well, you can step aside". It seemed to be that a man that was connected with the School Board in any way at all wasn't eligible to serve in on the jury.

In. Cooper. That would indicate they didn't want either intelligence or integrity on the jury?

Im. Allison. No; I was thoroughly convinced that they didn't want any such men of that stamp on the jury.

Mr. Foster. Tell us more about the selection of that jury if you know, Mr. Allison. I would like to know just how they selected them.

If. Allison. well, they called them in and they were questioned, and those that were selected --- all that were selected seemed to answer the questions in a uniform way. They

know that to say; they didn't know anything about it; didn't know the defendant in the case; had no prejudice in the metter, and could give an absolute, fair and impartial hearing. There wasn't any question about whether they could give a fair trial or not.

Mr. Foss. It indicated that they had had great experience as jury men, did it?

Mr. Allison. They indicated to me that they were soldiers of the cause.

Mr. Cooper. And acquainted with Mr. Flannigan?

Mr. Allison. Well, they knew him. They all said that they knew the attorneys --- the attorney for the defense, they all knew him.

Mr. Raker. .. ho was presecuting?

Mr. Allison. The City Attorney Fekete.

Mr. Foster. Did these jurors appear as the business men or better element of the people here? Do you know about that?

Mr. Allison. No; they were not the better element of the folks in East St. Louis.

Er. Foster. They were men picked up?

Mr. Allison. Men that they had picked up.

That was the last of the trying of all the cases. The rest of them, as I say, man pleaded guilty. I was asked by one of the citizens---Wr. Schein told me that he was thoroughly disgusted with the thing; that they hadn't imposed the fines that should have been imposed; and that he wasn't pleaced with the way the whole thing had been conducted. I was asked what I thought about it by---I think it was Mayor Mollman, who said, "well, Reverend, we gave it to them, didn't

we?" I said, "Yes, you gave it to them". ""hy", he said.
"what do you think about it?" I said, "D you want me to
really tell you?" He said, "hy sure". "hell," I said,
"if the Lord will forgive me for this one participation, I
will never be guilty again". "hat do you mean"? I said,
"I simply mean that I feel as though I had helped you to put
the fear of God in the hearts of these poor devils so you
could more easily shake them down".

Mr. Cooper. That meant get money out of them?

Mr. Allison. Yes. Every sinner then---that was the beginning of the lack of cordiality between the Mayor and I.

Now, back again to that question of these hotels and to corroborate a thing that I said a moment ago, that Mr. Mollman and Mr. Tarlton were thoroughly familiar with these things. This man Stewart became so course in the manipulation of his Commercial Hotel that the Mayor himself took his saloon license away from him at the demand of the Police Board, Mr. Schein and Mr. "atkins. This is Mr. Schein's own story to me. And then there are other conversations that I have had with the Mayor and Mr. Schein which corroborated it. The Mayor promised Mr. Schein that he never hagan again would give a license to run a saloon -- for Stewart to run a saloon in that place. Well, the license was kept away for two or three months, but they continued to sell liquor over there. Je had a check on it. The fact about the matter in this invoice that these detectives had, and in the complete description of it they had shown them all about the thing --- how they handled it; how they tilted the lid on Sunday; had taken them into all the ramifications of it and showed them where they

had their gambling room and everything else. It was all staged.

How the Mayor had promised Mr. Schein that he would not give the license back in that place. As I say, about two months went by and he did give it back. And two nights about after it was given back, one of the city detectives was shot over there in the rear of that place. It was——the story came out that he was shot by a negro whom he was trying to apprehend. I have heard that it was a little bit different from that.

Mr. Cooper. ..hat did you hear?

Mr. Allison. I have heard that it was sort of a fuss they had over there and that he was shot by someone else. They didn't give any names as to who had shot him, but I was led to believe that it was all through that place there that he was shot. His name was Leville.

Now then, after the Mayor had written to the Attorney General offering him his help and when we had---

In. Cooper. One moment. Do you know where we can get a copy of that invoice or the invoice itself in which those mentioned two prostitutes were/mixed as chattels?

Mr. Allison. If I cannot get you a copy, I think I can get you at least two or three of the detectives who would make sworn statements as to those things. I can do that.

Mr. Johnson. And they were valued according to their caily earning capacity?

Mr. Allison. Yes, sir; the average earning capacity of those women was \$7.00 a day.

Mr. Johnson. Did they get any part of it, or do you know?

Mr. Allison. The women?

Mr. Johnson. Yes.

12. Allison. What Well, I don't know about what part they got.

ir. Johnson. You don't know whether these men kept it all from them or not?

Mr. Allison. No.

Mr. Foss. Did you ever make any inquiries as to the number of houses of that character there were in this town?

Ifr. Allison. The number of houses of prostitution?

Er. Foss. Yes.

Mr. Allison. Not completely; I didn't have the nerve to go into the colored districts.

Mr. Cooper. Now, let me see if I get this. These women were sold as part of the invoice of that property?

1. Allison. They were given as part of the invoice.

E. Cooper. They proposed to sell them?

Mr. Allison. They were to be turned over with the property.

Er. Cooper. And 37.00 a day?

Mr. Allison. They had an earning capacity of \$7.00 per day; that was their average.

Er. Cooper. And that was part of the money, of course -- some of that money would be used to pay the rent of that hotel?

Mr. Allison. Yes, sir.

Mr. Cooper. And that rent was collected by Tarlton--- by Canavan and Tarlton?

Hr. Allison. It was collected from Stewart and the Greek by Mr. Stuernagel, or the Central Brewery, and Mr. Canavan and Mr. Tarlton took their money from the Brewery. The Brewery had it leased from Canavan and Tarlton. Canavan and Tarlton were the agents for Mr. A. E. Hollingsworth of New York City.

Mr. Cooper. Mr. Tarlton is now the president of your Leves Board, isn't he?

Ur. Allison. Yes, sir; Mr. Canavan is Superintendent of Public Improvements in the City of East St. Louis -- I think that is his official title.

Mr. Cooper. He didn't include the rousible improvement of that hotel in public improvements, did he?

Mr. Allison. No, sir.

I was beginning to tell nor of my relation to Mr. Mollman and Mr. Tarlton as specifically related to that hotel.

Lr. Raker. Showing that Tarlton knew these conditions?

Mr. Allison. Showing he did know them; and he told me he knew them. The Attorney General discovered that in the clean-up he was making in the county that these firings discreputable places in East St. Louis were vitally related to those things, so he writes Mr. Mollman a letter calling his attention to the fact that he had written to him offering him his help in at such a time that help would become needed.

Mr. Cooper. That is, the Mayor had written?

Attorney General on what he was doing in the county and offering his services. That was in the spring before Mr. Mollman was elected. Now then, the Attorney General writes ---

Mr. Foss. Before he was first elected?

Mr. Allison. Before he was elected the second time.

Mr. Foss. That was when --- what year was that?

12. Allison. Lest spring, last April.

The Attorney General wrote to Mr. Mollman and asked him. calling his attention to the fact that he had offered his help and cited specifically these disreputable hothes hotels; named them --- the Southern Hotel, the Commercial Hotel, the Arlington Hotel, the Home Hotel, the Weiss think he named seven of them --- the Savoy Hotel --- he named these hotels and stated to the Mayor that they had specific evidence and asked him to immediately close them because they were assignation houses. The Mayor received that letter and came to my home to see me. He came to my home one night and showed me the letter that he had received from the Attorney General, and asked me what I thought he should do. I told him there was only one thing for him to do and that was to immediately act upon the advice and the suggestion of the Attorney General. He said, "Well, of course I don't know anything about those places". I said, "Well, the Attorney General tells you that he does, and he tells you that he has the specific evidence. You have his letter stating that". And I wroad that he immediately take action. "Well" he said. "I want to see you". So he set a date for me to see him and talk it over with him. He said he would like for me to see him and Locke.

Mr. Foss. Locke?

The Allison. Locke Tarlton. So on Thursday before this riot on Sunday---it took place on Sunday---this was on Thurs-

32 t

day, just before July the 2nd. I met with the Mayor and Mr. Locke Tarlton in the Mayor's office and we had about a threehour conversation. I begun by telling them that I felt that they owed some consideration to my plea, because I had supported them in the municipal election in the spring. I didn't know how many votes I had delivered to them at all, but that was left for then to determine. I knew I had worked for them, and I felt they owed it to me to hear my plea to this matter. I began to tell them, and right away they begen to say that the things I was saying weren't so, and that the men detectives would lie and all of that and that the Attorney General --- oh, they said a lot of things accusing him of political notives and things like that. I said to Mr. Tarlton --- I said, "Mr. Tarlton, you must think I'm a fool to come into this office, in your presence, and tell you of a specific instance, if I don't kmo; something about the actual facts", and I said, "To prove to yor that I do know what I'm talking about, I'm going to quote your own conversation", and I up and fired it at him just what those detectives said that he said about the Mayor being a "darmed fine guy and at heart he was .et man and didn't intend to close the saloons on Sunday". I fired the thing at him and he started to raise up out of his chair, and he said. "I remember those dammed sons of bitches". I said, "Of course you remember them", and then he tried to get out of it by saying that he didn't mean to say it was so. "Well", I said, "It is a confession that it is so", and then I began to drill it into him, and I went after him hanner and tongs, and I finally drew from him this statement --- he said, "well,

Reverend,", he said, "the trouble about it is, the dammed city is just like it has always been". The Mayor arose and said, "Locke, Locke, you don't mean to say this town is like it has always been?" He said. "Yes, Mayor, it is just like it has always been". "Why, Locke, didn't I run these penitentiary birds and these buns and thugs out from the rear of the police station hare?", and Tarlton such laughed and said, "Yes, Mayor, you ran then out of there, but they are still in town; your old friends are all here, Mayor; they are all here". And Mollman said, "Well, I'll be dammed if I don't believe I'll join this 5rd Artillery and go to France". (Laughter).

Then Liv. Tariton sailed into me to ask me what I was going to do with the prostitutes. I at was the great problem. He told me that a school girl friend of his was in business here in torm, and a lot of things like that, and he got very vulgar. I guess he knew that it would be distasteful to me, but he emptied out --- I don't think he emptied all he had in him out on it, because it seemed to be very fluent language for the gentleman. And he powred it into me hot and heavy to know what we were going to do with all the prostitutes, and if he closed up the Commercial Hotel, what would be done with the girls --- things like that. I assured the gentleman that that wasn't our problem first hama; that our problem first hand was to enforce --- that the law makers of this country, it is to be presumed, had thought this thing out and they had decided that cortain things were a menace to the peace and prosperity of the community: and that it is also presumed that the enforcement of the law would restore a normal and rightful

condition, and "Now", I said, "the first thing for you to consider, and everybody else, is the enforcement of the law", and I said, "In harmony with that, I am serving on you a five-day notice now to abate that nuisance in that hotel, or we will close the thing up and nail it up for a year until you can't rent it for any purpose". That is under the new law which we have in this state today, under which you can do that. So I served notice on him, Canavan and Tarlton, agents of the building. I served one on him for Mr. Hollingsworth, the owner of the building, and got him to give me Mr. Hollingsworth's address. Then I begin to appeal to them to clean the town.

Ir. Johnson. Did you send notice to Mr. Hollingsworth? Mr. Allison. I did; I sent one by registered mail and I have the return registered eard from W. Hollingsworth. I began to appeal to them to clean this torm up. They said to me---Tarlton said to me, "Well", he said, "Reverend, go on of mail the darmed place up". I said, "No, that is not the manly thing; you ought to stop it yourself". The layor said, "well, let General Brundage come in here and let him go in and close it up, Reverend. de den't give a darm". I said, "Mayor, do you realize that what you are saying makes the very prima facie evidence vien which you can be taken out of office, for unlifeasance in office"? And he turned and looked at me for a moment and Ascid, "You're pursuing the course that everybody do n hare is pursuing relative to the Attorney General. If he can do it, you say let him do it. You have no regard for your oath of office and you aren't going to do the thing. You den't want to do it." Well, our conversation drifted

on. We didn't get anywhere, and I said this to them --- in the course of those remarks I said, "If you don't clean this town and get rid of this idle thug crowd that you have got here, you will have a riot here one of these days to / that little thing that you had in May will not be a patching." Now I had heard the rumors of this thing and there had been niggers continually assaulted; negroes were being assaulted every day and every night almost; they were being insulted from May 28th clear on up to the 2nd, and nobody was being arrested or convicted. That thing was going on, and I saw the drift of the thing, and I had heard these stories being eircuthat lated/har been gotten out among/white people that the negroes were going to nob the 4th of July picnic, women and children, and they had given it to the negroes that the white people were going to mob them on the 4th of July. E How. Mr. Mollman didn't intend to close those hotels. He wanted to know of me what he could do, if he thought it would be any good to go and see the Attorney General, and I said, "It might do arm you some good to go and see him; you'll find a splendid gentleman, but you'll find out that he will simply ask you to do what you ought to do". So that ended the conversation.

That is about the conditions as they led up to the riot.

Possibly there are some other things.

Mr. Cooper. Do you know about the barrel houses?

Mr. Allison. Oh, yes; I know about those. I could tell something about that. Then Mayor Mollman in the spring---this is in justice to him---make you know it is fair to say this--- I found it out too, to my disappointment---it isn't an easy

matter to enforce the law in East St. Louis, and one of the reasons why, it is a whole lot easier—a whole lot easier to let conditions be as they have been than it is to go in and do something. It is mighty rough sailing, because of the men who own the property that house this criminal class. How, in justice to the Mayor, when he started in to clean up this town, he used to come to me quite often, and I think as long as I am stayed in my pulpit and didn't think do too much, he would still have been my friend, but he asked me to help him and when I started in to help him I was too much help. (Laughter). He started to close these barrel houses, disreputable places. Now, Mr. Mollman told me that leading citizens of this town employed attorneys and came over here and camped on his trail and pleaded with him, and they brought all kinds of pressure to bear to letther reopen those barrel houses.

Mr. Gooper. Who were the "leading citizens" who did this?
Mr. Allison. He told me, for instance, that Mr. Curtis
Dodson---he said he told Mr. Dodson---it is just as well to
have this out---he told me that he want to Mr. Dodson and said,
"Mr. Dodson, you ought to be ashamed for running the sort
of place that you are running down there next to my
Harness Shop!" Dodson owned some property down there, and he
got after him about it. He told me himself that Mr. Joyce
had given him a great deal of trouble----r. Marrice Joyce
had given him a great deal of trouble about closing up
barrel houses that were in property that he owned, and revoking licenses of saloons. He also told me that Mr. Jordan,
here in town, a man who owns considerable property, had
camped on his trail. Those are the Trincipal ones that he

told me about. There is also some man real estate men here in town---I will think of the name now in a second---

Mr. Raker. While you are thinking about that, what is this double shuffle involved in that where they run two saloons, regre and white, with one license?

Mr.ison. I think that has been the rule so long and niggers running saloons without any license at all.

He has told me that **F**isher Brothers here in town give him a good deal of trouble, too, and that other real estate agents had given him considerable trouble about him taking licenses away from saloons that were in the property that they rented. And then breveries got after him.

if. Cooper. Just one second. I want to ask you if this is a fact: The law of the State of Illinois requires the fiving of a license for the selling of liquor, and provides a penalty for the violation of the law, doesn't it?

Ir. Allison. Yes, sir.

Mr. Cooper. These men owning these buildings in which there had been violations of the law, knowing that the law had been violated, went to the officers whose duty it was to enforce the law and asked them not to enforce it. Is that it?

Mr. Allison. That is Mr. Mollman's --- that was Mr. Moll-man's story to me of why he couldn't get along more rapidly with the enforcement of the law.

Mr. Cooper. In other words, same certain so-called prominent citizens would consent to the violation of the criminal law in this state, a law enacted by the legislature of the State to protect, if they could get money out of it?

Mr. Allison. That is it.

Mr. Raker. Thei y would be running business without paying this 500 or \$750 license. That is the condition, isn't it?

Er. Allison. Yes; that is true.

Mr. Raker. Who is Maurice V. Joyce, a real estate man?

Mr. Allison. No; he is an attorney here.

lf. Raker. Is that the same gentleman that was on the stand?

Mr. Allison. Yer, sir.

Mr. Raher. And Kisher, who is he?

Mr. Allison. Fisher Drothers are just real estate men here.

Mr. Raker. And these other men you named are men ---

Mr. Allison. Mt. Dodson lives out on Brighton Place; Mr. Jordan, I don't know just where he lives, but he owns property up at Collinsville and Illinois Avenues.

Mr. Raker. How go on with your barrel-house proposition.

Mr. Cooper. Just one more question, Mr. Allison, that awful story of that young girl and her sisters and the mother's letters——did you ever narrate that to any of these officials? Did they know anything about that?

Fr. Allison. I told that to Mr. Mollman. I gave him the name of the saloon keeper.

Mr. Cooper. And Mr. Webb?

Mr. Allison. No; I never namedulism nurrated it to Mr. Lebb, because Webb was out of office.

Mr. Cooper. The is the saloon keeper that has now got the

license here?

Mr. Allison. I think the name is Pickering -- now I want to get that correct -- that is the name, Pickering.

if. Cooper. How long after that was that place allowed to continue open there? Or is it open now?

Mr. Allison. No; it ran until the Attorney General got an injunction to close it.

ir. Baker. That is outside of the city?

It. Allison. Yes; it is out at the eige of the city. but she has a residence here in town, and she---we found out through our investigations that when there came very nearly being---about the time that the prohibition law was to go into effect in this state---that is, it seemed as though the it might go into effect---krs. Peters said that they stored several thousand dollars' worth of liquor in their basement to tide them over, and that---where the liquor was stored here in town was here in the city.

Mr. Cooper. You were telling about the barrel houses.

Er. Allison. Yes.

Mr. Foster. Let me see if I get that clear. This house that you speak of was located outside the city limits?

Ir. Allison. Just out at the edge.

--- Foster. Well, that would come under a county board --- the county board would grant a license in that case?

Mr. Allison. Yes. The woman lives inside the city. She has a residence here in the city, and it was in this residence that the liquor was stored to violate the law out at the edge of the town.

Mr. Raher. To make it clear right thore, the Attorney

General handled those cases outside of the city limits?

Wr. Allison. Yes.

Mr. Raker. And not within the city limits?

Er. Allison. No; he took Mr. Mollman's word that he would take care of the situation in the city.

I want to just say this word, too, about a thing Mr.

Mollman told me, and also told Mr. Gillette, who is the
attorney in Chicago for the Anti-Saloon League. Mr. Gillette
came to him town one day and we went to Mollman to talk to
him about the situation — in the County. It was deplorable.

This was before the Attorney General got into it. I was trying to present find som J dy through whom I could work to get
a hold on the situation. Mr. Gillette came in here and we
went to Mr. Mollman about it, and talked to him about it.
Mr. Mollman told Mr. Gillette and I both that he had a
gentleman's agreement with Mr. Schaumleffel that he would lay
off the conditions in the County and have nothing to do with
it, if Mr. Schaumleffel would allow him to run the city.

Mr. Raker. Who is Mr. Schaumleffel?

Hr. Allison. He is State's Attorney of St. Claire County.

Mr. Raker. Here?

Mr. Allison. Yes, sir. Now---

Mr. Raker. A gentleman's agreement?

Mr. Allison. A gentleman's agreement; yes.

Mr. Raker. Now what do you understand that gentleman's agreement was, what it meant?

Mr. Allison. Well, Mr. Mollman's own words were these, that each man would stay on his own bailiwick---that is, that

he wouldn't disturb these saloons out at the edge of town, and that Schaumleffel was to leave Mollman to handle affairs in town. That was the understanding. Mr. Schaumleffel was was to use his influence to support Mr. Mollman for re-election. The gentleman's agreement was had just before Mr. Mollman's election.

Mr. Raker. That would be, then, sometime this year?

Mr. Allison. Yes, sir. Then I did have some affidavits

---that is, the copy of some affidavits made by negroes who

were in a meeting here in town---I think Mr. Joe McGlynn,

who was the City Attorney prior to this administration that

went in, had drawn up those affidavits. They are affidavits

of negroes telling of a meeting that they were in; called

in by Mr. Schaumloffel, and the affidavits state---

Mr. Johnson (interposing). What were the names of the negroes?

The affidavits state that It. Schaumleffel called a large number of negroes into a meeting down here and told them that they must support It. Mollman for Mayor; that if they didn't do it the town would be closed up tight; it would be dry; they couldn't make any money; couldn't run any gembling houses, or anything like that; the town would be closed up tight, and nobody could be make any money. So the negroes were whipped into line.

Mr. Raker. For that election?

Mr. Allison. Yes, sir.

Mr. Raker. The April election?

Mr. Allison. Yes, sir.

Mr. Raker. Right there -- is this gentleman still im a public official in St. Clair County in the State of Illinois?

Mr. Allison. Schaunleffel?

Mr. Raker. Yes.

Mr. Allison. Yes, sir.

Hr. Raher. Go on.

Mr. Cooper. This is a non-partizan affair all around, isn't it?

Mr. Allison. Yes, sir; there is nobody that wants to claim---I wouldn't want to belong to a party that would claim any of it.

Mr. Raker.. But both parties are reaping the benefit?

Mr. Allison. Yes; it wasn't a question of a man's politics; it was a question of his adaptability to be used in the situation.

Mr. Raker. Now with your barrel houses, complete that.

Er. Allison. Back to the question of the barrel houses, and corroborating the Hayor's statement that these certain gentlemen did camp on his trial, I heard Mr. Jordan say one day ---

Hr. Raker. what is Jordan's full name?

hr. Allison. F. B. Jordan. I heard Mr. F. B. Jordan bewailing the fact that Mr. Mollman was nothing but a German Maiser; that he had closed up three saloons in his property; and that he couldn't do anything with him, and said that Mr. Mollman was a dammed fool. I heard Mr. Jordan say that, make the statement that he couldn't do anything with him. I have been in the Mayor's effice when I did see Mr. Dodson--- seen I had Mr. Dods n in the Mayor's of Mice---I saw Mr. Dodson in

the Mayor's office to see the Mayor. I don't know whether he ever had an audience with him or not, but I know I saw him in the Mayor's office waiting for an audience. Mr. Mollman told me that some of these men had employed Jephtha. Howe, of St. Louis, to come over here and intercede for their interests in these barrel houses.

Mr. Raker. Those are the ones now that they had closed? M_{Γ^*} Allison. Yes. And a lot of them were blacklisted saloons.

Mr. Cooper. Now just what is a barrel house as distinguished from a respectable cafe?

Mr. Allison. I am not up on that; the only thing in my mind of a barrel house is that they sell a very inferior grade of liquor there, and that it is just? noted hang-out for down-and-outers.

Mr. Raker. I didn't quite get your question, Judge--the distinction between a barrel house and a respectable cafe?

Mr. Cooper. Yes.

Mr. Allison. Well, I think that distinction is very clear.

Mr. Cooper. I took particular occasion to say cafe.

Mr. Allison. I can say this to you: When I was a railroad man I used to go with the boys and young fellows and
visit saloons. The trouble with East St. Louis is it has
got very few saloons in it, but it has got an immuneraable
amount of dives.

Mr. Cooper. Rendezvous for thieves and thugs?

Mr. Allison. That is what they are. To tell you about one of these instances---

Mr. Johnson. The Committee will now take a recess until

half past one, and you will please come back then, Mr.

Mr. Allison. Yes, sir.

(Whereupon at 12:30 o'clock p.m., the Committee adjourned for recess).

AFTER RECESS.

Hr. Johnson. Hr. Allison, will you take the stand?

In your testimony before lunch, you said that your information was that a man by the name of Jordan had undertaken to interfore with the authorities for the purpose of preventing the cancelation of a saloon license?

Mr. Allicon. That manufact was it. Mollman's statement to me.

in. Johnson. Is this in. Jordan a member of the Committee of One Eundrad?

E. Allison. I think perhaps he is.

II. Johnson. ... hat are the initials of the II. Jordan to whom you refer?

Ir. Allison. F. B.

ir. Johnson. Then you also mentioned a man by the name of Dodson. In the same connection, do you know whether he is a member of the Committee of One Hundred?

M. Allison. I have seen him at the Committee's meetings. I am not sure whether he was one of the members or not. I think perhaps he is.

Mr. Johnson. Are his initials C. S. Bodson?

T. Allison. Yes, sir.

In. Johnson. Then we know from the list that we have

that he is a member of the committee.

Mr. Allison. Yes, sir.

Mr. Johnson. Do you know whether or not the activities of these gentlemen as members of the Committee of One Hundred, which committee was expected to bring order out of chaos and riot here, ever did anything looking towards the suppression of loafer houses and lawless saloons in their own property?

If. Allison. Why, I am quite sure that these men of themselves did nothing. In some nectings of the Committee of One Hundred, in the beginning, when we talked about getting down to the facts in the case and bettering conditions here. I appealed to the Committee of One Hundred that one of the most essential things to do was to get after the owners of property, the people who housed this criminal class, and that we were to make them responsible for these things. Three or four different times I brought that up in the meetings of the Committee of One Hundred, but never received any encouragement on it, and no definite action was ever taken.

Mr. Johnson. Is it your opinion that if the Committee of One Numbered had directed their activities towards putting out of the houses, in which they were quartered, the criminals, that violation of law here would have become less frequent.

Mr. Allison. Oh, I am satisfied of that.

Ir. Johnson. Or, in other yords, if they hadn't been housed here by the very powers that be, they would have had to have gone elsewhere?

Mr. Allison. They would have. There is this thing to be considered: East St. Louis is at a disadvantage. We are a

city of approximately 90,000 people, but we have to deal with an underworld of a city of 900,000. They play back and forth across the River.

Mr. Johnson. You refer to St. Louis?

Mr. Allison. Yes, sir. For instance, to prove that to you, in a lot of our investigations we tracked a lot of this stuff to certain saloons in St. Louis, and people who are my friends and know of some of those conditions—that is, they have known me for a good while and believed in me—cane to me and warned about not going much farther along some lines. It wasn't a threat, but they knew of the danger that I was getting into. The criminal element has played back and forth across these rivers. A new I have jotted down a thing here that I think ought to come into this report in reference to this Commercial Hotel. That place, I am informed by men the know, was promoted by Canavan and Tarlton. They went to St. Louis and encouraged this man Hollingsworth to come to East St.

Mr. Johnson. Hollingsworth is now living in New York?

Mr. Allison. Living in New York City. Hollingsworth

has been known as conducting places of assignation. He had

three or four places in St. Louis; he made all of his money

that way, and I am informed by citizens here who know, that

this place was built specifically for that. That was the

purpose of it. Now there is this to be said about the

Commercial Hotel: There is nothing favorable in its history.

Some of the worst crimes that have been committed in this part

of the country have been committed by individuals that have

emanated from that place. Now to make that clear to you.

during the regime of Nick Recelli---I don't know how to pronounce that.--now this man Nick Roselli ran that place under Chamberlaine's administration here, the Mayor of the City. Chamberlaine was supported in his first campaign by Canavan and Tarlton. They supported him. This man Roselli conducted a notorious place there; one of the worst crimes ever perpetrated in this part of the country was pulled off there, when a paymaster in St. Louis was waylaid, murdered and robbed by three fellows that came from this place. Now the crime happened in St. Louis.

Mr. Johnson. When you say "this place", what place do you mean?

In Allison. I mean the Commercial Hotel. They came out of there, and the Tourist——it was then to Tourist

Hotel——it is the same building. Durch Frohme Man——he was one of the criminals,—and a fellow by the name of Smithsinger was another, and a young East St. Louis lad by the name of Cirl Caldwell owned the machine and was the chauffeur that conducted this campaign, led this company that waylaid this paymaster, murdered him and robbed him. Caldwell turned state's evidence——snitched on them——and he was murdered in the Missouri Penitentiary. These other fellows are there now doing time.

Mr. Allison. About 99,000--- 31 6000.

Now that is the history of this place. And also these machines that went out that night and harrassed the negroes in the negro part of this town---

Mr. Johnson. When you say "machine", you mean automobile?

lir. Allison. Yes, sir.

Mr. Cooper. What night?

Mr. Allison. On Sunday night, the night of the 1st of July.

Mr. Cooper. This year?

Mr. Allison. Yes, sir. They initiated that riot. They drove up and down through the regro sections of the town firing into the negroes' buildings, cursing them and telling them to leave town or were going to remain them out. I have had some good negroes, who have been to me,--a large committee waited on me and told me about it. One man told me of going to the door and a bullet burying itself right in the easing of the door by the side of him.

Mr. Johnson. hat washis name?

Mr. Allison. Reverend Wallace was his name. Now that is the history of that place down there.

Fr. Raher. This authmobile is supposed to have started from that place?

Mr. Allison. It did start from that place. I forget the young follows name that o'med that machine --- it has just slipped my mind.

lir. Johnson. We would be glad if you could recall it.

Mr. Allison. Masserang.

Mr. Johnson. Did he live in the Convercial Hotel?

Mr. Allison. He drove the machine and it started from that place and came both 're. A man who saw the machines there /c the machines were riddled with bullets---saw the machines there that night had they rove up there after they had come back. They had quite a hilarious time over there.

Lir. Johnson. You say these machines were riddled with bullets?

Er. Allison. Yes, sir.

Mr. Johnson. Fired by whom?

If. Allison. I suppose that the megroes were firing at them. The negroes told me this story, that them were public services there at one of their churches, this church were they congregated and where the bell rang, and that these machines came through there fired through their church when service, were going on. They turned the lights out, disbanded, much went home, armed and came back there, and I suppose when the machine made another trip through there they fired at it and that was probably the first firing that was done, and that is what called the police and sent the police into that district.

Mr. Foss. How many machines were there, do you know?

IF. Allison. Two on the first trip. The officers went do n in one machine.

Ir. Johnson. Was that one of the two machines?

Mg. Allison. No; that wasn't one of the two.

mmm Now I have stated that concerning that Commercial Hotel, because that is very important to the issue of this thing.

Mr. Raker. Defore you pass that, do you know what this man Masserang's first name is?

Mr. Allison. Cus Masserang.

H. Raher. There is Gus now?

Mr. Allison. He is indicted by the Grand Jury.

Mr. Johnson. Is he out on bail?

Mr. Allison. I presume he is. I don't know whether hom he is or not.

In. Raker. The is this man that saw the machines after they returned?

Mr. Allison. W. A. Miller.

Mr. Raher. There is he?

Hr. Allison. Secretary of the Railroad Y. H. C. A.

Now then. I started in to tell you before we left---before wm luncheon, about some specific instances.

Mr. Raker. About that paymaster, about how long agows that?

Hr. Allison. Hazazazbaut: wix: yeznerawI think it was just immediately after I came here as pastor of the church.

Mr. Raker. How long has that been?

Ir. Allison. About four year s ago, or maybe a little longer than that.

Before we discuss the question of the riot, I think it is very necessary to understand somewhat of the lawless condition that existed in East St. Louis, because it paved the way for this thing. In some of the investigations that I made here---

Mr. Cooper. May I interrupt the witness to say that just as we adjourned, he started to tell us some instance.

The Allison. I am going to tell you that now. It is in reference to a saloon conducted by Gus Trown on Collinsville Avenue, near the Areade Building.--

Mr. Johnson. The eyms the real estate in which it is conducted?

Mr. Allison. I don't know who owns that real estate.

Mr. Johnson. Will you find out and let us know?

If. Allison. Adam Smith, I am told, owns the building.

In our investigations we found that this saloon of Gus Brown's was a notorious place, in that there was a lot of prostitutes that gambled there and some were kept up stairs; gambling was going on there and things of that kind. And I went and appealed to the authorities about the closing of that place. I took Mr. Schein with me and we went over and put the proposition up squarely to the officials. Mr. Mollman said he would look into the it right away. So they went and he came back to me and said that the detectives were wanting that thing left alone for a little while.

Mr. Johnson. Whose detectives? The ones you employed or city detectives?

Mr. Allison. City detectives; they wanted his place left alone for a little while, as they were using it as a sort of watering place for crooks. They were watching for some safe crackers, and they gambled at that place. They seemed attracted to that place and they would like to leave it for a little while. Well, it is still a "watering place".

Mr. Johnson. Still left alone?

Mr. Allison. Still left alone. Nothing was ever done to the place.

Mr. Johnson. Do they have any water there at all?

Mr. Allison. I den't know (Laughter).

Mr. Raher. ..hat is the name of that place?

Mr. Allison. Andy Brown.

Mr. Raker. .. here is it located?

Er. Allison. It is on Collinsville Avenue near the Arcade Building.

Now back again to that one idea. Here is another "back again" in reference to that Commercial Motel. Mr. Schein and I --- when I went to Mr. Schein and told him what we had dissevered about the Commercial Hotel, he said to me, "Do you have gilt edge evidence or that place?" I said, "Yes". /"Are you sure it will hold?" I said, ""Sure it will". He said, "Will you go right now with me to the Mayor's office and let us put this up to him?" I said, "Certainly". So Ir. Schein and I went to the Ikpor's office and put the matter before him. The Rayor said, "Well now, I'll tell you what we'll do. Let's leave that alone until after we collect the July license! He said, "The city needs the revenue and let's wait till we get the license money and then I'll close them up". I made this remark to the Mayor: I said, "Mayor, that is a deagerous procedure. Anybody who might want to could cause you a lot of trouble with that." I said, "That might get you in bad", and he said, "well" and moved his hands. I said, "That is another point in the question of malfeasance in office, I think; I am not sure about it .

How Mr. Schein tells me that---I think it was that night ---that in conversation conference with Corporation Counsel Jerry Sullivan, Locke Tarlton---I think he said that Tom Canavan was in the conference----ayor Mollman---Mr. Schein ways that he told this conference about the things that I had reported concerning the Commercial Hotel; about what I had said to the Mayor; about what the Mayor had said about waiting until they got a license money and then would close them, and

Hr. Schein said that Hr. Sullivan arcse and said, "Mayor, did you say that"? Hr. Hollman said that he did. Hr. Schein said that Hr. Sullivan said to the Mayor, "My God, Mayor, you must not talk like that".

Now in reference to the negro saloons here, Mr. Mollman took the licenses away from all the negro saloons——that is, he told me he was going to do that before he was elected.

Mr. Mollman said he didn't believe in any negro conducting a saloon. So after he was elected he took the licenses——so it was stated in the paper——took the licenses away from the "bad lands" of the negro district and closed them up; "as he issued the statement through the press, all of the "disreputable joints".

Ir. Johnson. Now how many of those negro scloons were there?

In Allison. Well, I can't tell you the exact number. I went do m therm through there, but, as I said this morning. I didn't have the nerve to go into the investigation that I had in other places, and I left that to other folks to discover for me, but I found out about the conditions that were there. But he didn't stop those negroes from running the saloons. We took their licenses away from them; then they went on running the same kind of joints——prostitution and gambling and selling liquor without any lipense whatever. A Now this thing came out in that first riot. The soldiers came to town and this is the statement to me of Lieutenant Bill Croomston, who worked in the treasurer's office in Springfield. He told me this personally.

Mr. Cooper. This is May 28th?

Mr. Allison. This concerning the riot of May 28th. He said that he was detached to watch that negro district there, and they had orders from their officers to see that all either large gatherings of/white or black were broken up and dispersed. He said they noticed that a lot of negroes were assembling in these places, so they planned a raid and raided them. He said, "We found whisky, beer, all kinds of gambling devices", and he said, "we began to look for licenses". He said, "we aidn't even find a government license in the place". So they rounded up about 100 of these negroes and 'phoned to the police station. The police officers arrived on the scene and they began to upbraid the soldiers for raiding the place. Then one of the young fellows who was with Crookston told me this in connection with it --- he said to the policemen that "we had orders to do it and we were going to do it", and he said he cussed him, and I told him that the soldiers had not received the cooperation from the Mayor and the police of this torm that they should have received. He said, "You marched us down the street into things that we knew ntn nothing about at all, and we might have gotten our heads shot off. Now if we get orders to raid the plum police station and the Mayor's One of the office we will come over there and raid them. policemen was about half drunk and looked at one of the negroes and said, "My God", he said, "did they mg get you"? "Yep, they dome got me". Then this policemen about half drunk turned to this young fellow and said, "You fellows haven't got any right to arrest anybody in town, and if you get

mmm smart I'll arrest you and take you to the station." So this young fellow said, "Well, I've been on the boards for two or three months and I guess you've got a gun on you. Now let's see which one of us can draw first", and he cursed him out.

Now this whole thing I have told to the Mayor after it happened. Those negroes were brought in but I don't think the books will show where a single one of them was prosecuted. Not a one of them conducting places there with even a government license; no city license.

Mr. Johnson. Has any effort been mide to ascertain who owns the property in which these negroes' saloons were operated?

Lir. Allison. Not now. It has all been burned.

if. Johnson. Still somebody owns the real estate ---

Mr. Allison. Somebody owns the real estate.

Lir. Johnson. on which the houses stood?

Mr. Allison. Yes.

Lir. Johnson. But there has been no effort, in so far as you know, made to ascertain who owns those places?

Mr. Allison. No. sir.

possibly, of the lawless conditions that existed up prior to the 2nd of July.

. Mr. Cooper. Do you know how many negroes were beaten up on the night of May 28th?

Mr. Allison. I do not.

Mr. Jooper. Do you know anything about the Flannigan speech?

Mr. Allison. New I have heard about that only. I heard this --- it was in the paper; the report of it was in, I think, the Journal. It was in some of the papers that a meeting was called in the City Hall at which the Mayor, Hr. Jerry Kane, and Mr. Alexander Flannigan spoke. The speeches, as I heard it, were inflammatory from all three of them. The Mayor decried the fact. One man whom I am quite sure was one of the working men in the crowd told me about it. He said the Mayor said that 7,000 negroes had been brought into this town in the last few months. That was the trend of his --- there were too many niggers in town. and then that ir. Hane had said something about the working conditions. Mr. Flannigan had gotten up and talked about the crowding of negroes in here and that they were encroaching upon the white men's rights and difn't know that they were going to do about it, but he did know one thing; there wasn't any law against mob violence. And that crowd came down out of the City Hall and---

Mr. Cooper. Did he say there was no law against mob violence, or that he immu never knew of anybody having been convicted of rioting under that law?

Mr. Allison. It was in the paper---I think the paper stated it specifically that there is no law against mob violence, and I have understood that Mr. Flannigan didn't deny that he made that statement.

leading law. Refers you leave the conditions/up to the and of July, you stated the conditions as to the whites to the houses of prostitution and hotels. Were there any places, hotels or places conducted by negro women?

Mr. Allison. There were no hotels, I think, but only --- these were rooming houses that were conducted down in there and saloons.

Mr. Raker. There has been something said about places near the City Hall.

Mr. Allison. Well, tinymmura there were prostitutes all around City Hall.

Mr. Raker. Whites and Backs?

Ir. Allison. Yes; there were blacks. I remember of going on some investigating trips down through the old "Valley" and finding all kinds of a nditions---negro prostitution and white, side by side.

I want to say this, too. It is fair to the situation to say it. It was charged at the time that Mr. Florence, who was night chief of police, killed Detective Trafton. It was charged that that quarrel came over Trafton midny house of mf prostitution conducted by Mr. Florence. I understant that Florence owns that property that that house prostitution was his. Either he or his wife owned it. They owned it at that time anyway. That house prostitution was never closed up.

Mr. Raher. Were both police officers,
and MrwwAlhisam. One police officer hilled the other?

Mr. Allison. Yes, sir. Mr. Trafton was the chief of the
morality squad. Mr. Florence was the chief of detectives---

Mr. Cooper. How do you spell Florence?

sergeant of the detectives.

IF. Allison. F - L - 0 - R - E - H - C - E. Frank Florence. He was assistant chief of detectives.

Mr. Gooper. I wasn't raying attention when you started

that. Do I understand you to say that the assistant chief of detectives in this city owned property that was used by white people for mmn purposes of prostitution?

- Ib. Allison. Yes, sir; that is the charge.
- ir. Cooper. Was he running it or did he own it?
- Mr. Allison. Well, it was charged that he was running it; that he was operating it.
 - Mr. Cooper. At any rate, he owned the property?
 - Mr. Allison. Yes, sir.
- Ir. Cooper. And the place was pulled by the chief of the morality squad, Trafton, a member, police force of this city, and the other can hilled him?
 - Mr. Allison. Yes, sir.
 - Ir. Cooper. How long, before he was tried?
- IF. Allison. Ch. several months elarsed. He was admitted to bail and several months elarsed.
 - Mr. Cooper. Then he was acquitted?
 - Im. Allison. Then he was acquitted.
 - Mr. Raker. In what court?
 - E. Allison. In the Direvit Court at Belleville.
 - Mr. Raker. Do you remember the defended him?
 - Ir. Allison. Thomas weeb.
 - Mr. Raker. Who had been ---
- Mr. Allison. A htd brother to the Charles webb who was State's Attorney.
 - Ir. Coorer. .. no prosecuted?
 - Mr. Allicon. The State's Attorney.
 - The Cooper. webb?
 - In. Allison. No; Schaumleffel. This prospection came

under Schaumleffel's administration.

Mr. Raker. But the killing was under the other State's Attorney's administration?

Hr. Allison. No, sir; the hilling was under this State's Attorney's administration.

Er. Jooper. .. here did he kill kin?

Mr. Allison. why, I was told by members of the Police Board that it was just a question of wrafton having raided the place.

Ir. Cooper. There did he kill him?

III. Allison. He killed him in frint of the Savoy Hotel.

Im. Cooper. On the street?

15. Allison. Yes, sir.

Mr. Cooper. That kind of a hotel is that Savoy Hotel?

Ir. Allison. That is one of these disreputable places. Let me tell you semething about that place, too. Ir. Schein told me that along last winter sometime the police apprehended a very high-class sub crock at Ir. Refee's place. Now Ir. Hefee is the man who runs this place.

Mr. Cooper. The Savoy Hotel?

IF. Allison. Yes; and they brought him up to the police station and---

In. Johnson (interposing). Brought the up---McGee or the crock?

They
In. Allison. This high-class crick. brought him up to
the colice station; went down and searched his room; found all
himss of burglar's tools, blank marrage colicies, blank forms for
deeds the all ports of things, and he said that the McGee
came up there and just raised the dishens with them because

they would dare to come down there and molest one of his patrons, and I think Mr. McGee went on his bail and got the fellow out, and finally the fellow was gone.

Mr. Raher. No prosecution?

LE. Allison. No.

Mr. Reher. Dvidence was not taken from them and preserved?

Mr. Allison. No; I don't think it was: It night have been. Mr. Schein could tell of that.

Mr. Raher. The mere possession of the tools is sufficient.

I was just trying to find out if the officers kept the ovidence against this fellow.

Mr. Allison. I don't know. Mr. Schein could testify as to whether they kept that, I guess.

Mr. Raker. About what time of day was this killing done in front of the Savoy Hotel?

Ifr. Allison. It was at night.

Mr. Raker. Thile Florence was on duty?

Ir. Allisen. Yes, sir; while Florence was on duty.

Now Mr. Schein tells me the story of it that they had notice that this place was continuing to run open.

Mr. Raker. nat place?

Mr. Allison. The property that was owned by Florence.

They had notice that this place was never raided and nothing was done to it.

Mr. Raker. What was the name of that place, Florence's place?

Mr. Allison. I don't know.

Mr. Roker. .. here was it located?

Mr. Allison. It is off down on 2nd Street; 238 North 2nd Street.

Is it Lr. Raker. /Still running yet?

Mr. Allison. I don't know about it running now, but it was up until a short time ago. It is right behind the Savoy Hotel. I am told about that thing, that Mr. Schein told me that they were anxious to clean the town up; and now I personally know that Mr. Schein and Mr. Matkins unde a good, earnest, conscientious effort to do those things. Now I know they did; and when the Committee of One Hundred was demanding their resignation I fought that thing on the ground that the trouble was deeper than the Police Board. I knew that it was, and I personally advised Mr. Schein not to resign. I told him that I wouldn't allow those fellows to make a goat out of me.

Mr. Rater. Is Mr. Schein living in term now?

Mr. Allison. Yes, sir.

Mr. Raker. Is, watkins too?

Mr. Allison. Mr. Watkins has since left the city and is located in Birmingham, Alabama, in the employ of a packing house here---that is, he was one of their representative men.

Lr. Raker. What was the defense set up by Florence after he killed Trafton?

Mr. Allison. I think it was self-defense. But Mr. Schein said that they had noticed this place wasn't raided. They called Trafton in and told him he had to get that place and asked him thy he didn't get it, and he would always dodge the issue, makehamind but he did go and get it. Now Mr. Schein knows that he did go and get it, and then he was killed...

Mr. Raker. How long after he got the place was it that Florence killed him?

Mr. Allison. It was only a short time.

Im. Raker. In a week or ten days, something like that?

I just want a close connection.

In. Allison. I don't think it was a week. I don't think a week elapsed.

Mr. Raker. And still that place was not closed?

Mr. Allison. No, sir; it was not closed. It was running at the time of this last riot that we had here several months after the hilling.

In. Eaker. Well, do you know whether Trafton got evidence of this place being an illegal place and other conditions in connection with it?

Mr. Allison. Let me say this: Every prostitute in this town that has been here for six months I am satisfied is personally known to the whole police force. They know their names; they know where they are; they their records; they can go and get them any time they want them. Now I have talked with the detectives about it. For instance, here---

In. Cooper (interposing). Have they been able to do that kind of # business in this town for a long time except *New stood in with the police?

Mr. Allison. No; of course not. Now I have talked with detectives---

Ifr. Raker. (interposing). Before you get to that, they have had to go farther; from your testimony even the police --- they had to get protection above the police?

Mr. Allison. Most assuredly. There was a hand back

of this thing. There is no question about it. For instance, one policeman told me this story: Then Con Hickey's daughter was to be married. Con Hickey called him in and gave him to understand that he had to get some whisky and some El Maco cigars from the fellows out on the diggings, and some other things that he had to get. How he went out on his best and he gathered the things up from the saloon men. He got everything but the El Macos; he couldn't get the El Macos. He got another brand and Con complained because he didn't get El Macos. How that is the story of a former policeman to me.

- Mr. Cooper. Did they pay for the goods?
- lr. Allison. No; certainly not.
- The Robert Shere is Con Hicky now?
- Er. Allison. He is employed by the Levee Board. He was the night chief of police here and immediately that his resignation was demanded he was given a place on the Levee Board.
- Mr. Raker. Tarlton and Canavan are heads of the Levee Board?
 - E. Allison. Yes, sir.
- 13. Raker. And Canavan is also an officer under the city government?
 - Mr. Allison. Yes, sir.
 - Ir. Cooper. And Con Hicky is under indictment, is he?
 - Mr. Allison. I think he is.
- Hr. Roker. You told us this morning/what is the present address, Routoldate address of the "Bucket of Blood"?

Mr. Allison. It is at the corner of Main Street and Broadway, over Frank Wyant's saloon.

Mr. Cooper. Only a little ways this side of the Eads Bridge?

Mr. Allison. Just a little ways this way from the bridge over Cahokia Creek.

Mr. Raker. Is Frank still doing business?

In. Allison. I guess in is. Now the only connection that I know of that in. ... went has with this thing is that it has moved up stairs over his place.

Mr. Raker. I know; I am not assuming for an u stant or even laying the slightest charge against Mr. Wyant for the fact that he runs the saloon there and the "Bucket of Blood" minimized is over his place of business---not at all. (Laughter).

Mr. Cooper. Who owns that building that that "Bucket of Blood" is in?

Er. Allison. I don't know.

Lir. Cooper. Have you ever heard who owns it?

Mr. Allison. No. sir.

Now there is another thing, another element of corruption here that ought to come in this, and that was traffic in negro votes. I knew that a large amount of money was spent among the negroes. Then Mr. Mollman was making his last campaign this last spring, I called him out to my study one afternoon. I was an ardent supporter of Mr. Mollman. I called him out to my study one afternoon; in fact he came out several different times to my study and spent quite lengthy time going over the campaign. He came to my home.

He had me in his home. One day I got the word through some of the negroes, because I have always wanted to see the negro get a square deal, and they have been friendly to me. I got mmm the word through they that they were lining up largely behind the other candidate. I called Hollman out to my study and laid these things before him, and he dismissed it at once and said, "well, we'll not worry about the negroes at all". He said, "Locke will take care of them".

. Mr. Raker. Did he mean Locke Tarlton?

Mr. Allison. That is who he meant. He said not to worry about them, that Locke would take care of them. I didn't ask him what he meant by that. I wish now I had. I would like to have told more about this thing, but anyway, I can go farther with it and I think I know what he meant. After the election there men were charges of all sorts of pollution among the voters. . I heard it stated that the city administration spent \$20,000 on their last municipal election. Anyway, during this last riot somebody made the charge that a negro was a nigger; he said "A nigger is a nigger". I resented it and I said, "You have no more right to jut a blanket sharge on the negro than you have to put a blanket charge on the white man", and the Mayor's secretary, a Mr. Ahearn, spoke up and said, "Well, you name a good nigger". "Well, I said. "here is this fellow Parker"--- I didn't know what I was going to get --- "here is this fellow P. C. Parker; he is a good fellow". "Good God", he said, "we had to pay him \$50 to get him". Parker was a negro Baptist preacher here in town that I knew. Now I got hold of Mr. Pirker and I draw it out of him, but he denied the 250. He said. "No,

sir: they didn't give me \$50. Locke did give me \$40 for my services". Now---

Mr. Raker. Locke did that?

Mr. Allison. Locke gave him \$40 for his services. I don't know whether somebody "pinched" \$10 or not. (Laughter). But now that is just the setting of this whole thing; and it was the common talk upon the streets among the business men of this town everywhere, the terrible corruption in municipal affairs and in all sorts of deals.

. lir. Raker. . . here is Parker now?

Mr. Allison. Mr. Parker was over in St. Louis the last I heard of it.

Mr. Raher. Just tell us what you know about the banquet given by the Mayor to the negroes after the election.

Mr. Allison. .ell, I only just heard that that was an charged. Now, I don't know about that.

Mr. Foster. Is the negro vote in East St. Louis looked upon as just a pw-chasallevete by whoever can get him in any election?

Mr. Allison. Mes, sir. any election.

Mr. Foster. It makes no difference what it is? .

If Allison. It doesn't make any difference what it is.

Mr. Foster. That he stands around and expects to be bought?

Mr. Allisen. Yes. I understand that one negro down here in the fim Arcade Building get \$50 that day. They came high this time, you know; the negroes were shrewd enough to make them come across to the limit.

Ir. Foster. Dach side/vidding for it?

Mr. Allison. I guess it was. Anyway, they got them up there.

Hr. Cooper. Well, these white barrel-house buns around this town--are they for sail?

Mr. Allison. Sure; most assuredly.

Ir. Cooper. So the complexion doesn't make any difference?

Er. Allison. It doesn't make a bit of difference about the/

Ir. Foster. But still all of them, white and
black, are out for what money they can get?

If. Allison. Tarlton told me in conversation I had with him in the Mayor's office---that is, the afternoon I raised that question about the corruption in the political affairs here and buying negro votes---Locke said, "Yes, we say to all of them 'If you haven't got lots of money you better stay out; himman there is no place for pillers in this election '".

He made that statement to me blusself.

Mr. Foster. Is that so in your county elections?

Mr. Allison. I don't know about that. Newspaper reporters told me that he saw Mr. Locks Tarlton standing with stacks of five-dollar bills and the negroes passing by in single file, him paying the money out.

12. Johnson. When?

In. Allison. Immediately at the end of that new municipal election.

Mr. Johnson. Last April?

IF. Allison. Yes.

Mr. Cooper. Now, let's see---"no place for pikers in this election"?

Mr. Allison. Yes; little fellows with little money.

Mr. Cooper. Then, in other words, to get office in this town or to run for office with any hope of success, you either had to have money yourself or have the big money behind you?

Mr. Allison. Yes, sir; certainly. One man in this town told me this, Mr. Cooper. I might just as well call a space a space here---that was Judge R. H. Flammigan, former judge of the city court.

Er. Cooper. Now attorney for what company?

In. Allison. I don't think he is attorney for any company. He is a member of my church. He told me that——you know I wouldn't tell any of these things, only the hope before us that this situation can be cleansed——he told me that when he was judge of the city court in East St. Louis he found out that Tarlton and Canavan were not going to support him, and he thought it was because of his decision thank in a cartain sewer deal. ...hen he found that out he went to Locke and jut the question up to him.

Mr. Cooper. Locke Tarlton?

If. Allison. Yes, sir; Locke Tarlton. And Tarlton told him that Judge Browning was a fine young fellow and they weren't going to hinder him from running---in fact, they were going to support him. Judge Flanmigan told me that he told Tarlton. "If you will give me an open field, I'll contribute Q1,000 to your slush—fund at your next election", and Locke refused to do it. Locke Tarlton says that the Judge finally offered him \$2,000.

Mr. Cooper. Well now, that goes --- that is a matter remagnification which in municipal affairs, and extended as it

might be to county and state and national affairs, would ultimately possibly lead to the overthrow of this republic?

Mr. Allison. Certainly.

Er. Cooper. It means this, that a man that will run for office must be rich himself or have money behind him?

H. Allison. Certainly.

Mr. Cooper. And then when he is elected he is supposed to do the bidding of the men who furnish the money?

In. Allison. Most assuredly.

Er. Cooper. They don't give him money; they don't put him into office unless the understanding him is that when he is in office he will do his best to protect them, and then hen they don't mean that, they mean they will get into office themselves; somebody supplies them the money to get in, and then they take the money out of the public treasury, or they take the money on contracts, or they take it in some other way to get even again, don't they?

Mr. Allison. That is it; mus certainly.

Lr. Cooper. That is the meanest and most corrupt kind of politics, and the man that is punished ultimately is the tax payer.

If. Allison. The Winstanley Sewer Association of this city has turned over to their entire files. They had a controversy up with this present administration, with Mr. Conavan and Mr. Tarlton, about their sewer projection that is going through here; the contract was let and they had every reason to believe that the contract was not being---that the work was not being done according to the apparism

Sever Association, made up of citizens in this part of the town where this sever was going through, tax payers who were going to have to foot the bill, came forward and said, "Te'll put up---we'll get a man and pay him from a bonded engineering company to supervise this work and see that it is done correctly." They wouldn't let them do it, and they had a lengthy conversation over it. In E. E. Eversall, who six is secretary of the Winstanley Improvement Association, could give you a not of splendid information on that.

Mr. Cooper. Right in that connection, when it comes to the payment of the special assessments for a sewer fund like that, the little property owner, the little householder, cannot escape, can he?

Mr. Allison. No.

lar. Gooper. He has got to pay?

Mr. Allison. Yes, sir.

Mr. Gooper. They have got him every time. Mere you in here the other day when the report was read here, portions of a report submitted by expert accountants, showing that big property owners, or as they said, "prominent" property owners, in this town, were——if the testimony or statement of the Controller was true——escaping the payment of their special assessment taxes? That was a report submitted to your city government, that some of the big property owners were deliberately escaping, manipulating things, so that they idn't pay their special assessment taxes. And it is utterly impossible, isn't it, for the small property owner to do that;

they can't manipulate anything, can they?

this line showing to you how hard sailing it is in East
St. Louis: Just recently we had a case---it is a wonderful
illustration of this thing---I am informed that the statisties from the courts of this country show this terrible
fact: In 27 states where interstate commerce shipments are
interfered with by thieves, one-third of all the stealing done
in 27 states is done in St. Clair County. Now I am Informed
that that is statistical.

Mr. Johnson. I beg your perdon, but I was interrupted by the Sergeant at Arms just as you were making that last statement. I didn't hear it. Will you please repeat it?

In. Allison. I am informed that it is a matter of statistical record in our courts that in 27 states where Interstate shipments are interfered with by thieves, that one—third of all the stealing in these 27 states is done in 3t. Clair County, Ill. Now then, effort after effort has been made to apprehend the thieves. They always have somebody that fronts for them. A detective told me——

Mr. Alliso. Comes in and gets in front of the fellow and juts up a ged face to let him go free. A detective told me this stary. He said, "I came to fact St. Louis--- a fellow that had been used to foint half way a square deal---and I was jut on a job here to apprehend some negroes who had stolen a lot of ris lead out of a car". He said, "I want ith a certain man here in fast 3t. Louis, and we want and found out there—-we located our negroes. ...e

rounded them up and when we started into the thing, this fellow said---I understood him to say--- every man get a "Well," he said, "instead of that, he meant for negro'". us to get just one negro". "But", he said, "I misunderstood him and I singled out my men and I got him. I shot at him and I came so close that he quit running and said, 'For God sake, don't shoot and he came back, and I brought my man up, thinking that I had dischirged my orders." He said, "I was cursed and told that they only wanted one negro, and he told this negro whom I had captured to beat it". He said, "Then that negro was gone he turned to the one negro that he had captured and said to him. Mor there have you hid that lead?'" He said the negro took them and showed them where they had it; had it in some sand. He said, He took the negro up the track and said. 'You beat it and den't you ever show your head in East St. Louis or I'll hill you'. The negro left emt he turned to one of the fellows and he said, 'Go and get so and so' --- called him name by name --- and have him come down here!", and he said, "Pretty soon a fellow drove do m with a wagon, a junk dealer, and that mig lead was loaded tentem in the wagen and he sail, "That is the last I ever saw of it."

Another thing: Here recently--- and this was a thing I wanted to illustrate to pro--- that thing can be verified. Another thing was this: then a large shipment of eiger were stelen, and I think they were I had first the Southern Reilway. The superity of eight were I had in possession of the Henry Allight, a san in runs a large liquer house here in to n. and the had been very active here in politics, and the

Hollman said he was one of the dirtiest politicians in to more——
that is his own studement to mer—and that he thought he had
taught Henry Albrecht and a lesson that would keep him out of
politics. The elgarates were found, as I say, in the possession of Mr. Albrecht. I was shooked to find large numbers
of my Committee of the Hundred over at the Union Station
ready to go to Danville, Ill., to get up and testify to the
good a grapter and the respectability of this citizen, Henry
Albracht.

.... Johnson. ho were those citizens?

If. Allison. Tell there was a large number. Among them was Mr. Ed Coffey, who is the agent for the Southern Railway, and he took me to one sma side and said, "I am in a hell of a fix; here I am; my company is spending all kinds of money, and here it has run down the very fallow that has these eigerettes and now I'm subpensed over there as a character witness".

Mr. Johnson. Mame another, please.

If. Allison. Nat NoLean, and Mr. Boffey a member of the Police Doard, too. But now Mr. Boffey was sincere in that.

He had nothing to do with being subpensed over there; he didn't want to go. He told me so. He Miln't want am to go, and he him tells me that the questions that were asked were warm general. Mr. Nat McLean was another. Now these men ---now have i what I am telling you---these men had nothing to do with being calling over there, but they went.

- Ir. Johnson. And testified?
- ID. Allison. And testified.
- IF. Johnson. On To this man'd good character?

Albrecht. Mr. McLean tells me that the questions were so frame that they could answer them without perjuring themselves. Allow here is the seriousness of this situation: I have got no personal regard in this matter at all, but before God, this situation is awful in East St. Louis!

Mr. Raker. Let me ask you this question, Reverend. Mr. McLean maximum and this other gentlemen, as to the man' character, would have to have been asked, axiginally generally, "Do you know him"?- "Do you know where he lives?" - so as to get him located in that place, and "Do you know his general reputation as to truth and veracity among his neighbors in the place in which he lives"? That is generally recognized by all the courts.

Mr. Allison. Yes.

In. Raker. Not, they either had to say yes or no.

If they know his rejutation to be bed and said it was good, they committed rank perfury, didn't they?

Mr. Allison. .hy; that is my statement out and out; yes.

Mr. Raker. Sure. And those two men are men of this Committee of One Hundred?

Mr. Allison. Oh well, there were scores of thom.

If . Raher. I am going to get the rest. We aren't going to shield anybody, if we can get their names.

ally. Allison. Locke Tarlton was one of the men. I met numbers of them there in the Union Station. I was on my way

to Chicago.

ir. Cooper. .ias/Hayor along?

Mr. Allison. I don't rocall.

Mr. Raker. Can you think of anybody else that taken over there now besides these? Let's get their names.

Mr. Allison. I can't recall them.

Mr. Raker. Let's put this question so it will make the evidence specific. As a matter of fact, everybody knew in this community the reputation of this man Albright, for truth and veracity, was bad?

Mr. Allison. Certainly.

Mr. Raker. And if they had subpensed witnesses and they had told the truth they could have proven by practically every decent man and woman in East St. Louis as to his reputation being bad?

Albright chained that he bounds those digarattes from Frank wint. That is the man that runs the saloon under the "Bucket of Blood". That is what the testimony showed, and it showed this, that cash was paid for this shipment of digarattes. When all his former business---now this is my understanding of it---that cash was paid on this specific case, when in all other instances checks were paid.

- IIr. Cooper. Where were these stolen from?
- Mr. Allison. From the Southern Railway.
- Ih. Johnson. At what place were they stolen?
- Mr. Allison. Here; East St. Louis.
- The Cooper. How many of them? manufamma
- Ir. Allison. I think it was \$900 worth of the eigerattes.

Mr. Johnson. They found them out in a barn somewhere, didn't they?

Mr. Allison. \$3500 worth, I am corrected here. Those figures and things—the horrible thing in it is, that when you get some man cornered you can just get anybody; the best citizens in the town will come to the front to relieve him.

Mr. Cooper. That they call the prominent and leading citizens"?

Ir. Allison. Yes, sir; certainly.

Mr. Johnson. And they need the protection of the thieves---a lot of them?

Mr. Allison. Well, now here is what I know, and any other man knows it, that conditions in East St. Louis couldn't exist unprotected.

In. Raher. Now is there any way that you could get for the Committee the additional names of these men that were taken to the district court for the purpose of proving the good character of this man Albright, that are members of this Committee of One Hundred? I have got a special reason to just hang on to that Committee of One Hundred---for many reasons. Do you think you could get them? Before you get through you could find out somebody that knew them, couldn't you?

Was Judgedrow thomas one of the witnesses?

In. Allison. I den't 'mow. I know that I saw a large number of non over there. Now there was Mr. Coffey and Mr. McLean and Locke Tarlton, and a number of men and they have

all spoken to me---How this, as I say, my only reason in telling this, it is a serious thing, most serious to my mind.
There has got to be a separation between the best people and
the crooks in this town if the situation is ever helped.

Mr. Cooper. It is not only serious, but it is dangerous.
Mr. Allison. It is dangerous.

Ir. Raher. Now right in this connection, it has been stated here by three or four witnesses---I have let it pass because I didn't care to take the time of the Committee, but I am going to take the time right now and ask you the question. It has been stated that these saloons here in East St. Louis, that there are a few bad ones, but the others are respectable saloons doing a legitimate business and complying with the law. Now if that is the case, just point out to the Committee which ones of these saloons are those "respectable" saloons that are complying with the law.

The Allison. Call, I wouldn't make the statement that there were a few saleons that were disobeying the law; I would put it that there are very few real saleons in East St. Louis, and that the major portion of these/nothing but dives. I think I know of one man in this town who tries to conduct his business properly. Now I haven't been in his place of business. I don't know enything about it, but I know he has come to me and told me how he was trying to conduct his place of business. I know that when he discovered that prostitution was being a writed on in a building that he owned, that he abs lately threw the fellow out that was confident the business of that man was know the prother-in-law.

Mr. Relier. That is this man's name?

Mr. Allison. Frank Geory. That is all I know about that.

Mr. Raker. Then is it your statement that there is only one?

In Allison. That is all I know anything about.

If . Raker. Well then, if the statement has been made that there were respectable saloons conducting "a legitimate business, so far as you are concerned, from your investigation and knowledge, it is just to the contrary?"

Lr. Allison. Oh, I am satisfied of that.

Hr. Raker. Well, has this enormous number of saloons the method and manner, the way they have carried their business on, together with their associates, surroundings, had anything to do with this horrible condition that you have described in East St. Louis?

Ir. Allison. Host assuredly.

Mr. Roher. In what way? Just tell us in what when way.

In. Allison. The liquor interests have always been back of every move — to clean the city.

In. Cooper. Back of it or opposed to it?

That is what I mean. Now for instance---and yet one of the members of our Committee of One Hundred was the head of the Heim Brewery out here. He lives there on 10th St. He seemed to be very much interested in cleaning the city up in cleaning the city up, making it respectable. He told me that he did believe in law enforcement, and he congratulated me on my stand that law ought to be enforced to the limit.

Mr. Raker. Outside of him go on with the rest.

Mr. Allison. How then these liquor interests get together here and they get back of any move that will thwart the clean-up of this town. How you take in this last election here, just in this last election --- and I have this highty straight; it comes from good sources --- the city administration, to line these saloons and gamblers and everybody else up, told the gamblers that they man could cut loose here and go the limit; that this money that was raised by the Committee of Cne Eundred, \$105,000, would be spent, would be exhausted a long in January, and then they were going to mm put Mosting, the Chief of Police, Doc Reed and his regime, who are on the Police Board now --- they were going to "flop" them on of office and we will be in the saddle and we mill take care Now they lined the saloons, the gamblers of you fellows." --- that element --- limed them all we against this campaign for the commission form of government. The object was to establish a genuling house one block of the Chief Heating's home, so when the hour came they were going to discredit the Chief of Police and this Police Board by showing that gambling had broken out suddenly all over East St. Louis

ibunashman under these men who posed to be good citizens, and who were endeavoring to do everything they could to clean the town.

Mr. Raker. what source did that come from?

Mr. Wilson. That only comes from one source---from that cliqueover there that runs this situation.

Mr. Aximmx Johnson. Who are they?

Mr. Allison. Mr. it is Mollman and Canavan and Tarlton and that crowd. For E. Mollman says that he was neutral on the question of the commission form of government. Well, whether he was neutral or not, he had in his own office those little dodgers that were distributed around over town --- "Mr. Norking Man' and "Little Tax Payer, why do the corporations want/commission form of government? Think it over and vote no". Now he had those in his office. Then another thing, he rounded up all the city employes; even street sweepers and had them out distributing these dodgers. I spoke at the Lissouri Iklicable Iron Works on Monday at noon, and there was an old Tello; out there, whom I know, handing those dodgers out, and I said to him, "what are you doing out here"? "./ell", he sail. "you know I work for the city?" I said, "Yes". "Well", he said, "I got my orders this morning", and there he was resting these dedgers out on the day of the election imminar witternamm Hellman had been out on an inspecting trip and came that form tour, drove up there in front of the Mayor's office and two or three of them rushed out and asked him how the thing Looked, and he said, "well, it is gone; the coursission form of government is going to carry all; can't stop it". "But", ho ars, "let's don't let up", and put his hand in his posher, and pulled out the key to his office and hunded it to the quatternan and said "to initi mey office there are the gest the rest of those dodgers and let's stay with it. Let's stay with it". A Now that is the real situation, and now he thirks that he is politics enough that he is going to make the delike believe that he was neutral on it. He is for the commission form of government now. He is for it now, so he says in the paper, and he will do nothing

to block it. You know here is the real trouble in East St. Louis: Hen have lost a high sence of honor. The corruptible influence of Last St. Lovis has been so contaminating and has so stealthily crept in on the lives of men that it is nita pitiable. It is horrible. There are men here who would try to give you a square deal, but who before God don't know what a square deal is. Now Mr. Mollman thinks he is a splendid citizen, and I don't think for a minute that Ir. Hollman ever got a penny of money out of any namemen corruption in this toum. I don't think he did. Now I am candid in that and I think that Ir. Ibliman has thought that he was doing the right thing, but he is so enamoured with the corruption in these things that are done, his conscience has become seseared that he wouldn't believe now that the thing I have told you, about taking the new that the tax papers of this to m pay and throwing them into a political campaign with the corrupt influences: he couldn't believe that that was little and contemptible.

Hr. Raker. Well, her can it be ressible that he can permit his friends, such like Tarlton and Canavan? They must be getting something out of this regime.

In Allison. Somebody is getting something. I have understood that the amount collected here---and I got it from a gretty good source.---would approximate \$60,000 a year that they got from gambling and prostitution.

In. Refer. What do you mean by that, that these men that are in power---

The Allison. Collect from these fellows just like Tend-

82 t

lords e dlect rent.

Mr. Roher. Then use it as a slush fund for political purposes and put a part of it in their own pockets?

now there is one mm in town show I have come to admire. That man is Paul Kishelbach whom I told you about who was constable and whose farther—he and his father ran one of these places out here, 4200 Bond Avenue. He ran a place ment door to Peters. Then we started into this campaign to clean this thing up, Paul Kishelbach cannot be my church to see me. He told me afterwards that he thought he was coning to see a dammed fool, and I was curprised at him when he came in, he said, "that do you guys want"? I said, "the want nothing at all". He said, "How much money do they want?" I said, "There is no money wanted".

The Rahar. This is a constable?

In. Illista. This is a constable, who is running the of those illegal calcons——one of those saloons within the two-mile limit of a corporation. He taid, well, there isn't any political carpaign on". I said, "No". "well, what in hell do they want?", and I said, "well, all they want now is that folks shall abide by the law". He looked at me a minute and said, "Is that on the square?" I said, "That is on the square. That is all they want." "Do you mea, to tell me that all they want us to do is to close those places up?" I said, "That is all now. That is all; just abide by the law". "Well", he said, "are they going to make everybod; do it?" I said, "I guess they are. That is the

intention, to show no favoritism to anybody". Well, sir. he was astounded to think that that was all anybody could want in East St. Louis, now, in this regime around here. These saloons cut here in the two-mile limit that were conducted, I have seen the form---we have that form for evidence, the hum blank form that is used to collect from them. You know these saloons within the two-mile limit cannot get a license under the state law. They ran on a presumption of arrest, indictment from a grand jury, with a fine fixed. I have seen the blank form. The blank form was issued through---I am told by those who knew that it came, of course, from the State's Attorney of the county, but it was issued through Ir. Waghing office in Belleville.

Er. Johnson. Give his full name.

Dr. Allison. Lewis E. Wayden , justice of the peace out there. Now it came through that way, that the proprietor of a place would get a notice on this blank, printed form, "This is to notify you that you have been found quilty---that an indictment is against you charging you with selling liquor without a license, and that you have been fined a certain prount". The fact about the business is, there had been no jury at all to find an indictment---no indictment at all. There had been no trial at all; there had been no plea of guilt; no conviction: but that was the method whereby they collected the revenue from these illegal caloons within the two-mile limit.

Mr. Raher. They did that up until sometime in February or March of this year?

IF. Allicon. Yes, sir.

Mr. Raker. Is that man still in office?

Er. Allison. Yes; he is in office.

Mr. Cooper. well, the indictment wouldn't go in the justice of the peace court. You mean a warrant of arrest and indictment would go to some higher court---you don't mean indictment, no warrant/no warrant issued?

Mr. Allison. All the thing was just a notification of a supposed grand jury session, with an indictment, and the idea of a conviction. That was the thing that was carried on.

. Now that has gone on for a number of years and Mr. Misselbach told me that one time his amount that he paid he found out was more than some other fellow was paying, and he hicked about it and they cut it down and made it alike.

The Raker. How go on and tell what Hisselbach finally did.

In. Allicon. He did close up his place and he played on the square. He closed his place up abcolutely, and then he lent his support to us in closing other places. One of the supervisors that lived next to him continued to run his place.

Ib. Johnson. What was his name?

Mr. Allison. Moenigstein was the .an's name. He is one of the supervisors.

Mr. Raker. Of the county?

Mr. Allison. Yes; of the county. He continued to run his place, and Hisselbach saw a load of beer driven in there one morning just before courise. He knew that that meant

something and he began to watch it. He notified us and through the work, especially through the work of the Attorney General, he sent some men down there and alrested the place; had an injunction served, and I think they put him out of business.

Ir. Raker. That do you know about the method of the constables here, their way of handling business here?

If. Allison. Well, I know this, that at two or three of these disreputable dance halls, these constables work on Sunday as the special directors of the affair. You would go out there and they would act as pimps. They would get you prostitutes to drink with and dance with and everything else, and deputy sheriffs there, R. O. Shepherd there, for one, that hung out at the Peters' joint, and/seemed to be the regular house man of the place.

Hr. Raker. , In other words, they were pimps.

The Allison. These saloons at which these deputy sheriffs, and these fellows operated, they were paid 05 a day by the saloons to do that.

Mr. Raker. The constables, or do you mean deputy sheriffs?

Mr. Allison. Deputy sheriffs.

Mr. Raker. Are any of those men still living yet?

Mr. Allison. Yes; Shepherd, I guess, is still alive; he is bailiff of our court.

Mr. Raher. Howe in East St. Louis?

IP. Allison. I believe he is bailiff out here at Belle- - ville in the circuit court out there--- one of the bailiffs.

15. Reher. And a deputy sheriff, supporting a dance

house as a pimp?

Mr. Allison. Yes.

Mr. Raker. Furnishing introductions to these young girls, some of them 14 or 15 years of age? Some of them were good girls taken there, weren't they?

Ir. Allison. Yes.

Mr. Raher. From the community; from the residents of these various towns, isn't that right?

Mr. Allison. Yes, sir.

In. Raker. And introducing them so they could drink beer with them and have sexual relations?

Mr. Allison. Sure.

I'm. Raher. That was the real object obtained, wasn't it?

Mr. Allison. Certainly.

IIr. Raiser. And in addition to that, they received \$5.00?

in. Alligon. \$5.00 a day from the saloon. They were bouncers for the place, too, you know. They saw that the thing was conducted to the heart's desire of the proprietor.

Mr. Cooper. .. ho appointed his?midemutyn The sheriff?

Mr. Allison. I suppose if he has the appointment to make. I suppose he is the man.

If . Cooper. And the sheriff knows all about it then, that he did out there, and he was appointed out there to preserve order, wasn't he?

Mr. Allison. Yes. They do that about all the time.

Mr. Poster. And he gets pay from the house?

Er. Allison. Yes: \$5.00 a day.

In. Raker. How much would the girls have to pay to the house or to these men?

Mr. Allison. I don't know about that.

Lir. Raker. A rather flourishing business, wasn't it?

Er. Allison. Yes; and up at Brooklyn up here, a' negro town, t ere is an interesting thing op there. It was---

Fr. Raker. I don't want to get to Brooklyn. I want to hang to this other for just a little bit. How .ahy of these kinds of places were there?

Hr. Allison. I think we closed 44.

III. Raker. And then there would be apt to be something like that number of deputies?

ID. Allison. Yes; there is a large number of deputies, constables.

Tr. Roker. In other words it was quite a position to be appointed a deputy in one of these places?

IA. Allison. Yes. How there is this about it, you know. They got pretty obstreperous there. For instance, they put a sign up at one place, and they would offer a reward for anybed; the would show them a newspaper reporter in the place. They cought one newspaper reporter out there took him outside and said, "Now I'll count so many and you had better be gone from here or we'll kill you".

E. Raker. That was a deputy sheriff?

ir. Allison. No; the proprietor or cohorts did that.

Lr. Raker. Well, if the deputy sheriff was there?

Er. Allison. He was there, of course.

La. Raker. He would see the sign, and would know of the sign and know of the orders to be carried out?

E. Allison. Yes.

ir. Raker. The proprietor or his subordinates would

make the order and the deputy sheriff was there to see that it was enforced?

Mr. Allison. Yes. And this whole thing was like that. For instance, this administration over here, the Mollman administration, became very much incensed at newspaper reportors who dared to publish the facts concerning city affairs.

Mr. Raker. Just what you know about that.

Ir. Allison. Well, the Mayor told me that he either whipped or threatened to whip one of the newspaper reporters here at this table (indicating).

M. Reker. Ir. Anderson?

If. Allison. Mr. Anderson; yes. And the Mayor asked me if I couldn't take it up with the editor of the Post Dispatch and see if they couldn't have Mr. Anderson thrown out of his job here in Mast St. Louis. The Mayor asked me to do that one time. He asked me if I couldn't use my influence to get Anderson's job.

Liv. Raker. That was Anderson doing that he should be thrown out of a job? He appears to be a very affable young fellow.

Mr. Allison. We was interfering with the business.

Mr. Cooper. Telling the truth?

Mr. Allison. Well, I guess that is it.

. Mr. Raker. That he could get, he was telling?

In. Allison. That he could get; yes. They were getting a good deal of it. Wou know this that I am telling you, everybody laughs in this room. They know it has been current rumor here in the town. This isn't a thing that just one man

knows. This stuff that I am telling you has is current rumor in the City of East St. Louis. The people have known it.

Ir. Raker. Then these good citizens are not hearing anything new?

Mr. Allison. Nothing new at all; nobody is going to be surprised or shocked. (Laughter).

IL. Raker. I'm before we get to---wint was that city out there, Brooklyn?

Mr. Allison. But that is just the same kind of an affair.

Mr. Rober. Now I want you to tell about the constables here in the city. The constables didn't assume jurisdiction outside of the city limits, to these dames houses, fill they?

15. Allison. Fot to my knowledge.

Mr. Rober. Now what was their attitude with reference to these same scalifions in the city/ similar to those you have described as to the deputy sheriffs?

here, Mr. Stemart Campbell , the is now the head of the employment bureau here, told me that Mr. Tom Hurly had colled him to lay off of 202 St. Louis Avenue. That was Marie Hell's place of prostitution, and Mr. Campbell , I understood. lost his job because he was going out to Drooklyn and raid that thing out there, and the sheriff took him out if effice because he was too obstreperous.

Mr. Raker. Is the same shoriff in office?

Mr. Allison. Yes, sir.

Ih. Raker. .. Ant is his name?

Mr. Allison. Logan Hellon.

Mr. Raker. What about the constables being compensated for their most ardent and valuable services?

IP. Allison. I have no information on that.

IM. Taker. But it is reasonable to suppose that they received compensation for their work?

Mr. Allison. Ch, yes; they went outside of the city, too, and I heard that they went outside of the city and operated and received \$5.00 per day.

Ik. Raker. Now these are the same gentlemen that subpena your jurys here to the city?

Mr. Allison. Oh, yes.

IF. Raiser. And the same gentlemen that maintain order and desorum and see that criminals don't escape?

Ir. Allison. Yes, sir.

Ilr. Raker. They are the same men that protect, lives of your vives and children and pourselves?

Hr. Allison. Tes, sir.

The Raker. For these deputy sheriffs are the same men, aren't ther?

Mr. Allison. Oh, yes.

If alter. They are on the job watching to see that everything is in apple-pie order, that no crimes are committed, and to protect your lives and property?

IF. Allicon. Yes.

Mr. Raher. These are the same gentlemen that were in power during the various mobs?

Mr. Allison. Yes.

Mr. Raker. Now tell us about Brooklyn.

Ur. Allison. Brooklyn fisma became a very notorious place. The State's Attorney of Madison County, Mr. Struber, issued an ultimatum to the gamblers and drove them from Madison County. They came down to Brooklyn and built additions to buildings there; they put up quite an elaborate alfair, and I understand it is going on again now. I have a letter from some negroes out there asking me if something can't be done; that mings thing is getting back into the sine old rut. The night that I went out there I drove my machine up at the side of one of these places and a colored gentleman with a star on came out and told me that I had my machine on a sideralk. Then he showed me where I should drive it, mid he sould satch it for me. So I drove it in and then he proceeded to tell me where I could get "the best action" on my money. So I went over and went into that place, and I Found that there were three crap tables in full swing, and at these dorble-leck orap tables there are too men, one stick man and then a banker it each end of the table, and they So a land office-business. For more they have gotten progressive--- gamblers as well as anybody else. The crap tables that I used to know a little bit about them I was a railroad man were a very i significant affair beside the enormous around of young fello a gathered around those orap tables. large amounts of mo.ey in eight; and that was one place. There were three army tables in operation in that 11 ... I went into another place and there were two erap thiles. Linctier and I didn't go into browned I recognised

a fellow standing in the door whom I knew.

Mr. Johnson. You had been steered against the first by the policeman?

Mr. Allison. Yes; the policeman steered me into the first one and I knew better than to go into the third place. I didn't have any spite at myself, so stayed away from there. Then I went over and went through what they called "Aunt Mate's Holly Tork".

Mr. Cooper. ..ho's Honky Fork!

They have got a sign up---they had a sign up there, "Some-thing doing ever hour in the day".

Mr. Johnson. What was doing in the "Homby Tonk"

In. Allison. .ell, I went in. It is a bear halfend a dames hall. And then they put on all sorts of ctunts for the lastivious curiosity of a lot of white lastices.

L. Roller. Unites?

II. Allison. Yes; white women were in there. The night I as in there, it was located up with white women and white men.

If . Roker. Seeing the "Honky Tork".

Ib. Allison. Yes; speing the Truly Tork'.

Let Daker. Does the "Honky Tonk" reall, come out?

(Laughter). Now I just use that it a mild method. I just want to know if the vulgarity at is shown as much as it can be.

Mr. Allison. This night I was in there it was fairly tame: it was early in the evening, and I am glad it was. I dishit case to tarry any longer or see any more. It was

vulgar enough. There were all sorts of suggestion, and there were rooms for rent and everything else.

Mr. Raker. What do you mean "rooms for rent"?

Mr. Allison. Lell, for momentary purposes; for prostitution, of course. And this I have been told---now that deplorable condition at Brooklyn I was told by Mr. Jones out there, who was superintendent of the schools, that in the graduating class---that is stricktly almost an unanimously a negro town, Brooklyn is, or Lovejoy---he told me that ---I want to get these figures right---

Mr. Roller. Is he white man or a colored man?
Mr. Allison. A colored man, and principal of that
high school, and a very fine gentleman. He told me that
year before last---that is, 1915---that out of a graduating
class of colored girls what he should have had 16. He had
three. Fifteen of them had gone to the bad.

II. Johnson. They had graduated down to Aunt Mate's?
Liv. Allison. Graduated in vice; yes. This last year,
in 1916, out of a class of 24 that he had, I think these
are the exact ligures -- himmigratherm -- he only had one to
graduate.

In. Raker. The rest had gone to the bad?

If. Allison. The rest had gone to the bad. That is the horrible condition.

Mr. Raker. Well this year he won't have any?

Ib. Allison. Possibly not.

Mr. Foster. Is Brooklyn in this county?

.b. Allison. Yos, sir.

II. Boolar. They would take those jirls in there and

fill them with drink, I suppose?

Mr. Allison. Yes.

Ifr. Cooper. .ere girls allowed to drink?

Mr. Allison. Oh, yes; anybody.

Mr. Cooper. Thite or black?

Mr. Allison. Yes.

Er. Cooper. Encouraged to do it?

Mr. Allison. Oh, yes.

Ir. Raker. Was that allowed in these other places that you have described?

Mr. Allison. Girls were allowed to drink.

Mr. Johnson. Simply allowed or encouraged?

Mr. Allison. You couldn't call it anything else but encouragement; everybody drinking and just maudlin revelry.

Mr. Haller. That I mean, now, were the colored and white intermixed?

Mr. Allison. Well, not so much intermixed. Magrogirls perved the tables. There weren't any negroes and whites seated at the same tables together.

In. Raker. But wh were there places where the regroes and whites associated together?

Mr. Allison. Not that I mow of. One of those colored men out there told me of finding a white woman stripped of all her clothing, drunk, lying in the street, one merning as he was going to work. He called some neighbors and they got clothing on her and got her sobered up. She was sent to St. Louis. Now, there were numbers of these girls that were brought to that Drocklyn place; were young girls that were gathered in and brought from St. Louis, and these gambling

joints there had machines running regularly every few minutes, and they had a man at the door who announced.--

Mr. Johnson. By "machines", you don't mean gambling machines, but automobiles?

Mr. Allison. Automobiles. They had automobiles running from Venice, Madison, Craniccity, East St. Louis and St. Louis, and they had a fellow who stood at the door and announced "all aboard for St. Louis"; if anybody was going to St. Louis, there we an automobile to carry them. If anybody going to matter city, there was an automobile; anybody going to Mast Mt. Louis, there was an automobile. It was a regular Monte Carlo.

Ifr. Johnson. There were these automobiles stationed for this purpose?

Mr. Allison. At those gambling places.

Mr. Poster. Brooklyn is a unmicipality of itself, and not in Mast St. Louis?

Im. Allisom. Yes, sir.

Mr. Raher. Was this gambling here in East St. Louis something similar to the others you have described?

Mr. Allison. Well, it was not carried on so openly.

We Raker. That do you know about this case that was just brought up here day before yesterday in which a man's a jay license was taken/from him and he made the statement that he would go on right on just the same---the Mechanics' Club?

Do you know anything about that, about the gambling here in East St. Louis?

Mr. Allison. . No; I know about this --- now this is in reference back to that first riot, May 28th. It also shows

the lawless spirit that existed in this town. The man by the name of lickee down here that runs a saloon --- the order had gone out from the soldiers that all saloons must be closed. They discovered this fellow lekes mas with his place open; they went in---now, as I understand it, he is am ex-prize fighter --- they went into his saloon and he struck at one of the soldiers and did strike him, and the soldier pulled out his large service gun, side arm, and shoved it into his side and told him he would kill him if he made another move, so McKee cursed him and said, "It men't do you a dammed bit of good to take me to the police station. You can take me up there and I'll be back here and I'llbe open bafore you can get back down here. So they took him to the police station and this soldier lad, who had arrested him, told me that Malee cursed him in the presence of the officers and told him that he would be open before he jot beek down there; before he could get back down there, he would be open again.

Mr. Raker. Did the officers make any protence to stop MoMee's spearing at the coldier?

Lr. Allison. Not so for as I know.

Mr. Raker. In other words, they showed encouragement of it?

Mr. Allison. Yes. That is the spirit of things. That is just it now.

The Raker. Now, from all the statements you have told, what effect has this had upon the young girls that are here in Dart St. Louis who attend high school, or ought to attend high-

school?

Provided the function of every institution in the torm. No church and can do what it ought to do; no school can do what it ought to do; no school can do what it ought to do. And it has thrown the whole city into just a state of vice that is contagious, and, like I said a moment ago, it has crept up into the lives of some of the men in high places, men who ought not to countenance a lot of things that they do countenance. They do countenance it and let it go and they laugh and joke about it on the streets and in the places of business.

The Raker. Have you ever heard anothing about hunds less given in the way of purette by these hetel proprietors of which these hotels, you have described, to discriminations any of the justices here in this city?

W. Allisen. I never heard anything about the hotels doing it. I understand Haris Hall gave Justice Clark the new deak he has in his office on an election present. She keeps a house of prostitution.

II. Roker. Jhere?

It. Allison. At 20s St. Louis Avenue. That is the last place that she was located. And he was the man who came to the front—he was the man who came to the front when her place was one of the places that I helped raid, and he was the man that came to the front and I think used his influence in cetting the fine of \$25, for selling liquor without a licence, stayed.

The Copper. Right in thinks connection with Justice Clark, let me real the witness an item that appears in the Globe Democrat of today: "St. Louis, The Globe Democrat, Friday morning,

November 9, 1917". An item on page 3: "Two Saloon Keepers Fined. - Jemes Schwab, a saloon keeper, 201 Exchange Avenue. East St. Louis, was fined \$20 and costs by Justice E. E. Clark yesterday when he pleaded guilty to a charge of remaining open after midnight, and Drew Easton, a saloon proprietor, 8609 State Street, was fined \$5 and costs by Clark for selling liquor on Sunday. He pleaded guilty. Motorcycle patrolman Harry Schultz testified that he saw fifty persons drinking in Easton's seloon on Sunday".

One saloon keeper who pleaded guilty got \$20 and costs.

Another saloon keeper the same day/whose/the policeman said

fifty people that he saw in there drinking---nobody knows
how many more pleaded guilty---and he got \$5 and costs.

Do you know anything about hey that sort of discrimination
happens in Justice Clark's court?

He. Allison. Ho: only the thing that is the common ourword rumor around here, that any salcon hooger that will line up belief the administration, would have fifty people in his place after 12 o'clock Saturday might would be fined 500, while some fellow that didn't line all around be fined 2000.

Mr. Johnson. The fellow that had fifty persons in his saloon was fined \$5.00---10 cents a head. Maybe the fellow fined \$20.00 had two hundred. (Laughter).

Mr. Allisen. No; he was fined for keeping open after hours and the other was fined for violating the Sunday law.

the lime Cooper. Is that/same Justice Clark you were talking to Judge Raker about?

Mr. Allicon. Yes; the same man.

IF. Raker. That about the price of this desk the judge has?

Mr. Allison. This Justice Clark is the same justice that turned that bunch of rioters loose, too, immediately after the riot on July 2nd.

Mr. Raker. About what is the price of this desk?

ir. Allison. I don't imov.

In. Raker. Lat does it look like?

Mr. Allison. Well, it is a nice desk.

Mr. Rater. A hard wood dosk?

Mr. Allison. It would cost about 150, I guess.

Mr. Rober. Is Marie a married lady?

The Allison. well. I don't know that sin is, July (laughter).

The Raker. This is not a fourning matter at all. If they have got any information they want to give instead of laughing, I would like to hear it. If you want to be decent and honest, come forward and don't sit buch and laugh. That is my theory on the matter. I never joint in a sourt room or any other place a lot of the sering around and uniting a court room of the for spenisport. They can be gentlemen there or not at all. and is at theory on the matter, and I never permit it. Julie I am on a committee, as far as one is concerned and I know all the rest of the domnittee is concerned ... I am not going to submit to it, as long as I/hold mysolf.

Hr. Allison. I don't know Nother she is a married form or not. I have been told that she was quite wealthy. I have beard that she---

Mr. Malor (interposing). For what purpose could she have

given this desir to the judge?

Mr. Allison. Well, friendship of course, which promising possibly had its aim for protection. I can't conceive of anything else.

Mr. Raher. Now, what do you know about turning these nen loose, these rioters that were arrested, some eighty or minaty of them, by Justice Clark?

. IF. Allison. I just kno / that they were turned loose; that is all.

He. Roller. Athont any hearing?

The Allison, well, they may contend that there was a hearing. I usn't prosent at it. I heard they were turned loose, and I think his claim afterwards---I heard this. I think, that he has acted upon instructions from State's Attorney Scheumleffel.

Her Loker. To turn them loose?

Te. Alliann. Tos.

Mr. Johnson. Not his god today that?

Mr. Allicon. I heard that at the dity Hall.

The Johnson. Do you remember from them you heard it?

In. Allicon. It was being talked in just a bunch of sen. It was being talked and I beard the statement made. I don't remember just the was present.

In. River. Would there be any way with at any empense to you to find out the o'med the property that has destroyed by the here on the find?

H. Allison. The number of pieces of property:

H. Belev. No; who a new the preparty that was destroyed, the real estate?

I. Allison. You can get that from the real estate men. I understand there was about 247 homes burned.

E. Raker. I just wanted to know if you thought it would be easy.

Ir. Allison. The Controller, I think, ought to have that. I think the claims were filed with the Controller.

These things that I have related, gentlemen, I have related them before we came to the question of the riot, because they are pertinent to it. These conditions were the open high ay over which the riot proceeded, and I think that fairly well covers the situation. I have no checked-out, methodical program to follow; only in my mind things as they happened and were said to me, things that I know about.

the Cooper. In You mean by that last statement, of course of your, that in your julgment the good recople--- and there are many good recople in this city---

E. Allison. Lots of them.

(continuing)
11. Cooper. have become absolutely hopeless of any enCoreamnt of law mm and order in Dast St. Louis?

Tr. Allison. I found it exceedingly difficult last election time to stir up any enthusiasm at all among the better class of citizens.

IF. Johnson. Do you mean the election of last Tuesday?

If. Allison. No; the election campaign—the mayoralty campaign last April. I found it exceedingly difficult to stir up any hind of enthusiasm among the better class of people. They would answer me by saying, "It is hopoless". I would tell their that Impor Mollman had promised me, the pledges he had made, and they would smile and say, "we have heard that so

often that we can't believe it".

Mr. Johnson. They just seemed resigned to what seemed to be inevitable.

Er. Allison. It seemed that way.

Ly. Cooper. Did you have fathers and mothers speak to you often about the terrible dangers which surrounded their growing young children in this town?

In. Allison. No: the only people whoever spoke to me were folks who had children that had become involved.

Tr. Cooper. Did you have several of those?

12. Allison. Quite 2 few of them came to me; yes, sir; fathers with boys---

My. Cooper. Gambling houses, etc?

Ir. Allison. Yes, sir.

Ir. Johnson. ..hat gambling games did they have here besides craps?

E. Allison. ..ell, ---

II. Jolmson. Faro bank?

Mr. Allison. I don't know whether they did or not.

Fr. Johnson. Roullette?

Mr. Allison. I don't know. I saw chuck games at Brooklyn; stud poker; draw poker, and crap games.

If. Cooper. Here those games on the square, the poker games and the others, or did they have professional cappers who stood around?

Mr. Allison. They were professional games.

12. Gogger. And beat innocent players and honest minded players, rolbed them?

Mr. Bokm Alaison. Cortainly.

Mr. Rahar. Before he starts in on the riot, I would Tike to ask him this question: You have heard of "whisky Chule"?

.F. Allison. Yes, sir.

Ir. Raker. That was the condition on that street before the riot, now?

In. Allison. Well, I can tell you how the railroad mon always looked at it. As the boys used to say, "In you want excitement or a foot race, that is a good place to go for it". It was a dangerous place. The salcons that were conducted up there were——it is not bad like it used to be.

Mr. Raker. Well, I am talking---say the 27th of May; confine your testimony to that.

In. Allison. A newspaper reporter, Mr. Altrock here in term, told me be had gone through that lietrist up there.—
I never checked it up personally appelf——and he told me he had gone through there and there were lots of restitutes there in connection with the saloons on the "Chate". That was a year ago.

The Raher. That I was getting at now is. have you heard any statements as to the way they treated the cuttle men that came to the stock yards to cell their horses and cattle and mules and hogs and sheep?

Mr. Allison. Only what I have read in the paper of men who were out-of-town men who lost some money occasionally. but that has been done down town here.

Mr. Rober. It has?

Mr. Allison. Yes; some of those instances.

. Mr. Cooper. I want to ask you a moment about those

stolen eigarettes -- over \$3,000 worth of them stolen -- \$3500 worth. Now, about a thousand dollars' worth, or approximately/was found in Albrecht's place?

Mr. Allison. I think it was 1900 worth.

Mr. Cooper. Just where is his place located?

Mr. Allison. His place is located on Broadway, directly in the face of Collinstille Avenue.

Mr. Cooper. Is it a very prominent place?

Mr. Allison. Yes; a very prominent place. He is a wholesale liquor dealer.

Mr. Cooper. Now where were these digarettes found in his place; do you know?

In. Allison. Mr. Coffer said that the secret service men had tracked them down and found them there.

Mr. Cooper. The United States or the railroad secret service mon?

Mr. Allison. He dilm't may which.

The Cooper. Some secret service officers located than there?

In. Allison. Yes, sir.

Mr. Cooper. And this can was arrested for receiving stolen goods?

Mr. Allison. Yes, sir.

Mr. Cooper. What statement Jid he make about it; do you know?

Mr. Mlison. Mr. Alerecat?

Ir. Cooper. Yes.

Ib. Allison. I don't know: only in a general way, as I remember having glanced over it through the paper. I think

he contended that they were bought gardsmann in his absence, ---s mething like that. I think that was his plea.

Mr. Cooper. That is his name in full?

D. Allison. Henry Albrecht.

Mr. Cooper. Is that what the sign reads over his place?

Mr. Allison. Well, I think it is the Albrecht Liquor Company---A --E - B - R --E - C - H - T - is the way it is spelled.

12. Cooper. In your opinion, didn't bear a good reputation in this community?

IF. Allison. That is the general expenses of opinion of such men as Mr. Mollman, that he had dabbled in politics and he refused to close his saloon and things like that...

Mr. Cooper. You said that Mr. Mollach told you that he was one of the dirtiest politicians in the City?

In. Allison. In. Iblian male that statement to me, and he said, "I thin: I have him croken of dabbling in politics. Now this Ib. Albrecht played a lottery—there in his place, something similar to that, and was apprehended and made to stop that.

IM. Cooper. Yes: that it what I was getting to. I have a note of that. Now we have a men whom the Phyor of this city said was one of the dirtiest fin politicians in the City, and a man he had been arrested for the violation of the house of the State of Illinois in heading a public of ottory.

To Allison. Yes, sir.

(continuing).

The Grouper. In his place; and a man whom the reputable portion of the community didn't think had a good character, and the population; and 4900 worth of stolen cixqurettes are

3603

106 t

down in his premises and he is arrested and charged with receiving stolen goods?

Er. Allison. Yes, sir.

Mr. Cooper. Then when he is brought to trial, a very considerable number of these gentlemen who are on the Committee of One Eunored to see that proper conditions obtain in this municipality, go up before this jury at Danville and testify to his good character?

I. Illison. Yes. II. Croney Reeb President, Southern Illinois Mational Bank, was one of the men.

Mr. Cooper. Do you know whether Albrecht banks with bin?

Mr. Allison. I think he is a stockholder in the bank. In. Cooper. Well, that would tend to help his character same. Those things have a powerful influence, you know, in astimuting the character of same of our leading sitizens, if they are stockholders in our banks sametimes. (Taughter). Now these people that man are called "leading and prominent", had some of they anything to justify that word "leading" and "prominent", except that they have get money?

Er. Allison. I need to say this in justice to Er. Joyce.Er. Cooper. Well, I don't mean Joyce, but mean some of these others.

In . Allison. I have mentioned his name as charged by Ir. Pollman that he blocked the enforcement of the law. Mr. four, says that that is a lie, and says he'll face Hollman in that he didn't block him finite in the enforcement of the law, and I have found ir. Joyce a very mame fair man.

Ir. Scoper. I'll say that good sitizens here have told me or spolen to me in high terms also of Mr. Joyce. I don't

know anything about him at all.

Hr. Allison. There are a lot of mighty fine people in .

East St. Louis, good citizens. I have been warned what I would get if I pursued the course that I did pursue, and if I did what I am now doing. It came in an indirect way.

. If . Johnson. Did you get any warning or any threats as to your testimony before this Committee? Will you be good enough to bring it to the attention of the Committee?

Mr. Allison. If I do?

Mr. Johnson. If you get any warning or any threat from anybody because you testified before this Committee, bring it to the attention of the Johnmittee.

Mr Allison. Fill be glad to do it.

Mr. Johnson. We'll be glad to have it.

Mr. Cooper. You haven't mm impressed the Committee as being an especially timid man.

Mr. Allison. Well, I'll tell you now seriously, I have weighed this whole thing.

Mr. Cooper. You appreciate the danger, I suppose?

Mr. Allison. I do. They sent a man---I say they sent a man to my church and told me they were going to kill me--- that is, he came and months posed as a friend, saying that he had got it that it was framed up in a certain salcon---now he came to me on Monday---

Tr. Johnson. Monday when?

Hr. Allison. This was back--

Mr. Johnson. Not relative to this investigation?

Tr. Allison. No; not mand relative to this investigation at all. He told he he knew it was framed up in a certain salcon here on the Bunday before that they were going to get me,

108

and I asked him what he meant by "get"me, and he said that they were going to "crock" me. And he said that he believed that I was a pretty good fellow; said he didn't agree with me on many of my ideas about closing salcons, and things like that, but he believed I was a square out and he had some out there as a friend to tell me. I made this reply to him and this is the way I felt about it, absolutely --- I tola him that he could go back and tell them that I knew they could do it; that any I knew that any one of them in a cowardly cur-like movement could put me off watch, but that I wanted him to go tell them this, that I believed implicitly in what I presched; that I a cepted the reality of the other life like I accept the reality of this life; that I was satisfied that my relationship with my God was right; that I had a good heavy life insurance to take care of my wife and boys until my boys sculd bear the burden. Thatever they were going to do, they could do it any time, for I was determined that I had rather die, be hilled by that gang, than to back up or run one irch from them.

Mr. Cooper. East St. Louis ought to have more like you.

Mr. Allison. Tow I don't say that to be saying that sort

of thing, but I feel that way about it. I have the friendship of all the geople in East St. Louis. It has been with

a great deal of---I haven't wanted to mention things here

that I have on certain men. I would rather not have made

them in this hird of a statement, but something must be done
in East St. Touis to amaken a lot of these people who at least

were good men man at one time, and I am telly you frankly that
I have studied the situation, and I believe there are men in

East St. Jouis today who don't mean to be corrupt but who have become so accustomed to the contamination of the vice and the corruptness that has is here that they unconsciously drift into things and are really not aware of the heincusness of the situation in which they find themselves. I believe that. If that things is conceivable at all, I believe it. Now I love these men. Lots of them I have learned to love. But something must be done in East 3t. Louis, and it must come from the better class of citizens.

Ir. Cooper. Tell, it is the corruption in the high places, among the so-called better element, who pose as respectable, but who are really whited sepulchres---that is the corruption that has jot to be suposed.

I'r. Allison. That is so.

and fraudulent kind of corruption. There are lots of people. lots——and too many——who are so indifferent to public criticism or private opinion that they go had and stay so and let everybody know it; care mt nothing about it, but there are others who pose as respectable. //set into high positions and places of trust, and there isn't anything about them that is honorable, not a thing at heart. Isn't that so?

In. Allison. That is so; and the chief sinner in this town is the owner of property. Tow I have tracked that thing down and found it so. They take exharbitant rents. Now you take this place that is described by Yark Hall, this prostitute. 208 St. Jouis Evenue---and I am informed that Tisher Brothers have the representing of that. One of them went to the deacon in my church and said that I had no basiness doing what I was doing; that I didn't have any basiness moudling with

11c t

anything cutside of my pulpit.

Ir. Johnson. Thich one of them was it that did that?

Ir. Allison. I don't know. Hr. McMnight can tell you.

I can find out which one it was. Now that place down there,
if you go and look at it, it isn't worth \$15 a month. It

wouldn't rent for that for a legitimate surpose, but I understand that the last rent that woman was paying was \$35 a month;
that she had paid 350 a month for that shack.

Er. Cooper. A poor building, is it?

ir. Allison. A poor building, in a very bad location; it is low and water stands in there when it rains. It is beside railroad tracks; smoky, dirty, filthy, and all of that.

How these salocns, these dives here in town that are housed by these property owners, they all pay an enormous rent in order to occupy some prominent place. Now that raises the rent on other pieces of property. If It makes it hard for the little merchant next door. Here is a real estate can and says. There, so and so ment door to me there, that saloon pays his a certain amount of rent. You have jot to raise your rent". He has jot to some up to it. It raised, rent on the property that I live in out here in town. It is an economical curse. That is what it is.

ir. dooper. Then when it comes to an investigation of corruption, distressful conditions in the community, some of these property owners get on a Committee of One Fundred, that is appointed or selected to investigate these carditions, and report a renewy or do something to help stop it?

Ir. Allison. Yes, sir: they do better than that --- the noment that their tenants are arrested, either they ex

111 t

bondsmen there before the police can get them to the police station to go on their bond immidiately so they won't be disturbed and can get back at once and get at their business.

Now you take the night in which that raid was conducted that I tell you about, why Er. Schein was present in that and told me that before the policemen jot back with those people that they sent for, bondsmen were there in the police station, inquiring if they had anybody there from such and such a number, ready to go on their bond.

Mr. Cooper. Well, that shows some sort of a system.

Mr. Allison. It is all mrayed up together.

in high places, or prominent places, doesn't it?

Mr. Allison. Yes.

Dr. Cooper. An absolute demonstration that some of them are at the very center of Lathority?

Mr. Allison. Certainly.

If. Cooper. That is a demonstration of that fact. And
if I may be allowed to ask you this question, do you know
that in some of the larger cities of the country, where similar
distressful conditions have arisen, investigations have revealed,
as they have revealed here, that some of the most culpable
of the considerators and most dangerous have been men in high
official station?

Mr. Allison. Certainly.

Lr. Coc.er. You remember for example, don't you---of course you do---the swful marder of Dr. Cronin in Chicago not so many years ago?

Mr. Allison. Yes.

Mr. Cooper. And that one of the chief conspirators in that murder was one of the most prominent detectives in the city?

Er. Allison. Yes, sir.

Mr. Cooper. You know about the murder in New York?

Er. Allison. Of Becker?

and recently in Philadelphia we have a mayor indicted for a conspiracy to corrit murder—"wholesale murder" as the Chairman suggests—and we see very prominent men, men in prominent political positions and in official positions indicted, charged with a conspiracy to commit murder, and hiring gunmen to come down from New York and Jersey City and commit deliberate murder in Philadelphia. So the only/to reach an enduring solution of these things is to have the investigation fearless and go to the bottom and do justice against every conspirator, no matter how high he may hitherto have stood in the community. Isn't that so?

Hr. Allison. That is so.

Lr. Cooper. Follow the trail of guilt wherever it goes.

Mr. Allison. Yes, sir.

Ir. Cooper. You are not responsible. The guilty man alone is responsible. It is the so-called "respectable" gentlemen who pose as respectable, who are really hypocrites, and, as the bible says, "whited sepulchres", that are the danger in this Pepublic. Isn't that so?

Mr. Allison. Certainly that is so.

Mr. Paker. Now go on and explain about the riot of

May 28 and 29.

Mr. Johnson. And any other causes which you haven't told about which may have led up to it.

Er. Baker. We might turn the examination for just a moment on something else. Have you made an examination so you sould give the Committee any information as to the kind of houses and the surroundings and living conditions of these men that work in East St. Louis?

Mr. Allison. I have.

Mr. Raker. Before you start in on that riot; and that will have some tendency to show the disposition --- what has been that condition.

Er. Allison. This all has a direct bearing on this riot situation. These terrible lawless conditions that have existed here, and then the inferior, contemptible provisions that are made for people to live in. Höre in East St. Touis the men, as possibly has been brought out here, who control these large interests, do not live here. They live in other cities. I remember last---now I'm not blamin, them for that, but I know, for instance, that Hr. Armour, who owns property in Cmaha and other cities, couldn't live in all the cities. But here is my point: Last winter we were trying to put on a campaign here to get a day nursery. To had a lot of women in East in Touis who were middless and who had been left in straitened pircumstances, and had gone to work and locked their chilu in in their homes. There were two or three cases in which the homes were burned, children losing their lives.

We began a campaign here to get a day nursery. It proceeded fairly well, and when we came to a campaign and put it up to these packing industries that own plants here, in which these women worked, we felt as though they owed a special obligation here, one of these large packers said that he had no such interest in East St. Louis. When that word came back to me it made me indignant. I replied to it by saying, "Any man who has a financial interest and knows no moral nor social obligation with it is a criminal.

ir. Raker. That sounds good.

Mr. Allison. Well, that is the truth. That is the philosophy of the thief, of the hold-up man. Purely a financial interest in any man leads to criminality.

Ir. Raker. Now just 30 right on and proceed whether or not the conduct of the whole situation as to rent, as to location, as to general consitions, has been such that would bring about the conduct of man, women in an improper way.

Er. Allisch. Yes. I went to the Mayor and appealed to him to take it up with the Health Papartment. There were come horrible conditions on Eru Street, immediately back of the police and fire station, near Reynolds Seed Company, in which people were living in much shacks. How to understand that, this city is filled in; the streets have been filled in and the lowlands have been left.

ir. Raker. In other words, the streets are from one to ten feet higher than the lowlands?

If allison. Yes: and a lot of these houses that ought it one tire possibly fore little or foundations on the level have been raised up by foundations to bring them up to the

street level and that leaves a great basement underneath.

Now some of those places are rented for people to live in.

Mr. Ra er. I see one right down here. There is one right here within 200 feet of this building; two or three people are living there.

Mr. Allison. I can show you any number of that kind of conditions. I have said this: My mother lives on a farm. We have better cow sheds; we have a letter chicken house, on my mother's farm, than lots of people live in in this town. This one instance that I brought to the Mayor's attention was a room about ten by twelve, in which a family lived; one room. The only light they had was coming from above, from a glass that is put in---from a vitrified glass that is put in the walk, you know. Now that is all the light they had, and I understand they were paying in a month for that one room.

Mr. Raker. Now just stop right the I am going to get the location of that and the man's need that rented it.

Mr. Allison. Mr. Gerold was the owner of it, as I understand it. He owns it and rented it to those people.

... Raker. What is his first name?

Mr. Allison. I don't know which Jerold it is. He owns that property.

Mr. Raker. Where was this located?

Mr. Allison. That was located on 3rd Street, near the Reynold's Seed Company.

Mr. Cooper. Is it the former City Treasurer or his father that owns that property?

Er. Allison. It is in the family. I con't know whether his father owns it or the former City Treasurerowns it.

Now these things that I am giving you now will be largely general, because I have plans——I am formulating plans for
the gathering of specific social statistics in East St. Louis.
They haven't been carried out yet, but these things I come to
you and show them to you. For instance, up here to this place near
Collinsville lyenue, that was inhabited by negroes; nothing
but old ice houses, or old harnes, that have been partitioned
off and rented to these people, and they are living in them
like sardines packed inmakes into a can.

ir. Raker. Undoubtedly large rents are paid?

it. I don't know who owns those pieces of property, but if I owned one of them I would be ashamed of myself to rent one of them.

Mr. Raker. Well, that is a very good location for property. It must be men who have large amount of property that own them.

Lr. Allison. I don't know who owns them. Allof the property—and you take when this large influx of negroes came in here, one man mail man told me. "I had twelve negro families on my route two months alon—now this was said before the riot, because I think any man in East St. Louis, who was trying to be conversant with the situation, kept himself informed; he knew that something was coming. It was an impending thing—imminent, liable to have crashed at any moment. Twelve families, I think he said——it was either

twelve or sixteen families that he had---and in two months he had either 212 or 216. If the first number was 12, the the other was 216.

Er. Raker. In this character of houses?

Mr. Allison. In this character of houses, on one route. There were no modern conveniences; racked into places where where water stood in the street.

Mr. Raker. To running water?

Er. Allison. I don't think there was running wat.

Mr. Raker. No sewer connection with it?

Er. Allison. Possibly not; desspools, I think, in most of those places.

ir. Raker. To drainage? In other words it is manth sort of a kind of reservoir built around practically all of those place lots, isn't it?

In. Allison. I think it is. I think that is the general sindificn. They were especially filthy—with cans, trash, etc. Some of the durping grounds of the city are near some of these places where these people are compelled to live. Out here in this foreign district, one of these dumping grounds is out there, where the headless body of that baker's boy was found, the Regarden baby. He is an Armenian, a baker here in town. His child was hidnapped and beheaded because he failed to get the ranson maney to them.

Mr. Raher. And ther found the child's head out in the jurbaje?

hr. Allison. They first found the body and then found its head afterwards.

Mr. Johnson. Is there ary hind of crime that you haven't had here?

Mr. Allison. No kind of crime. I'll say this to you.

Mr. Chairman: Government secret service men with whom I have
been familiar have told me---and I and they have traveled
all over this country---one man that you might know, if I
would speak his name, tells me that of all the flagrant
violations of law, the lowest class of crocks that he had
run into anywhere in the United States, these here take the
prize over all of them. For that is the statement.

If . Raker. Now not only as to the negro quarters, have us some idea as to where these white men, who had families and had to work for their family living, had to live. Give us some idea as to that.

Example of the white people are compelled to live in those sections, too. I have been in places——for instance, here is one scene that I will bring to pour mind: I was called u on to do some charity work in a family that lived in the result a home on datey livenue within——well, that is cut in a family growinent part of the town——but now on the rear by that there was a sort of a woodshed house, back on the rear of the lot. To have a number of those in East 3t. Touis, and a family lives in them.

in. Paker. In the woodshelf

LV. Lilison. Yes; there was a family that lived in this lived. The father was a frunkard and he was in jail at the tips. The nother Grank also. She wasn't at home when I

called, but I heard of a case of destitution; snow was on the ground. I was called to go there to administer some immediate needs to that family. Seven shildred met me at the door. A boy a little beyond twelve years of age, who had on an old gair of ran's trousers that were rolled up, man an old pair of shoes, no stockings, no underwear, holes in his shoes and he had been out scufflin, around in the snow to find coal and had frozen his feet; The he had an old cout thrown on him. The youngest child was a baby fifteen menths old, and a little jirl about seven years old had her saught on her minum hip; she was ascustomed to holding the child, you could tell by the position of it. It was one of the rost Caplorable scenes you ever saw. One of those little cirls about four years old, I should judge---maybe between three and Cour---mann hadn't a stitch of clothes on at all, same a little old plast cost and a pair of cloth shoes that were regged, of source. Now you think of that--not a stitub of elothes save those articles that I have mentioned.

Hr. Johnson. You say the Cather was a drunkard?

12. Allison. He was a druckard and was in jail at this time.

hr. Founson. That family was one of the beneficiaries of the Post of. Touis salcons.

Mr. Allison. Certainly.

Mr. Johnson. The mother too?

hr. All'son. The nother too. Pully eight-tenths of the destitution in East St. Touis is caused almost directly--comes from families that drink. Emerchance There is very

120 t

little destitution in East St. Louis, very little calls
for charity, but what the saloon with its whisky influence is
back of it.

Hr. Johnson. Is it your opinion that the man who gets 1375 dollars a month for a corner room 12 feet one way and 20 feet the other way is the man who is profiting by that destitution?

Mr. Allison. He is the man whose money is taken out of the mouths of the children and challes off of their backs to warm his feet and buy the coal that burns in his grate, that ought to be in when theirs.

Mr. Raker. That is quite extensive in this city, isn't it? Mr. Allison. Quite extensive; yes, sir.

Mr. Raker. How many families do you think are affected on that way---that is, generally affected?

Ir. Allison. I wouldn't be able to tell how many, but the destitution in East St. Icuis is terrible. The proportion is great. Thy, we put on all sorts of campaigns here ever year to relieve the situation. I have young men's bible class in my church that has a program on now to raise \$600 for charity this winter, to buy who groceries and coal. We pay no house rent at all. We won't pay house rent, but we'll buy things to eat, clothes to wear, and coal to keep them warm, and every penny of that money and more too will be spent, and that is just one——we are just one part of the man charity work of this city. The conditions are terrible: You can't hardly be specific about the living conditions among the poor, working class.

Mr. Re er. Well, in maditing addition to the small wage.

121 t

there is the extortionate high rent?

Mr. Allison. That is it.

Mr. Raker. The other conditions/take their money from them for drink, and the things connected with it, practically leaves the family helpless:

Mr. Allison. It does.

Mr. Raker. And many of these men now go to these salcons and more or less drink?

Mr. Allison. I don't see how the poor working man of this town who is drawing a salary that is away under what comes to me. I don't see how--to use the language that is commonly used---I don't see how he is getting by.

Mr. Foster. Do you mean that the living, the rent that he has to pay, and the prices for his products---food and clothing that he has to purchase for himself and family?

Mr. Allison. Yes. If he has any children to send to school---

Mr. Raker. Not saying anything about those who are spending money in these miserable holes around here?

Mr. Allison. Yes, sir. Even the fellow who is on the square and the fellow who is doing what is right and isn't squandering his money.—he has a close enough time right now.

Er. Cooper. Is it a fact that some of the working men--quite a percentage of them---don't work every day, leaving
out Sundays---every working day in the year---but there are
dull times when they are laid off in numbers for two or three
months at a time.

Mr. Allison. I think that is true.

Mr. Cooper. The United States reports and the report

Mr. Allison. Yes, sir. I doubt if \$500 a year is the average of the working man's salary of East St. Louis. I doubt if it is.

Mr. Raher. This enormous rent that is paid to the salson, his expenses, the proportion that he must pay to his hangersen, the money that he must pay to the constables and deputy sheriffs and others interested—pimps—the amount that must be collected for the slash fund for political and other purposes, all comes out of the ninety per cent of the population here in East St. Louis, that are laboring men, daily wage earners?

Mr. Raher. And must, mm of necessity, make a deplorable condition as to the home and as to the welfare and as to the condition of these young boys and jirls that mm have been brought into existence and are being brought up here as imerican citizens. Isn't that right?

Mr. Allison. That is right; absolutely.

Mr. Allison. Most assuredly.

Mr. Raker. They are cursed from the time they are born until something also overtubes them, if they sturbere. Isn't

123 t

that right?

E. Allison. Yes; it is so.

They haven't got much relief, have they?

In. Allison. They haven't much hope, either.

Mr. Reher. How with that question, who is your health officer?

Ir. Allison. Ir. McCracken.

Mr. Roher. Now, do you mor whether or not your health officer has been renting shaeks to these poor people?

In. Allison. I hav, heard that In. McGracken owned a piece of property in The Valley. I haven't checked it form to know that that is sure.

If. Reler. That has been testified to by several others. We will check that down and be sure. That is in the crooked part of the town where women live?

E. Alligon. Yes.

In. Raher. That is what you mean by the 'erooked' part?

II. Allison. Tes; "The Volley". Whenever you say "The Valley" in East St. Lovis, it means the "red light district".

Mr. Raker. Ordinarily "valley", you know, means a very prosperous, healthy condition. These switch conditions --- and you can just go and see them now yourself?

IP. Allison. Yes; they are here.

Mr. Rainr. They have been before this health officer all this time?

Ir. Allieon. You.

It. Esher. And do you know of employe thing that he has done to relieve these conditions?

In Allison. No. The Mayor called in the assistant in that office and had me tell to him some of the deplorable conditions that I had found among the living quarters of these people, and I was promised that the thing would be gone into and that it would be remedied. I have been out of the city, then, all of the summer, assem especially after this riot. This riot came on then and I do chautauqua work through the summers, quite a good deal of lecturing, and I was out of the city and away, and then since I have been back I have been taken up with other things. I don't know whether those conditions exist or not, but we could soon go to the property and find out.

In. Raker. Well, is this the same McGracken that you people have to pay tames in addition to your rent and taxes --- these poor people have to pay something towards tames have, don't they?

Ir. Allison. Tes.

In . Rabor. In the way of rent and other conditions that amount to it. Is this the same ReGrashen that was interested in the way of having some land condermed for the use of the severage matem or later Levee Board?

Mr. Allison. He is the same men.

II. Allison. He is the same man.

Hr. Redor. And that instead of losing on the deal, after having paid this widow about \$5,000, he got for his property in the neighborhood of \$45,000?

Im. Allison. He is the same man.

In Raher. Well now, just one question: You wouldn't expect a man that would treat a widow that way and rent him property right here in the shadow of your temple of justice, to give very much deep cencern as to the health and condition of the men and women who are struggling here to make a living, would you?

Mr. Allison. No: I don't expect anything from him.

Mr. Raher. Then I haven't drawn it too strong from the questions I have asked, have I?

Let Allison. No; my conclusion, if it is true in one case, must be true in all---whenever a man's interests center wholly in a financial scheme, he is on the road to criminality, and all items of brotherhood are fead in his life.

if. Raker. Human lives are nothing?

II. Allison. Nothing.

In. Reher. Well, isn't it a fact, leading up now to man the attitude of the mind prior to May 28th---and that is what I am asking you for---don't the conditions surrounding the people, as you have described, both men and women, old and young, affect their mental way of doing and thinking and acting?

12. Allison. Oh, it does.

The Rater. In mm what way? In a baser way or in a higher way?

Hr. Allison. In a baser way. That is the groundwork of my making the statement that the functions of the church --- it cannot perform its full duty in a situation like we have here. A school cannot do it. I have talked with some good school men who know this situation here; who know it, and they have told me that they are almost ready to throw up their hands and leave the city; that they cannot do the thing. And the pitiable thing about this is that these gentlemen now of whom we speak --- and I don't say it in a spirit of censure --- I am not censuring them at all. - but I do say it in the spirit of a right -- the pitiable thing about these this thing is that Dr. HeCracken, Mr. Tocke Tarlton and and Tom Canavan, and men of that character, /these men the owners of this property, who rent it at exhorbitant rates to poor negroes and then to this criminal class --- those men don't know that they are contemptible and wrong. How those men can't see that thing.

In. Wher. But they are making the money out of the degradation, the poverty, the vice, the squalor, and the hardships that follow in its trend?

Mr. Allison. They are.

It. Raker. Her what is your view? Is it your view that they are so thoroughly imbued with this money making idea of the way they are doing that there is practically no way to relieve the situation?

Mr. Allisen. They have gotten into the thing and they are just---they have been swept on with the conditions; things have been countenanced here and countenanced there until in their lives the higher ideals have atrophled---died out.

Mr. Johnson. The public conscience is just dead here?

Mr. Allison. The public conscience is dead in lots of

men's himm lives in East St. Louis.

Hr. Raker. It doesn't give the young---it doesn't give the family of these men that are working here under the conditions, which I will ask later, hardly any opportunity for future existence, does it?

Hr. Allison. There isn't a hopeful outlook; there isn't a hopeful out look at all.

if. Raker. But your view is that inf a few good, strong, virile men and women could get hold of the situation --you have got the material, both in men and women?

Mr. Allison. Yes, sir.

Im. Raker. That could make this city just as good as any in the United States?

Mr. Allison. Absolutely. If the men who own these plants in East St. Louis, if they would cooperate with a movement of the better class of citizens, if there could be a movement put on foot to condern the property of the man --- the property that is absolutely unsanitary and unfit has for a human being to live in---if that property could be conderned and there could be--- and it could be blacklisted so that he couldn't rent it, he would fix it up; he would rebuild. Now if that kind of a scheme could be put on here --- and I speak especially if there could be some social service work done among the colored people here--- and I have some entensive plans along that line, and have met with quite a learty response from a lot of the citizens here. There has not to be sampthing done, a concerted cooperative

effort put on here if the thing is to be redeemed. It can be redeemed; I am sure of it, but it never can be redeemed with these men in the lead of civic affairs in East St.

Louis; it cannot him em be done; it is hopeless.

In. Johnson. If some of these houses that had been destroyed or torn down in a lawful manner instead of having been unlawfully done by a mob, it would have been a blessing in disguise?

If. Allison. Oh, yes; that is one thing that I can say to you that I have thought was a blessed thing. I have, of course, abhorred the suffering and destruction of personal property.

Mr. Johnson. Doing it in a lawless way?

In. Allison. Sertainly; that is worst of all, but the ---well, East St. Losis needs a duplication of the same proposition. It will get it are of those days.

Unity of those buildings on Collinsville Avenue, if you will notice them---I don't know thather you have noticed them--- they have brick fronts, but behind that brick wall it is a frame building. The night of the riot, on July 2nd, if there had been a strong wind, there wouldn't have been a half degen buildings left in the business part of East St. Louis. It would have all gone because it is tinder.

Mr. Raher. These people were all playing with fire that day?

Mr. Allison. They certainly were playing with fire. I was surprised to see the thing stop where it get stopped.

In. Raher. Now, getting back and going right on the same line as to the congested condition of the negro quarters.

do you know anything about that?

Mr. Allison. Yes; I know it was deplorable.

Mr. Raker. More than one family lived in the same house?

Mr. Allison. Oh, yes; roomers and lodgers and boarders; and then these negro saloons were housing large numbers of negroes, taking care of them; they were sleeping there at nicht.

Ir. Johnson. I guess they got all of their wages?

IF. Allison. Oh, most assuredly, if they make any wages. And I am not comprised that there were a series of hold-ups by black men in Jast St. Louis.

Mr. Raher. Emplain that to us.

Mr. Allison. I think the situation you ran into here posterday morning when you found/those eleven colored men brought into torm here had been deceived, turned loose in torn with insufficient elothing, with no money and hungry. I am not surprised that a man like that would undertake to hold a man up or to anything elso.

Mr. Cooper. Some white mon would under similar circumstances would do it, wouldn't they?

in. Allise: Cortainly; driven to desperation. Now I am not justify ing the magross' atrocities --- these hold-ups and things ii. I that the had I am not memoria emeasing.

. In. Raker. A human and hungry man is going to have something to cat.

Mr. Allisin. Yes, sir.

Ib. Roker. The lower he is, the surer he is going to it get/the first place he can find.

If an sure I would have thought it had I been a colored man---that I should just get everything that I could if nobody cared a blankety-blankety-blank for me. They were packed into this town. The corporations were guilty or not, the term was congested with negroes. There wasn't an effort made to give/any better living facilities; not an effort made to make citizens out of them; there wasn't a thing done to take care of them; to encourage them; not a thing done.

If . Raker. In addition to that, not only to take care of them, isn't it a fact that white much recopie were moved out of these houses where they were paying \$2.00 or \$9.00 a month and negroes moved in and paid \$14 or \$15 a month?

Mr. Allison. I understand things like that were resorted to; yes.

Mr. Raker. Then, getting back again to the man the is the business man.

. If. Allison. After the money.

The Raker. The property man after the money, the more negroes, the more he could get for rent, the better he would like it, wouldn't he?

Mr. Allison. Yes.

If. Raker. Bow, let's just go out to these great concerns, outside of the plants--just stay outside of the plants now for this question---what had been done by these people for this great number of working people after they left their plants, anything that you know of?

In. Allison. Well, this has been done. There had been some cooperation with ${\rm lin.Rout}$, who has the industrial

work of the Y.H.C.A. here in the City. There had been some effort made; plants had cooperated with him in undertaking to get play-grounds, and some night schools among the Coreigners.—things of that sort, but there hadn't—it was done on a very meagre scale, and outside of that work that was done through the industrial work of the Y.H.C.A. I know of nothing that was done.

Mr. Raker. Then really it amounted to this: After you have described the conditions down town, Conditions of living and sanitary conditions, and the conditions of the factories we find these men going to work in these great concerns, and after they had done their day's work, being simply turned out of the cates like turnsmirrute turning out so many horses to recture, no one looking after them and givin them any consideration.

Hr. Allison. Not as good as horser turned to pasture. Horses turned into a plature would have a fence about it and some sort of care would be taken for watering facilities and feeding opportunities. There is nothing like that in this case at all. They are turned loose to let the devil get the hindnost.

In Raker. It just seems as though so far as the laboring man is concerned---and I am taking that because it is the big body---th: conditions at the plant after they left/ the conditions here in the city/ everything was to get all he had?

Mr. Allison. Yes.

Mr. Raker. And nothing to advance him?

Mr. Allison. No.

Mr. Raiser. And he would be in a mighty bad shape, worldn't

he, immediately?

Mr. Allison. He couldn't get anywhere.

I.r. Roher. He would be immediately in a bad shape, ouldn't he?

Ir. Allison. Certainly.

Ir. Raher. As well as physically?

Er. Allison. Certainly.

Mr. Raker. And in a position to be led to most any desperation?

Tr. Allicon. Yes; enarchy.

Mr. Raker. How go on with the May riot..

In. Allison. Lell, the May riot---that thing, as we say---started on the night of that meeting in the City Hall at which Mr. Mane, Mr. Mellman and Mr. Flannigan---Alexander Flannigan---spoke to those men. They came down from that meeting and immediately upon coming down, it was said that another negro held-up has occurred, and I came very nearly running into that held-up. I came along in my machine just as the erest as rath ring, and just after the shooting had taken place. They started on the street to beat negross. It men't so vicious as this that occurred in July.

H. Raker. Well, there is a degree of viciousness, but describe that that did occur in May.

Ir. Allison. Well, that in May was simply/the idea was to beat negroes up and put fear into them and compel them to leave the city. Now it seemed as though that was the idea, and to---I am giving you now largely what my conclusion is from this thing---it seemed to me there was an organized

effort to drive the negro out of this town, because of the fact that---I don't know that any negroes were killed in that May riot; not many at least; several were beaten up and they appealed to the police officers; they appealed to the Mayor for protection. Numbers of negroes told me that they appealed to the Mayor for protection and he told them that he couldn't protect them, and that the only thing they could do was to leave the city.

Mr. Raker. Was any reason given why he couldn't protect them?

Ir. Allison. No; just couldn't protect them. So I think that that partially accounts for the negroes arming themselves to protect themselves. Then following May 28th, negroes were beaten up intermittently, all along through that time, and nebody was apprehended, nor nebody was arrested.

Mr. Raker. You mean that negroes were beaten up by thite people?

In. Allicon. / Accounted here and there, and the negroes retaliated by beating up white men. A townster could be coming along with his team and negroes could sail into him and beat him up. It was sort of a tooth and claw affair, lealing on up until July 2nd.

Mr. Johnson. By this time, it had practically resolved itself into a race war?

IF. Allison. A race war is just what it had resolved itself into. Now, the sholl stage was set by somebody for Fully the 4th. The explosion was gremature. The stage was set for July the 4th. A story was circulated among the white

people that the negroes were coming to Jones Park while the whites were having their 4th of July celebration and they were going to massacre women and children. A similar story was circulated among the colored people that the whites were going to get them on July 4th.

Er. Johnson. Did anybody within your imagination have any ulterior motive to serve by circulating either of these reports?

The Allison. Well, I only know what I heard. I heard this conversation between a committee of negroes and a labor representative. The labor representative accused the negroes of Couble-crossing the union man: that Dr. Bundy had double-crossed the union man.

II. Dill son. Br. Dundy, the colored dentist?

The Allison. Yes; Dr. Bundy, the colored dentiet. Reverent Wallace, the is a colored from replied by saying. "You are mistaken. Er. Bundy Clan's derble-cross you. ...e tried our best to jet all the negroes to unionize, but the negroes——the general run of them——ere afraid of union labor, and they says afraid to do it". Now I heard that conversation.

Mr. Johnson. Did they say in that they were afraid?

Mr. Allison. Do; they didn't say in what they were afraid.

The Tohnson. If it conclusion was drawn in your mind from that?

Mr. Allison. Orly this, that there had been an effort among some of the union cen to unionize the negroes, and the conclusion I dear ma---as I have been a laboring can

and have two union cards---the idea was that it was a way to defeat the corporations refusing to meet the issue of the white laboring man's claim for better conditions or more money; that the man corporations had undertaken to just simply force the negree into the situation and overcome it that way and subject the white man to the conditions.

Mr. Johnson. Before you entered the ministry, inchmuchas you have spoken of it pourself, that was your securetion?

Mr. Allison. Mailroading, principally.

ir. Johnson. Yes: but that kind of reilroading?

Drotherhood of Locametive Tiremen's eard. I have a Brother-hood of Railway Trainmen's card. Alow that was--- I heard that conversation, and that---

(intimosing).

If Johnson. Is there anything else in your wind now which would suggest that anybody had a selfish or ulterior notive to be served by arraying one race against the other?

Mr. Allison. well, I am satisfied that some, at least. of the city officials wanted the negroes run out of tom--- a lot of them. I am satisfied of that.

The Johnson. In would they went them out?

The Allison. Lell. Mr. --- the statement I am going to make to you has eases from Mr. Canavan himself; it was made to me direct. Mr. he lives in---nov this is my emclusion--- he lives out---

Hr. Johnson. (interposing). I have asked you to empress all that is within the scope of your implication new for a reasonable emelusion.

Mr. Allison. I see. Well now, Mr. Canavan lives in Alta Sita. Territory between Has this down town district and Alta Sita, where Mr. Canavan lives, is infested by negroes, and that was being largely populated by negroes and they were spreading in that direction. I can imagine that it was very disagreeable to Mr. Canavan, as he seemed to insimuate in his remarks to me, to have the negroes encrosching upon property that he owned.

Mr. Johnson. You have used the word "infested". Do you wan just simply to loaf through that section, or reside through that section?

Mr. Allison. Reside through that section, and all were classes of negroes/in between here and there. We honest opinion about the negro situation is that the negro, when he is left alone by the white man, is, in a majority of instances, and maximum manus my experience with him is such, that he is a generable, law-abiling citizen: that the corruption——the largest percent of the corruption amongst the negro people is attributable directly to the white man's activities. That is a convention of mine. But back to——

Mr. Johnson. (interposing). Has it not been your observabeen tion, though, in Corner Caps that the negrolas/very cruel to the negro?

The Allison. Oh, yes;

Ilm. Johnson. And that man's inhumanity to man finds itself emphasized in the colored race?

Mr. Allison. Well, many times that is so. Manytimes It is true. ¶But nor. Mr. Janavan made this remark to me-nor I stm say westernished that the negro population was coming in between the city and the place where he lived.

On the morning of July 3rd I met Mr. Canavan. I was appealed to to take charge of handling this negro situation, caring for the number of refugees that we had in the City Hall. - They had something like 1200 of them there. And I met Mr. Canavan---

Mr. Johnson (interposing). Hen, women and children?
Mr. Allison. Yes. I met Mr. Canavan in front of his
office there at the Arcade Building, and I said---and they
were still assaulting negroes, and they were still burning
property---that was on the 3rd and they were burning property as late as 5 o'clock in the afternoon of the 3rd.

Mr. Cooper. Right there: So the rioting hadn't ceased on the Srd?

Mr. Allison. No.

If . Cooper. So at the time that whelen and the other man that are charged wit'. Willing this colored www well in shooting the arm off of that girl, rioting was still in progress?

In. Allison. Thy, I rescued --- In. Jim Miller and I rescued a woman, a negro water, with her six children, out of a place near the Free Bridge at 5 o'clock on the afternoon of the Ord, and took them to the station to put them on a train to get them out of town to her mother, and as we came back there was a house burning right here on 10th Street, I think.

Ir. Cooper. What time was that?

The Allison. That was about 5 o'clock on the afternoon of the 3rt of July.

Ly. Canavan made this remark to me much when I spoke to him and much said, "Mr. Canavan, this is deplorable; this is a terrible situation". He said, "Yes, Reverend, but my God, something has got to be done, or the dammed niggers will take the town".

Lis Johnson. Then was that?

Hr. Allison. That was on July 3rd. Ir. Canavan made that statement to me. He said, "Something has got to be done, or the dammed niggers will take the town".

If . Jooper. That was after about forty or fifty of them had been killed?

Mr. Allison. Yes; practically all of them that were killed had been killed.

Mr. Cooper, And the houses burned up?

Mr. Allison. Yes. That was before I went after this woman, too. The burning of houses hadn't---they were still burning houses.

I am of the opinion---I am convinced that there was a concerted makin effort here to run the negroes out of East St. Louis. Mr. Bernard, who runs a clothing store there on Broadway, told me that just before the riot he had a real estate deal pending through, Canavan and Tarlton real estate office, and that a few days after the riot Tarlton came in to conclude the deal, and Mr. Bernard told me, "I said to Tarlton, 'I den't think I want to take up any real estate deals in East St. Louis', and Tarlton said, 'My?'" "Well", he said, "it isn't safe here", and then he said, "My business is practically ruined".

Mr. Johnson. that?

Mr. Allison. Mr. Bernard. "I have lost about fifty

per cent of my business since that riot." Mr. Bernard said that Tarlton replied by saying, "Did you have a good deal of negro trade?" "Yes, I had considerable of it". "Jell," he said, "this is going to be a white man's town hereafter; the blacks will be run out of here and we'll have a white man's town, and you will have white trade".

I appealed to them; suggested things that they could do to stop the riot; the indifferent attitude, they absolutely ignored——they ignored the a peals that came to them from different directions——led me to conclude——and I will believe it as long as I live, unless I am corrected some way by some definite evidence—I will believe that these gentlemen right here wanted the very thing to happen that did happen, save the killing of the negroes. They didn't vant/hegroes killed, but these men wanted the negroes run out of East St. Louis.

Mr. Johnson. Race prejudice?

Mr. Allison. Dasc prejudice; that was a part of ite-the encroachment of the negro population upon the property that they owned, where their homes were.

Mr. Johnson. That was race prejudice again?

It. Allison. Race prejudice again. That was all of it.

Mr. Cooper. Did you hear then say who was bringing the negroes here; what incluences were at work?

Mr. Allison. Oh, I heard, for instance---I heard several charges were made. I heard Mr. Mulsen of the American Steel Foundry or the Missouri Malleable Iron say that they had sent

some advertisements down south among the negroes asking them to come in here because of the shortage of labor.

Mr. Cooper. Had you observed any shortage of labor here?

Mr. Allison. Not to any great extent as yet; not to any great extent at all. At any rate there was no such shortage of labor to justify the influx of negroes here that there was, the negroes that were brought in here from the South. There were threatened strikes at the packing plants and there was a strike on at the Alluminum Ore plant.

Ilr. Johnson. From all that has occurred, and from all that you have observed, you are absolutely certain that race exists projudice in to a violent extent, in the State of Illinois?

Hr. Allison. well, I know it is here.

Il. Johnson. There is no mistake about it?

Mr. Allison. There is no mistake about it. There are two things that operated here in that. Race prejulice itself is ignorance, and always produces trouble. Then another thing: there are some folks in the place who are silly enough to advocate race equality, which is impracticable.

Mr. Johnson. And leads to trouble?

Ir. Allison. And leads to trouble; either one --- both race prejudice or race equality.

Ir. Cooper. Do you know about the play called Dirth of a Nation"?

Mr. Allison. Yes, sir. Finti waxidarapii mudaratud;

Mr. Cooper. That was here?

Mr. Allison. I understand early last spring it was in St. Louis.

Mr. Cooper. Didn't it show here too?

Hr. Allison. Yes; I believe it did.

Mr. Cooper. It showed right here in this town?

Mr. Allison. Yes, sir.

Tr. Cooper. February 19, 20, and 21, of this year--three nights. Now that was a vivid, picturesque, powerful
presentation of conditions and passions of fifty years ago,
the memory of which, as far as possible --- especially in industrial communities, ought not to have been revived. Isn't
that so?

Mr. Allison. Tes; and no---

Mr. Cooper. It tended to grouse everywhere it was shown the bitterest kind of feeling against negroes. They protested against the presentation on that ground, and so did thousands of white people thoughout the North. Att Isn't that so?

M. Allison. I only know through the reports in the papers that such protests were made.

The Cooper. It showed negroes chasing a white girl for the purpose, undoubtedly, of ravishment, and it showed the shooting of negroes; it showed the coarsest sort of conduct by negroes; it showed everything bad, practically, that mas bad negroes can do, and very little of anything, if anything at all, very little of the good that good negroes do; it showed a faithful servant or two or three in some minor characters. Did you see the play?

Mr. Allison. I did.

Cooper. In./well, you know that it to ded to arouse those old passions, and to anyone brutally disposed, who was inclined to feel that projudice, it sort of tonded to inflowe him, didn't

it, against the negroes still more?

Ir. Allison. One who might have been brutally inclined. I can say this to you: It didn't in me at all. I saw it.

Er. Cooper. Well, you are the last man that I would say anything of that kind to, with a view of having you make a personal application of it. You are just as far any from that sort of a thing as any man I ever saw. You were born and raised in Texas, too?

Tr. Allison. Yes, sir.

Mr. Cooper. Your attitude of mind and your mamb fairness displayed on the stand would be commendable in everybody .

wherever the place of nativity, but to have been born in Texas and to say what you have said here, and to have done what you have done, makes your confluct and uttorances doubly commendable. I say that so you can feel/at easywherever I question you.

Ir. Allison. Thank you.

In. Holler. Now finish your statement as to the general effect on the people. You said that upon you it had no effect.

If Allison. It mother's people were southern people. If grandfather's name was min wilson. J. L. wilson, of Virginia, was a relative of mine and that needs only to say to you that they were ardent supporters of the Confederacy.

Mr. Cooper. William L. wilson, of Virginia?

Mr. Allison. Yes, sir. My Cather's people were in the Union Army -- the Allisons.

Mr. Cooper. So we can identify him. Do you mean the Fostmaster General in Olevaland's second term?

Mr. Allison. I mean the father of the famous Wilson Bill --- L. Milson.

Mr. Cooper. He was chairman of the Mays and Means Committee when they brought in the Milson Tariff Bill to do away with the free purchase of silver?

tell you, were Union people. Not all of the milsons were in the Confederacy. We have in the history of our folks where two brothers fought each other at a certain battle. But my grandfather had told me things about the magnes and how negroes appealed to them after the war was over; didn't went to leave the home of his master: wanted it constitutions and how many of them did beep them by turning over the home to them, latting them till the land and allowing them a certain rental, salary; such things as that.

Ity ises of The Birth of a Matien", as I caw it, was senfination of some things that my grandfather had told me, that no history that I had ever read had brought out. It filled my heart with a compassion for the negro race. It made me more interested in the subject than possibly I had ever been before. I saw the need of conceins the need of social service work; I also can through The Birth of a Matien" and through my observation of history in the past, that the crisis in 1965---that ended in 1865---really created the race problem. Now let me make myself clear there. I don't want to be misunderstood. It is like this---if I may use the analogy---and let me set myself right before I start:

I don't mean that that was detrimental. I am glad that nobody owns any man as a chattel today. I am glad that the cause of slavery was forever eliminated from the bounds of the United States. I am glad of that. But here is my point: Suppose the Eumane Society of this city should suddenly decide that all of the barms, all of the places that stock is kept in, were unsanitary, and suppose that they should have influence enough that all of the stock in this sity, the live stock, shoold be released, turned loose in the streets, the live stock problem created by that would be a menace to this city. The thing I saw in "The Birth of a Mation" and in my observation of the magro problem all over the United States is that we have been recreant in that nothing has been done to assimilate the negro immine into our body politic. amendment to our Constitution giving him equal rights has been merely a theory, and has not been carried out to the letter. Now that is my point, and I think that it is high time that this nation take some definite, practical consideration of the race problem.

Mr. Cooper. That is a very statesmentike sentiment and well put.

In Allison. The fact that the other day, I think it was, in Philadelphia, a large number of leading negroes not to consider the advisability of the organization of a negro political party. That thing is a forerunner of some more serious things than that may come. I contend that we can no more afford to have a negro political party than we can afford to have an Irish party, a German party, or any other racial

party in our political government in these United States, and I am saying this because of the seriousness of it. I am convinced that within the next ten years, if something is not done to meet this situation in a practical way, that the negro problem will be one of the biggest problems confronting these United States.

Mr. Cooper. Well, that is a very strong statement. I mentioned, or, rather, referred to that moving picture because of the way in which the negroes were shown as offenders in 95 per cent of the instances in which they figured in the picture at all.

Mr. Allison. Yes.

In. Cooper. And then their offenses were of so aggravated a character that the white population, seeing the impossibility of the enforcement of the law, organized the Ku KluX; and then you saw them on horses, in the white robes, and with the horses; and then you heard that strange, weird call of the oboe or bugle call, whatever it was, thrilling, wonderful thing, and the negroes always in the wrong; and then when in any community where there was more or less of a sentiment because of economic competitive conditions, had arisen, prejudice, this picture/shown, it was a dangerous thing.

Mr. Allison. It was; I agree with that. Let me make this statement---

Ifr. Johnson (interposing). Hearly as dangerous as "Uncle Tom's Cabin", wasn't it?

Mr. Allison. Yes.

Im. Cooper. Oh mall, "Uncle Tom's Cubin" never induced

anybody to hurt a white men in the North or anywhere else.

Mr. Johnson. You are greatly mistaken.

Ir. Allison. May I make this other statement?

Mr. Johnson. It aroused a great deal of hatred and made a great deal of trouble, a thousand times more than has ever been done by "The Birth of a Kation".

Mr. Cooper. Well, of course that is a conflict of testimony (laughter); and there is no way of settling that dispute.

If. Allison. I would like to make this statement, if I am may: I think one of the month troubles with the race problem is that too many times there has been a lack of cooperation in the solution of it. To poute this, my opinion is that no white man---no set of white men---cen settle the race problem.

Mr. Cooper. They must exergerate with the negroes.

It Allison. No black him san settle it. Hy opinion is that the black has a prejudiced conclusion, a jurely subjectively, and always has a prejudiced conclusion, a jurely subjective view. A white han looks at it in an objective view; an objective view purely always has a prejudiced conclusion. There must be cooperation. Now then, I am convinced that among the colored people---and I have not such men---they in my acquaintance---there are colored hen who see this thing rightly and whose hearts today are burlened for some sort of solution to the crying cituation that is upon us, and I believe that there eight to be some definite, specific action.

Laying aside the question of political corruptness in

East St. Louis, the race riot in July here in the City of East St. Louis might have happened in any other city of any considerable size, that is an industrial center, within the bounds of the United States. It could just as well have happened in Cleveland, Ohio, in Pittsburgh, Penna., in Chicago, Ill., or in other parts of the country. I have talked with newspaper reporters who have told me of a similar thing occurring at other points, roints that they are familiar with, in different parts of the country.

How, how the problem would be solved, and where the solution would lead to. I know that my thoughts and my conclusions not are largely theoretical, and I know no theory can ---you can't be each sure that any theory is right until it has gone through the fires of human emperience, and however good our intentions may be, something practical must be done, and I sinceral, hope, if nothing also whill grow out---I sinceral, hope that one of the things that will grow out of this investigation will be that the heart and mind of this country will be turned speculat in that direction.

I have been making --- I am starting in to an extended study of the race problem as it of beta the negro; and I have been astounded to learn of the vast ways in which he is a property other in those United States. In the State of Georgia alone, negroes make returns on approximately \$39,000,000.

Mr. Johnson. And that is in the South.

Hr. Allison. Yes, and that is in the South. Roy, the thing to me is becoming serious. The negro population is four times that it was at the end of the Civil mar, and within the next ten years a unit that multiplies itself by four in

fifty years, with the accelerated accumulations of the four multiples.—With that unit of four, I think we can reasonably consider that when it night come nearly doubling itself in ten years; and that is the basis of my statement, that within ten years I think they will be one of the most serious considerations that confronts the Government.

IF. Jooper. And it cannot be settled, or reach any, as I sail a moment ago, enduring solution, can it, by rioting, murder or arson?

The thing will never be reached by the doctrine of force.

The thing will never be reached by the doctrine of force.

The thing will never be reached by the doctrine of force.

The real to defeat, whether he is different or a black man.

The most win our rights. As a religionist, I take the resition that that was a high hunded temptation of Satan to our Saviour when he said, "If thou be the sen of Jed. command these states to become bread". Assert your rights. Hen win their rights: the rights that are permanent and the rights that are abiding; and in this race situation all ideas of domaid blights must be jut aside, and any number of gets on a street car and domaid his rights is wrong, or any man who comes in the bit of the life of a mogree and domaids his rights be wrong, or any man who comes in the other whether white can or black man.

II. Joinson. And that is what you had here?

The Allison. That is what we had here--- demand for vights, that a masted from both sides, however they might have been approvated.

lim. Jonger. well, you don't mean that at times a white

man who is oppressed or abused shouldn't assert his rights?

Who Allison. Oh, there comes a place where the protection of rights and the demanding of rights, I make a distinction between them.

In. Cooper. You know the old theory of government, human government, was--- so proclaimed as late as 1820 at the Foly Alliance at Libeck , that the average man had no rights, but he had certain privileges conferred upon him by monarches?

Mr. Allism. Yes; I know.

Independence declared that recople had certain inclies nable rights: they came from Sod Almighty himself.

ilr. Allison. Yes.

Mr. Cooper. And they were not privileges conferred upon them by any human being. They were rights.

The Allison. Yes.

them at the end of a revolution. There comes a time, doesn't there, when oppression becomes too great a burden, an when even a white man has got to assert his rights or he won't get them?

Ir. Allison. The protection of rights in that instance. I agree with you there. The thing that I have in mind is a man starting out to look for his rights and demand/them---not a question of---

If. Johnson (interposing). .. ith a chip on his shorlder?

In. Allicon. That is the idea.

Mr. Cooper. Tell, let us take up the July riots.

Mr. Raker. To the extent that your statement was so fine, the statement you have just made---we start to break in down on all hands the very first time we deal with the negro by trying to handle him as a chattel in the way of voting him. Isn'tait?

Mr. Allison. That is it. That is contemptible and a corruptible thing.

and theory book writing what you have done for him, you turn right around when you cant to vin an election, city, municipal, state, national or otherwise, and think you can use him, because he hasn't had the experience, by buying his vote and winning the election.

Mr. Allison. That is so. That is the crucial thing.

handle any municipal government or any state government or even the national government to their our ends and for their own jurpose?

Mr. Allison. That is so.

If Raker. It seems to me that the great big problem staring us in the face today---and they have just worked it have to a finish, as you have told us---slush fund, \$50,000 in this little city---every nameready and willing not only to participate in the slush fund but working for the purpose that he might have make more money, using the negro vote by buying it for the jurpose of winning the election. Is that right?

Mr. Allison. That is right.

Hr. Eaker. Then when the poor fellow can't protect. himself any longer, they talk about race projudice and send him out of the country, and if they can't drive him out shoot him on the street like a dog?

Mr. Allison. That is the way I feel about this thing that harpened here; absolutely.

Mr. Daker. He must think and must feel like you and I feel.

Ir. Allison. . Certainly.

In. Raker. Paying his taxes, living under the same law and under the same government that you and I live under; then they can't use him any longer, good bye---his life is like the dog upon the street; in fact, worse; they pay no more attention to it.

Mr. Allison. I den't know of ervelty among animals that I have seen that would must match the eruelty to the negroes here in East St. Louis on July 2nd and Srd. I never say in my life eruelty hunded to brutes that would match it.

The Raher. what I have been trying to ask here-and there hasn't been a man, not one single one---I say that without any fear of a successful lemial---the Committee of One Fundred or otherwise, that had the scarage to come before this Committee and point his finger at this man and say, I saw this man participating in that mob---n a one of them. Doesn't a seen strange and funny?

In Allison. It does.

The Roller. Running from scarise in the morning until during then the torm was lit line a blazing sun so

everybody could see it, and everybody was as blind as a bat to the destruction of human life and property in this town.

Mr. Allison. You know, I have tried ---

In. Raker. (interposing). Can you account for that;
how these people's eyesight all failed? I am satisfied
that there are lots of these men that could come in here and
tell some of these perpetrators of these crimes; good loyal
extigues and property holders that have families, but they are
afraid of their lives and property to do it, and that is the
reason they don't come up and tell it.

Mr. Allison. I think that is true. I think that men here in town are cowards. They are afraid to come to the front, a lot of them. I believe that is true. There is another thing that is true, too, and that is that that thing was paralizing to a man's senses. Now it was terrible. There isn't any man who saw that it that can rightly describe it, and a man who didn't see it cannot conceive of the arrial things that we did have here.

Mr. Raker. Just beyond description?

Mr. Allison. It is.

In. Reher. And your theory is, now, that---and I'll go back firm to what has occurred for two jurposes: First, they were terrorized. They felt that their lives would have been absolutely worthless if they tried to stop it?

Mr. Allison. Yes.

IF. Raher. Except those who were detually doing the

The Allison. The.

Are Totar. And second --- which is the garamount of the

whole thing---that their sense of right and wrong and their consciences were practically deadened and numbed. They said, 'Let her go".

Er. Allison. Oh, the stage had been set for this thing.

Er. Raker. If those two theories---do you agree with

me on that?

Mr. Allison. I do.

Mr. Raker. Then munthembersh there is a further fact that I want to ask about the race riots, if it isn't true that by reason of all these conditions emisting that you have described, all culminated when they saw that they could press it on the negro and lay it all to him?

Mr. Allison. Yes; I think that is largely---almost fully true; yes.

Mr. Roher. In other words---

In. Allison (interposing). The negro was made the "goat."

holding a position of---some position in your municipal affairs, who has got property out here in different homeles lots inthan--he sees the negroes, the colored people, moving in between his lots and the city, and as they move in he sees his finances are going down, although some of his friends are gotting a little money. He sees the opportunity that by sending them out, his property will come up again, and therefore his sense of right and justice and propriety and decency and honor is absolutely abandoned. He sits back and allows these poor innocent to the to be slaughtered like the cattle in the peace up here at the stock yards.

If. Allison. Yes; but not so humanely as the cattle at the stock yards; not slaughtered with the same---you know they undertake to make that humane. This didn't have that phase.

Mr. Johnson. I understood you to say earlier in your statement that you don't believe that those higher up here desired the killing of negroes?

It. Allison. Tell, I attribute that——I can't conceive of a man who would desire bloodshed, but I am convinced from what went on and the attitude of these gentlemen, that they did want the town rid of negroes, sort of like my friend who came to me and said he heard they were going to "croak"me——well, he made this statement——I don't think I told this——he said, 7they were just going to beat you up a little, I wouldn't have come an' told you anything about it." "But", he said. "I'm not going to stand for them put ing you off watch".

The Gooper. Well, if some of them would kill you, a white man in your prominent place, don't you think some of them might have been perfectly willing to have negroes slaughtered?

Mr. Allison. Well, I don't --- it is possible that there were some in town who were easer to get a chance.

The Rober. I get Mr. Allison's theory as this, and I think it is, as he stated to Mr. Johnson-the higher-ups you didn't believe really had morder in their hearts as against the negroes, but desired to get rid of them?

Mr. Allison. Yes.

Mr. Raher. For the reasons stated?

Mr. Allison. Yes.

Ir. Raher. But when the thing started---of course the general conditions were such that there was nothing to prevent or retard the killing of these people?

Mr. Allison. Yes.

ir. Raker. Became powerless.

ity/by the activity of the Mayor. How I went to him on the morning of the riot, July 2nd, as early as 9 o'clock, when the first shooting took place.

Mr. Raker. Mayor Mollman?

Mr. Allison. Mayor Mollman.

Mr. Rakor. In the City Hall?

Mr. Allison. In the City Hall.

ir. Raker. On the day of the riot?

ly. Allison. On the day of the riot. I was in this building on the Sifth Floor: the windows were open; I heard three or four shots.

Metropolitan Building on Missouri Avenue, where the Committee is now taking this testimony?

shots fired. It was about 9 o'clock. I was in attorney who were working on the street ear tracks on Missouri Avenue dropping their tools and starting to walk off. I say a crowd of white men rushing that way. They attacked a negrous who were on the street who was doing nothing. I went do m on

to the street and it seemed that the negro had gotten away.

Mr. Johnson. A negro who had been shot at?

In. Allison. Yes; a negro who had been shot at.

I went over to the Mayor's office. I saw that there was only just a hand full of men in the mob, that the rest of them were just curiosity seekers, that is all. They were not, in the perpetration of that thing I realized there were not over five men,-possibly between and five and ten--- who were active and mind determined to wreak vengeance on the negro.)

This is the first shooting that I know anything about. AI went to the Rayor and said. "Rayor, that have you done?" "Well", he said, "I have ordered the militia; ordered them . last might", and I think he said some of them were either in to m or just so sing into torm. I said, "..hy don't you deputies a number of citizens here and get out here and get abold of these little groups of men?" Immorid "How", I said, "There are just eight or ten at the most in a group. You deputise a number of citizens and get them out there and get those fellows and bring them over hore and jut them in the City Hall and put a guard over them, and tell them, 'The first man that comes down those stairs will get killed in his tracks', you will break this thing up". Well, he was "going to wait for the militia". Now I understand that the militia's orders, that their orders sont in here---when Mayor Mollman appealed to the state for the militia, the militia was sent in here with orders to report to Mayor Hollman for orders. The were to be smoot his command. I found think he gave them a single command; only marched them

up and down through the streets. That was practically all.
Soldier boy after soldier boy to whom I talked said, "We have
no orders".

Ib. Raker. Well .---

Mr. Allicon. Now let me finish this, because this is vital an for the conclusion that I reached. Now after this thing had run on until 5 o'clock in the afternoon, when nobody could have stopped it, for as I had said to Mayor Mollman. "If these little groups of ten men in a group get ming together and form a large nob, nobody can stop it", and I said, "They fill burn this term do not you".

IF. Johnson. Did you hear General Dickson testifying?

II. Allison. I didn't hear Temeral Dickson's testimony;

no. sir.

In Johnson. Well, he testified that under military protections, that when he officer was contout with twoops to quell a riot, if they received any sort of an order from the mayor, then they carried that out without any farther instructions from the impor. He illustrated that by saying that if the Higer said, "Clear the streets", the manner in which the atreats were to be cleared was then left to the officer in charge of the troops; whether to be fired upon or not wee than in his discretion, and not in the discretion of the Heyer, and that——I don't know that he said it, but the substance of what he said was——I mean I don't know that he empressed himself in just so lany works——but the only conclusion to be reached from that General Dickson stated was that if the Mayor gave general instructions to Colonel Tripp,

who first came here with the troops, to stop the rioting, that then it was Colonel Tripp's duty to go ahead and stop it without any further detailed instructions from the Heyor; that that is the law.

Mr. Allison. Yes: well, I can get to Colonel Tripp's side of it later on. This, though, I know did harpen. The Mayor suddenly determined along late in the afternoon, when it was too late for anybody to do anything, he appealed for martial law. At the time I didn't have the conclusion that I have now, but I came to the conclusion afterwards that the appeal for martial law ---that the main reason for the appeal for martial law to to foist the responsibility wholly won the State, because martial law ould have taken him out of office; he would have had no responsibility in it; it would have been parely military. Now that is my conclusion, and that is the remon for it that he couldn't do mything at other times in the day, but late in the afternoon then the thing was gone, he could appeal for martial law and make a powerful appeal for it. How

How as to the coldier end of it, I saw with my orm eyes where the soldiers allowed the mob to have negroes and beat them. For one ejecific instance, at Uninyand Broadway a negro stepped off of a car with his dinner bucket in his hand; a hard working fellow. He didn't strike the street until some fellow upperent him on the jaw; knocked him loose from his dinner bucket, and his lat off, and before the poor fellow could get straightened up, the crowd had gethered in around him and began to slog him. There was a whole bunch of soldiers there in vailorn, Ath guns on their shoulders.

Mr. Johnson. Bayonets on their guns?

Mr. Allison. Yes; bayonets on their guns. And I said, "For God's sake, why don't you boys form a hollow square here; get that negro inside of your square and take him to the police station where he'll be protected?"

Mr. Johnson. They could have done that with the negro inside and their bayonets outside?

Mr. Allison. Yes. That was what I had in mind. The negro heard me and ducked his head and forced himself into the midst of those soldiers. I saw them deliberately elbow that negro back into the mob with no effort to protect him at all. All the effort there was on the part of the militia was to take the gun and rush the nen with the gun this way (illustrating), with the gun lengthwise; give them a push and just hold thom there, and some of them were laughing at the mob while they were doing that. One soldier --- I grew indignant, and I said some things that were pretty bitter. I don't remember just what the, wave, but I have I felt better after I said it. One soldier said to ma---he said, "what would you do"? I said, "If I had your uniform and that gun in my hand, I---if I was aliver-there wouldn't be a splinter of the thing him left in ay hand", and then the mob began to hiss no and call no nigger loafer and everything else, and I proceeded to tell them that they were yellow cowards and not one would dare strike that fellow if they met him alone on the street; that they only had the courage to do what that thing in a time of that kind, and jot mighty hot. I precipitated the thing that sound up in the making the next with follow who defended a negro at the same spot and get

down on his knees and apologize to the mob. But now I saw that with my own eyes. At the Relay Station, and I can tell you---I don't mind for anybody to know it---I looked that mob squarely in the face and I tried my best to pick out some fellow that I knew; I didn't know them; they weren't of the character of fellows that had be meaning to my church, and I didn't know them. I tried my best to recognize---

Ir. Johnson. You hadn't been going to their church? Lr. Allison. I hadn't been associating with them. I has at the Relay Station when a bunch of prostitutes --seven or eight women --- and three or four drunken pimps ---Sellows that were with them --- rushed into the station there with a scream like Indians, and attacked a negro woman in the station. It just whom threw the whole station into a bedlam. Juits women and children were in there weiting for trains, and you never --- you can't imagine the stampede that occurred ---childred lost from their mothers and cereaming and crying --- and I tried to protect that negre woman, /the fellow that was with me --- we tried to get her behind us into a corner and we were going to have it out with them, but she was scared and I think she thought we were helping to attack her, and, from of course, darted out, and behind us and tried to get out of the door, and of course she was running eway and of source they sailed in behind her and tore her clothes off to her man waist, all except her corset. Now I came inredictely to the station and appealed to the Payor. I said, "Give me one policeman and I'll take him and go and arrest that gang, ---seven or eight somen, prostitutes that they sere, and these three or four lousy buns that nowe with them". I said,

"We'll arrest them and bring them up here. He wouldn't give me a man and wouldn't try to get one and said, "I can't do anything". And that was getting along late in the afternoon. That was getting to the time when the fires began to burn. I was in the Mayor's office at that time when I heard Colonel Clayton telephoning to somebody at Springfield that that he had the thing, he thought, under control; a few fires were breaking out now, and such as that, and that made me indigment. Thile Colonel Clayton was making his report over the Trhone to Springfield, the fire marshal came into the Mayor's office and said, "I can't put that fire out there; they are eatting the hose down there". A lot of soldiers were standing all around there, and I said, -- and Colonel Tripy was there also --- I said, ".hy under the san sun can't you send somebody down there to stop those fellows from outting that hose?", and one fellow in khaki uniform said, "woll, you can't do it. The truth about it is there is no cam tour big enough for the two races". //

Mr. Johnson. The Just there, the Committee will adjourn that temorrow morning at 10 o'clock, with the request that you come back in the morning at 10 o'clock, Mr. Allison.

(Thereupon at 5:30 ${\tt pmm}$ o'clock P.H., the Committee adjourned)